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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENT
In this Annual Report, we have disclosed forward-looking information to enable investors to comprehend our prospects and take informed investment decisions.
This report and other statements, written or oral, that we periodically make, contain forward-looking statements that set out anticipated results based on
management’s plans and assumptions. We have tried, wherever possible, to identify such statements by using words such as ‘anticipates’, ‘estimates’, ‘expects’,
‘projects’, ‘intends’, ‘plans’, ‘believes’ and words of similar substance in connection with any discussion relating to future performance of the Company
We cannot guarantee that these forward-looking statements will be realized, although we believe we have been prudent in our assumptions. The achievement
of results is subject to risks, uncertainties and even inaccurate assumptions. Should known or unknown risks or uncertainties materialize, or should underlying
assumptions prove inaccurate, actual results could vary materially from those anticipated, estimated or projected. Readers should bear this in mind.
We undertake no obligation to publicly update any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.
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Persistence is staying focused on your goal
amid distractions.

PERSISTENCE IS EVERYTHING.
Despite challenges, your Company
sustained its persistence across operations,
enhancing efficiencies, widening its
footprint and building its brand.
This persistence resulted in
outperformance.
Despite muted growth witnessed by the
country’s cement industry during the year
under review, your Company was able to
reinforce its position as a premier brand in
the North-Eastern India with a promising
future in its new markets of West Bengal
and Bihar.

SUCCESS IS ABOUT PERSISTENCE,
PERSISTENCE AND PERSISTENCE.

We created

We widened

We maintained

We achieved

We built

the largest cement
manufacturing
capacity in NorthEastern India

our footprint from
North East India
to Eastern India,
emerging as one of
the fastest growing
brands

the market share in
North-Eastern India
despite increased
competition

the highest EBIDTA
per tonne in India’s
cement industry
despite inflation

our ‘Star’ brand
around the highest
recall in North
Eastern India.

OUR PERSISTENCE HAS DELIVERED
ATTRACTIVE GROWTH.

Background

Business

Location

Equity

Star Ferro is the largest
cement manufacturer in
North-Eastern India

The Company is engaged
in manufacturing and
marketing cement
through its subsidiaries
under the Star Cement
brand.

The Company with
its subsidiaries has four
manufacturing units across
the North East and two
hired units in West Bengal.

The Company’s equity
shares are listed and traded
actively on the National
Stock Exchange (NSE) and
Bombay Stock Exchange
(BSE).

Promoted by Mr. Sajjan
Bhajanka, Mr. Hari Prasad
Agarwal, Mr. Sanjay
Agarwal and Mr. Prem
Kumar Bhajanka, the
Company has a team of
experienced professionals.
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The Company is
headquartered in Kolkata
and enjoys marketing
presence across 11 states of
North-Eastern and Eastern
India.
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OUR ACHIEVEMENTS

1,473cr

23%

2,000+

11

J

Revenues
during 2014-15

Dealers

Market share
in the NorthEastern region

Number of
states of the
Company’s
presence

1,800+

J

Highest per
tonne EBIDTA
for a cement
company in
India

5,000+
Retailers

4,700+

Technical services
provided to end-users

1,653cr

J

Largest private
sector
investment
in the NorthEastern region
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PERFORMANCE IN
NUMBERS

34,368
2014-15

489
2013-14

16,652

3,760
2012-13

2013-14

43,585
2014-15

8,789

25,746
2013-14

2012-13

11,993
2012-13

Persistence pays

11,994

147,313
2014-15

4

Cash profit
(H in Lacs)

2014-15

117,130
2013-14

Net profit before M.I
(H in Lacs)

69,379

EBIDTA
(H in Lacs)

2012-13

Gross revenue
(H in Lacs)
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18.25
21.98
30.54

3.70
4.78
10.77

1.12
0.28
3.76

2012-13

2013-14

2014-15

2012-13

2013-14

2014-15

2012-13

2013-14

2014-15

EBIDTA margin
(%)
Return on Capital
Employed (%)
Earnings per shareDiluted (H)

Persistence pays
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A MESSAGE FROM THE

CHAIRMAN

Dear shareholders,
It gives me pleasure to report that FY 2014-15 was one of the
best years in the existence of Star Ferro and Cement Limited.

T

he Indian economy grew from 6.9%
in 2013-14 to 7.3 % in 2014-15.

The Indian cement industry grew to a
mere 5.6% from 3.1 % in the preceding
year, following a consumption
slowdown in the infrastructure and
realty development sectors.

Continuing to persist

Engagement of opinion makers:
Your Company carried out numerous

Better efficiencies: The financial year

market place activities and engaged

under review was the first full year of

with opinion-makers, which helped it

stable operations after your Company

understand buyer behavior and align

added its new capacities towards the

its product and marketing leading

end of FY2012-13. Your Company’s

to overall growth. Your Company

newly-commissioned grinding unit in

commenced the Star Pravin Mason

I am pleased to inform that your

Sonapur, Assam, was able to produce

Company outperformed these

1.44 million tonnes of cement during

benchmark indices. Our numbers speak

the year under review compared to 0.95

for themselves:

million tonnes in the previous financial

30.50% growth in volumes on the
back of capacity addition and extension
into new markets;
25.77% increase in our topline from
H1171.30 crore in 2013-14 to H1473.13
crore in 2014-15;
69.29% increase in EBIDTA from
H257.46 crore in 2013-14 to H435.85
crore in 2014-15;

Certification programme for masons
- Star-Tech featuring veterans like
M. A. Shetty, the father of concrete
technology, to provide concrete

year, resulting in higher capacity

technology knowhow to masons

utilization and better efficiencies.

and construction engineers. These

Our newly-commissioned clinkerization

programmes strengthened the image

unit at Lumshnong achieved a

and recall of the Company’s brand.

production of 1.55 million tonnes

To enhance local presence and faster

as against 1.1 million tonnes during

delivery, your Company arranged

FY2013-14.

grinding facilities in West Bengal,

Expansion of footprint: Star Ferro

drawing clinker from its mother plant

and Cement Limited expanded its

in North-East India and grinding them

footprint beyond North-Eastern India to

closer to consumption points.

More than 23 time growth in post-tax

the markets of West Bengal and Bihar.

profit from H4.89 crore in 2013-14 to

In doing so, the Company evolved

H119.94 crore in 2014-15.

its regional brand into a zonal recall,
strengthening respect, brand, off-take
and de-risking its distribution portfolio.
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The road ahead

engagement. The capabilities built and

the recent past with your Company

Despite muted growth witnessed

knowledge gained over the years helped

widening its presence in the remotest

in the rest of India, the future of

your Company engage as the strongest

areas of the region.

cement industry in the North Eastern

player in the region. Your Company

and Eastern region of the country

continues to be a preferred employer in

appears promising. The intent

North-East India, enjoying one of the

exhibited by the Government of India

highest people retention rates, expected

towards acceleration of infrastructure

to translate into a quicker learning curve

development in these regions could

related to higher capacity utilization,

prove to be a game-changer for the

wider marketing coverage and stronger

cement industry operating in this part

brand management. Your Company will

of country.

penetrate deeper into North-East and

Your Company is strategically positioned

East India, creating a zonal presence.

to capitalize on these opportunities.

The growing dependence of the

The Company continues to enjoy a

North-Eastern region for its cement

formidable market share of 23% share

requirement on players from the

in the region at a time when no major

mainland has considerably reduced over

The message that I wish to send out is
that with our building blocks in place,
Star Ferro and Cement Limited is poised
to emerge as one of the significant
cement players in Eastern India.

Regards,
Sajjan Bhajanka
Chairman

incremental capacities are planned in
North-East India. The Company’s brand
enjoys a high recall on account of
superior product quality and customer

What makes Eastern India a robust growth opportunity?
Demand growth of cement in Eastern India is likely to outpace growth in other parts of the country.
Increased emphasis on infrastructure projects is likely to translate into enhanced spending in housing,
infrastructure and commercial real estate sector.
Growing focus on rural and suburban infrastructure as well as housing growth is likely to catalyze cement
demand.
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S

trategically located with
limestone and coal
available next door, nearer
the consumption market
with a growth potential in
consumption pattern, coupled
with fiscal incentives.

F

inancial discipline
with better financial
gearing and cash flow.
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O

ne of the largest
cement capacities in
North-Eastern India.

S

ustained efforts
in brand building,
helping connect with
consumers and creating a
robust brand with a deep
distribution network.

9
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I

nvest, stabilize and
operate the largest
cement manufacturing
capacity in the NorthEastern region

46%

Revenue CAGR
in the last three
years

P

resence in 11
states with
2000+ strong
dealer and
5000+ strong
retailer network

79%

PAT CAGR in
the last three
years

E

stablished units in
locations that offer
cost-effective
raw material and
fuel coupled with
attractive financial
incentives

23%

Market share in
North-Eastern
India

apitalize on the
existing unused
capacities to enter
high-growth
regions

C

trengthen and expand
dealer/distribution
network to capture Eastern
Indian markets and deepen
penetration in the NorthEastern region

ROBUST

NEWER

revenue growth

10
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S

51

Megawatt coalfired captive
thermal power
plant

E

xplore and tap
new markets

market penetration
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I

nitiate tactical
branding
initiatives to
enhance recall

E

nsure robust
financial discipline

27.21%

20.43%

HIGH QUALITY

et up capacities to
cater to incremental
demand emanating
from the region

S

uild trading
relationships and
strengthen retail
services

DEEPENING

NEW WAYS

Cement capacity
CAGR in the last
five years

G

row the
product
portfolio with
new, niche and
quality brands

I

ntegrate backwards for
cost-optimisation and
quality enhancement

Clinker capacity
CAGR in the last
five years

of the distribution
network

Limestone mines

B

of better customer
service
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WHAT KEEPS US

GOING

EXPERIENCE
More than 10 years of
experience in NorthEastern India’s cement
sector, resulting in
market leadership.

12
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BRANDING
Over the years, the
Company created a
strong top-of-themind recall through
the engagement of
prominent NorthEastern celebrities
to endorse its
products.

FINANCIALS
The Company’s
financial discipline
is reflected in its
robust gearing of
1.16 (as on 31st
March 2015),
providing adequate
space for future
expansion plans.

SCALE
Integrated manufacturing
capacity of clinker and
cement besides self-reliant
captive power plant and
split grinding units coupled
with effective capacity
utilization, provides
synergy of operation and
economies of scale.

STAR FERRO AND CEMENT LIMITED
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INCENTIVES
Fiscal Incentives
available to the
industry in NorthEastern India makes
the story even more
compelling.

23%
Market share of
Star Ferro and
Cement in NorthEastern India.

11 STATES
Presence across
North-Eastern India
and a step forward
towards the
promising markets
of West Bengal and
Bihar.

LOCATION
Proximity to rich
limestone source,
availability of quality fuel
at the doorstep and a
presence in the market
place has resulted in an
edge in logistic costs.
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REVIEW OF THE

INDUSTRY

Review of the Indian economy
The Indian economy is the seventh-

Review of the Indian cement
industry

largest in the world in terms of nominal

India’s cement industry is an important

GDP and the third-largest in terms of

chain in the development of its

PPP. The economy recorded a GDP

economy, providing employment to

growth of 7.3% up from 6.9% in 2013-

more than a million people, directly or

14, slightly lower than the estimate of

indirectly. Ever since it was deregulated

7.4%.

in 1982, the Indian cement industry has

India overtook China to become the
world’s fastest growing economy by
registering a 7.5% GDP growth for the
January-March quarter, outstripping
China’s 7% growth during the same
quarter.
The IIP (Index of Industrial Production)
registered a growth of 2.8% in overall
industrial production during 201415. The production of the mining,
manufacturing and power sectors
increased by 1.4%, 2.3% and 8.4%
respectively during 2014-15.

attracted huge investments from both
Indian and foreign investors, making
it the second largest in the world. The
industry is currently in a turnaround
phase, trying to achieve global
standards in terms of production, safety
and energy-efficiency.
India is the second-largest cement
manufacturer as well as consumer in
the world. The country has a cumulative
cement manufacturing capacity of
nearly 366 million tonnes. The total
output of this sector accounts for
around 7% of the world’s aggregate
output and is poised to grow faster over
the years.
A total of 188 large cement plants
account for 97% of the total installed
capacity in the country, while 365 small
plants account for the rest. Of these
large cement plants, 77 are located in
the states of Andhra Pradesh, Rajasthan
and Tamil Nadu. The Indian cement
industry is dominated by the top-20
players who account for almost 70% of
the total cement production.
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India is the second-largest cement manufacturer
as well as consumer in the world. The country has a
cumulative cement manufacturing capacity of nearly 366
million tonnes. The total output of this sector accounts
for around 7% of the world’s aggregate output, and is
poised to grow faster over the years.

India’s cement consumption is expected
to grow at a CAGR of 7.4% over

The year 2014-15

October 2014. While cement demand

After witnessing an all-time low in

picked up in November 2014, the

FY14-17 as against a 5.5% CAGR seen

terms of demand and profitability in

growth in production remained muted

in FY11-14. This is on the back of an

FY14, the domestic cement industry

at 4.5% in Q3 FY15. Going forward,

expected pickup in demand in the

has shown signs of recovery in FY 15.

the overall demand prospects are likely

housing and infrastructure segments,

Growth in cement production picked up

to remain favourable following the

which account for ~60% and ~20% of

to 5.6% in FY15 as against 3.1% in last

economic resurgence particularly in the

the total cement demand, respectively.

year. The growth was driven by the base

infrastructure and private sectors.

The Central Government’s aim to

effect as well as a weak and delayed

ensure ‘Housing for All’ by 2022 entails

monsoon which extended the window

construction of 40 million houses in

for continuation of construction

rural areas and 20 million houses in

activities. Cement companies undertook

urban areas and is expected to trigger

substantial price hikes in October 2014

demand in the coming years.

and demand could not sustain at these

Though housing is expected to remain

price levels. Thus, all-India cement

the most significant demand driver,

production declined by 1% y-o-y in

growth in infrastructure activities is
expected to outpace growth in housing
over the next five years on account of
large investment in infra projects like
freight corridors (Western and Eastern),
railways, smart cities, metro rail
projects, roads and highways, among
others.

1 trillion

Proposed infrastructure
segment by 2020 (USD)

Why is North-Eastern India an attractive growth opportunity?
The region’s per capita cement consumption stands at 142 kg as compared to all India average of 210 kgs;
this suggests a huge potential
The pace of acceleration in Infrastructure projects in the areas of roads, rail and hydel power may prove to be
a game-changer for the industry.
No cement capacity additions are expected in the region in the near term.
Dependence on supply from mainland cement players is declining

15
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Demand drivers

200

mn tonnes

Incremental cement
demand by 2020

20,000

kms

Roads to be built by
2020 (generating cement
demand of 20 million
tonnes)

Revival of investment cycle: GCF

expected to rise to 87 by 2030, from 53

(Gross Capital Formation), an indicator

in 2011.

of investments in a country, has

Smart Cities: The Government of

remained below par in India over

India aims to usher in infrastructural

the last five or six years. This was

development to boost economic

primarily due to the stalling of projects

growth and, as a means to this end, is

in segments like infrastructure,

aiming to develop 100 smart cities. The

manufacturing, mining and power,

Government of India is in the process

among others. The stock of stalled

of launching a new urban development

projects at the end of December 2014

mission which will help develop 500

stood at H8.8 trillion (7% of the GDP),

cities with a population of more than

though the stock has come down from

100,000 and certain cities of religious

8.3% of the GDP in December 2013.

and tourism significance. These cities

Housing sector growth: Housing

will be encouraged to harness private

accounts for 60% of the total cement

capital through PPPs so as to bolster

demand in India while infrastructure

their infrastructure over the next

and industrial capex account for 20%

decade.

each. Thus, construction of houses in

Infrastructure sector: India is

rural and urban areas will remain the

expected to become the fourth largest

biggest driver of cement consumption.

infrastructure projects market in the

The government has initiated the

world by 2025. India is sixth globally

‘Housing for All by 2022’ programme

with a 5.3% share of the infrastructure

by virtue of which, 60 million pucca

market and by 2025 its share could go

houses will be constructed (40 million

up to 9.8%, taking it up to the fourth

in rural and 20 million in urban areas).

position. (Source: RICS report)

Cement demand from housing is
estimated to grow at a CAGR of 5.6%
during the FY15-22 period from 164
million tonnes in FY15 to 229 million
tonnes in FY22. Also, as the standards

16
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plus populations is rising steeply. It is

Total spending on infrastructure is
expected to increase by 18.6% during
2015-16 over the previous year
(according to Budget FY15-16).

of living of people continue to improve

With a proposed capital expenditure

and aspirations thrive, this percentage

of a whopping USD 1 trillion by

is bound to improve, which will drive

2020, the infrastructure industry’s

growth in cement offtake. Similarly,

prospects appear bright. Various

the number of cities with million-

development projects are together set

STAR FERRO AND CEMENT LIMITED
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India is expected to become
fourth largest infrastructure
projects market in the world by
2025.

to generate an incremental demand

Initiated the NMDP (National Maritime

Opening up the airport sector to

of 200 million tonnes of cement by

Development Programme) to develop

private participation, and six airports

2020. Infrastructure projects such as

the maritime sector with a planned

across major cities are being developed

dedicated freight corridors as well as

outlay of US$ 11.8 billion.

under the PPP model

new and upgraded airports and ports
are expected to further drive cement
demand.
Ports: With rising demand for port
infrastructure due to growing imports
(crude, coal) and containerization,
public ports could fall short of meeting
emerging demand. This makes it
imperative for private ports to increase
their capacities in line with the
forecasted demand and make the most
of the spillover. As a means to this end,
the government has:

Sanctioned 87 new port projects

Allowing 100%-FDI under the

over the last four years, entailing an

automatic route for greenfield projects

investment of H430 million.

and 49%-FDI for foreign carriers

Airports: The success of the PPP

(Source: IBEF)

model in the airports space has

Roads: With automobiles and freight

led to a significant improvement

movement also growing at a rapid

in infrastructure and collection of

rate, the necessity for a road network

revenues as per the Economic Survey

good enough to carry the traffic is

2014-15. During the April-December

paramount. Understanding this need,

period, 101.34 million domestic and

the Government of India has set aside

36.74 million international passengers

20% of the investment of US$ 1 trillion

were handled at Indian airports.

reserved for infrastructure during the

The aviation sector is witnessing a

Twelfth Five Year Plan (2012–17) period

Extended a 10-year tax holiday to

number of initiatives to improve airport

to develop the country’s roads. The

enterprises engaged in the business of

infrastructure across the country, these

Central Government has targeted the

developing, maintaining, and operating

include:

construction of 30 km of roads and

ports, inland waterways, and inland
ports

Investing US$ 11.4 billion during the
Twelfth Five Year Plan (2012-17) period

highways per day. Some of the key
investments and developments in the
Indian roads sector are as follows:

5,000 kms

Railway tracks to be built
by 2020 (generating
cement demand 14 million
tonnes)
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Formulation of a seven-phase

investments and developments in India’s

programme for the development of

railways sector:

National Highways in the country

Invest H8.56 lac crore for the 2015-19

Investment of H140 billion as per the

period

2015-16 Union Budget in the roads

Allocate H400 billion of budgetary

sector with a sanction of 1 lac km, in

support towards the Indian Railways

addition to the existing 1 lac km under

during FY15-16

construction.

Increase track length by 5,000 km by

Allocation of H200 billion towards the

2020

National Infrastructure and Investment
fund and announcement of tax-free

Expand the metro rail network in the

infra bonds to enable corporates to

country from 300 to 800 km by 2020

raise debt easily

via an investment of USD 16.7 billion
the and expected to go up to USD 42

Construction of concrete roads,

billion by FY2020

which will be beneficial for the cement

10,330

MW

Hydel power capacity to be
added by 2020 (generating
cement demand 28 million
tonnes)

industry as concrete roads consume

Develop the DFC (Dedicated Freight

70% more cement compared to

Corridor), the largest infrastructure

bitumen roads

project in India, connecting all metro

Launch of an online portal for concrete
roads where cement companies can
quote their rates and stock for sale
Railways: India’s railway network is
recognized as one of the largest railway

354

mn tonnes

Port capacity to be added
by 2020 (generating
cement demand 35 million
tonnes)

18
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systems in the world under a single
management. The Central Government
has focused on investing on railway
infrastructure by making investor-

cities, covering almost 4,500 km at a
total estimated cost of H960 billion
Complete the Western Corridor by
2018 and the Eastern by 2019 at an
estimated 70% of the total cost –
creating a potential cement demand
of 15 metric tonnes from each of them
(assuming 15% of the cement usage in
the civil work)

friendly policies. It has moved quickly

The North East potential:

to enable foreign direct investment

J3,000 crore and H1,000 crore,

in railways to improve infrastructure

respectively, have been allocated for

for freight and high-speed trains.

roads and railway development in this

At present, private companies are

region.

also looking to invest in rail projects.

10 Smart Cities are to be developed in

The following are some of the major

Assam (5), Sikkim (3) and Manipur (2).

STAR FERRO AND CEMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT

2014/15

A Guwahati Metro, spread over 196

megawatts costing USD 1.0 billion

The 2015-16 Union Budget has

km, has been proposed at an estimated

will generate a demand of 0.7 million

allocated H33,152 crore towards

cost of H1,800 crore.

tonnes of cement.

developing healthcare infrastructure

An IISER is scheduled to be established

Eastern India:

in Nagaland.

The Central Government is expected to

The Finance Minister has allocated
H33,152 crore as the health budget,

which includes setting up of an AIIMS
in Bihar.

allocate H1 lac crore towards Bihar for

Seven ports, costing USD 5 billion will

infrastructural development.

require a supply of 20 million tonnes of
cement.

which includes setting up of an AIIMS

USD 419 million has been announced

in Assam.

for Odisha - 77% higher than last year.

Nine airports have been allotted to be

This allocation triggers the expansion of

constructed at a cost of about $0.8

the railway network in the state which

billion and will generate a cement

will consequentially push up demand

demand of 0.6 million tonnes.

Six airports have been allotted to be
constructed, which will cost about
USD 0.5 billion and generate a cement
supply of 0.4 million tonnes.
Hydel projects of 5,626-megawatt
capacity are expected to come up which
will generate a cement demand of 12.7
million tonnes.
6,418 km of roads, costing USD 5
billion will give rise to a cement demand
of 10.8 million tonnes. Additional
power projects to the tune of 951

for cement.

Steel and hydel projects of 36

18 smart cities are to be developed in

million tonnes and 160 megawatts,

West Bengal (5), Bihar (5), Odisha (5)

respectively, will generate a cement

and Jharkhand (3).

demand of 5.1 and 0.5 million tonnes

The Eastern Freight Corridor,
connecting Ludhiana and Kolkata, is
to be spread over a distance of 1,839
km, out of which 631 km will fall in
the Eastern region. This will generate a

respectively. Additional power projects
to the tune of 32,115 megawatts
costing $31.7 billion will generate
a demand of 24.9 million tonnes of
cement.

staggering demand for cement.

100 mn tonnes
Cement demand from
irrigation projects by
2020

19

Persistence pays

BUSINESS DRIVER

OPERATIONS
Overview

Highlights 2014-15

Star Ferro and Cement Limited is the

Increased production from 16,64,037

largest cement manufacturing company

in 2013-14 to 21,71,666 metric tonnes

in the North-Eastern region with three

Increased sales from 16,31,047 metric

manufacturing units in Meghalaya and

tonnes in 2013-14 to 21,69,251 metric

one unit in Assam along with two hired

tonnes

units in West Bengal. The Company has
a cumulative cement manufacturing

Stabilized and operated the Guwahati

capacity of 3.40 million tonnes per

plant for the full year with a capacity

annum and clinkerization capacity of

utilization of 90% and clinkerization

2.54 million tonnes per annum.

unit with a capacity utilization of up to
89% (through a subsidiary).

The Company’s operational efficiency is
derived from access to limestone within

Around 81% of the overall production

2-3 kilometres from its Meghalaya

comprised superior PPC cement

manufacturing unit and coal within its

Maintained a market share of 23% for

proximity. In an industry marked by high

the North Eastern region

power consumption, Star Ferro invested
in 51-megawatt coal-powered captive
thermal power plant to meet 100% of
its power requirements across plants.

Launched the premium anti-rust
cement targeted at North-East and
Eastern markets

Road ahead
Going ahead, the Company aims
at enhancing its capacity utilization
further to meet demand from newer
geographies

87

Expected number
of cities with
million-plus
people
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The Company has a cumulative cement
manufacturing capacity of 3.40 million
tonnes per annum and clinkerization
capacity of 2.54 million tonnes per annum.
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BUSINESS DRIVER

MARKETING
Overview

Highlights 2014-15

The success of Star Ferro is majorly

Increased realizations by 5% over

of the Company’s total offtake

attributed to the creation of a strong

2013-14

Increased the number of distributors

Increased brand expenditure by 6.50%

to 2,026 from 1,368 in 2013-14 and

over 2013-14, largely owing to the

retailers to 5,000 from 4,000 in

initial aggressive branding initiatives in

2013-14

brand in the North Eastern region. The
Company has invested prudently over
the years to create a strong brand and
ensure a top-of-the-mind recall in the
North Eastern region. The Company
roped in celebrities from the region

the West Bengal and Bihar markets
Created a strong marketing team

Retail sales contributed to nearly 76%

Road ahead
Going ahead, the Company plans to

to endorse its brand and has been

Implemented attractive consumer-

deepen penetration in the existing

successful in garnering the highest

centric initiatives like ‘Kismat ki Bori’,

markets in tandem with establishing

market share.

‘DhanVarsha’ as well as gifts to dealers,

a footprint in the Eastern part of the

The Company provides on-site technical

masons and customers, among others

country.

support to customers through mobile

Initiated out-of-the box marketing

vans manned by experts. It has an

strategies to attract consumers –

SMS-based customer education helpline

advertisements in pan shops, local

and a 24-hour toll-free customer care

television channels, in addition to the

number.

traditional billboard advertisements

The Company advertised aggressively

Held Star Tech conferences – a unique

in the West Bengal and Bihar markets,

forum, which brought together

which added significantly to its topline

engineers, academicians and experts

and bottomline.

to discuss latest trends and industry
developments

200 bn

J

Allocated in national
infrastructure and
investment fund

The Company advertised
aggressively in the West Bengal
and Bihar markets, which added
significantly to its topline and
bottomline.
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RISK

MANAGEMENT

A slowdown in the downstream industries could impact the
Company’s performance.
Risk mitigation

for growth. Besides, the Company is

The North-Eastern region of the country

also focusing on the Eastern part of

has exhibited strong potential owing

the country where per capita cement

to a growing focus of the Central

consumption is a meagre 131 kg,

Government and the provision of a

thereby providing strong room for

non-lapsing central resource pool.

growth. On the other hand, West

The Vision 2020 and Look East Policy

Bengal, Bihar and Jharkhand together

aim to boost trade and relationships

account for an urban housing shortage

with neighbouring countries, thereby

of 2.52 million units (15% of the

opening up greater opportunities for

national housing shortage) and offer

infrastructural development. The per

a plethora of opportunities for the

capita cement consumption in the

construction sector.

region stood at 142 kg – considerably

Any inability to market its products

lower than the national average of

could impact offtake.

210 kg – highlighting significant room

Any inability to market its products could impact offtake.
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Risk mitigation

strategies like surrogate branding

Star Ferro spends nearly 3% of its

and presence in electronic media to

annual revenues towards marketing

target decision-makers like masons

and branding in a bid to emerge as the

and engineers. Besides, the Company

point of first recall in the North Eastern

interacts regularly with them through

and Eastern region. The Company

innovative engagements programmes to

leverages unique brand promotion

promote its products.
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Improper locations could impact business sustainability.
Risk mitigation

proximate to the units. The Company

The Company’s manufacturing units

also enjoys fiscal incentives helping it to

are located proximate to the best

transport its product cost-effectively to

quality limestone reserves in the

the key consumption centres.

country. Besides, the coal mines are also

Increased competition could dent profitability.
Risk mitigation

economies-of-scale. The Company’s Star

Star Ferro was one of the first-

Cement brand enjoys the largest market

movers in the North Eastern region

share in the North-Eastern region. The

to establish cement plants and has

Company’s captive power plant has

over the years created the largest

helped it emerge as one of the lowest-

manufacturing capacity in the region

cost cement manufacturers in the

and has capitalized on the resultant

region.

High operating costs could impact business sustainability.
Risk mitigation

which provides the Company with high

The Company invested in a captive

quality limestone cost-competitively.

power plant to reduce per tonne power

Besides, the Company enjoys various

cost in an industry known for high

fiscal subsidies to remain a low-cost

power consumption. The Company

manufacturer.

has also invested in a limestone mine

Inability to procure cost-competitive funds could affect
business sustainability.
Risk mitigation

equity ratio of 1.02 as on 31st March

The Company has a moderately

2015.

leveraged Balance Sheet with debt-
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Directors’ Report and
Management Discussion and Analysis
Dear Shareholders,
Your Directors have
pleasure in presenting the
Fifth Annual Report of the
Company together with the
Audited Balance Sheet as
at 31st March, 2015 and
the Statement of Profit and
Loss for the year ended on
that date.

SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT- DEMERGER OF FERRO ALLOY
BUSINESS
Pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement entered between the Company, Shyam
Century Ferrous Limited and their respective shareholders, duly approved by the
Hon’ble High Court of Meghalaya at Shillong vide its order dated 31st March, 2015,
the business of Ferro Alloy unit of your Company, along with captive power plant, has
been demerged and all assets and liabilities of the Ferro alloy business, including the
captive power plant attached thereto as also the investment in equity of Meghalaya
Power Limited have been transferred to and vested in Shyam Century Ferrous Limited
at their book value on going concern basis with effect from 1st April, 2014, the
appointed date of demerger as approved. The Scheme, although effective from 10th
April, 2015 – the date of filing of certified copy of the order with the Registrar of
Companies, has become operative from 1st April, 2014, being the appointed date.
The main objective of the demerger was to unlock shareholder value. In addition,
the demerger shall have focused attention on each segment and a more transparent
benchmarking of the companies with their peers in their respective industries,
enabling the investors to hold separate focused stocks.
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BUSINESS OF SUBSIDIARIES

If we compare this to other countries across the globe, the trend

Post demerger of Ferro Alloy Business, the performance of

was uneven and mixed. Europe has shown signs of pickup

your company mainly emanates from the business of your

and some positive momentum in the Euro area, reflecting

subsidiaries. Your direct subsidiary, M/s. Cement Manufacturing
Company Limited (CMCL), along with its subsidiaries M/s.
Megha Technical and Engineers Private Limited (MTEPL) and
Star Cement Meghalaya Limited (SCML), have the capacity to
produce 2.54 MMTPA of cement clinker and 2.87 MMTPA of
cement on a consolidated basis. M/s. Meghalaya Power Limited
(MPL), a subsidiary of CMCL is having a thermal power plant of
51 MW based at Lumshnong in Meghalaya. There has been no
significant business operation in NE Hills Hydro Limited, another
subsidiary of CMCL.

ECONOMY AND MARKET
Despite a mixed trend of growth noted in different parts of the
globe, the growth story of the Indian economy has started coming
back on the track. After long years of stagnation observed in the
Indian economy in the recent past, 2014-15 started showing
indications of consolidation and recovery. This is getting reflected
through various indicators – the annual growth rate of Gross
Domestic Product (GDP) was seen to improve to 7.5 per cent in
the last October-December quarter as against 6.4 per cent in the
October-December quarter of 2013. GDP growth in the first three
quarters of the FY15 has averaged at 7.4 per cent, on a year
on year basis. On the inflation side too, sustained efforts by the
government to control price rise coupled with falling crude prices
resulted in lower inflation pressure. Initiatives undertaken by the
government in the areas of unblocking of coal blocks, allocation
of telecom spectrum, deregulation of diesel prices resulting in
the reduced cost of import bills and the visible intent of the new

lower oil prices and supportive financial conditions. Economic
activity softened in emerging and developing Europe last year,
and more countries slipped into deflation. External demand
remains subdued and high corporate debt continues to weigh
on investment. Asia’s growth is expected to hold steady in 2015,
and the region is expected to continue outperforming the rest of
the world over the medium term. While the Chinese economy is
shifting to a more sustainable pace, growth is projected to pick
up elsewhere in the region.

INDIAN CEMENT INDUSTRY – RETROSPECT
AND OUTLOOK
In line with trend of recovery in the Indian economy as a whole,
Indian cement industry has also shown a trend of recovery during
FY 2014-15. After witnessing an all-time low demand and
profitability during the previous financial year, in the first nine
months of FY 2014-15 cement production has grown by 7.90%
as against 3.70% in the corresponding period last year and 3%
in FY 2013-14. Apart from other economic factors which helped
the economy as a whole to grow, the delayed monsoons which
extended the window for continuation of construction activities,
helped the cement industry in particular to grow during the year
under review.
The recent past has witnessed a slowdown in new capacity
addition in the cement industry due to demand constraints.
Between FY 2010-11 and FY 2013-14, the industry added 65
MTPA cement capacity as against 92 MTPA in the preceding
three-year period between FY 2007-08 and FY 2010-11.

government at the Centre to usher in reforms in the financial and

The slowdown in demand resulted in lower capacity utilisation

economic Sectors has boosted overall confidence of investors in

from 77% in FY12 to 72% in FY14 despite slowdown in fresh

the Indian economy.

capacity addition.
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The growth outlook for Indian cement industry remains positive

a base for India’s growing economic links not only with the

on the back of rising infrastructure activities, increasing demand

Association of South East Asian Nations (ASEAN) but also with

from the housing sector and recovery witnessed in construction

neighbouring countries, viz. Bangladesh, Bhutan, and Nepal.

industry. Owing to recent developments in the industry supported
by government initiatives in the form of considerable thrust and
importance assigned for the development of infrastructure, roads,
urban and rural housing, ports, ultra mega power projects, etc.,
the demand outlook remains positive in the years to come.
During the next three years, it is expected that demand will grow
by more than 8%, leading to an increase in the rate of capacity
utilisation from 72% in FY14 to 75% in FY16. The capacity
utilisation is likely to further improve to 79% in FY17.

The North East Region (NER) is a land of opportunities, with
huge potential for growth and development. On the Hydropower
front, the region of North East is said to be ‘The Powerhouse of
India’. It has been estimated that North Eastern States including
Sikkim have a potential of 84,000 MW of hydropower which is
about 43% of the total hydropower generation capacity in the
country. Conversely, only 5% of its potential has been harnessed
so far. The Central Government is promoting private sector in the
region to boost investment in the power sector and about 14,000

The major cost drivers of the cement industry being logistics

MW has already been allotted to private players in NER as part of

cost, power and fuel remained under pressure. Falling crude oil

the “50,000 MW Hydro Initiative”.

prices in the international market coupled with deregulation of
diesel prices in the country resulted in the availability of diesel at
lower prices. However, an increase in the rates of railway freight
has offset this benefit. Timely availability of railway rakes was
another constraint which the industry as a whole had to face on
the logistics front. Price and availability of quality coal remained
a constraint for the industry during the year under review too.
Non-availability of coal to power plants resulted in restricted
power supply, which had implications on power cost. However,

Road is an important mode of travel in the hilly areas as other
modes of travel are either too expensive or difficult. The road
infrastructure is relatively deficient in the NER. To address this,
the Ministry of Road Transport and Highways has been paying
special attention to the development of national highways in the
region. The Ministry has earmarked 10% of the total allocation
for the NE Region. Sufficient funds have also been allocated in
building the road infrastructure in the NE states.

unblocking of coal blocks in the recent past is likely to help both

The coverage of railways still remains poor in the region. The

the power and cement industry.

Ministry of Railways has undertaken a lot of gauge conversion
and new line projects in the North Eastern region. At present,

CEMENT SCENARIO – EAST

there are 7 new lines, 6 gauge conversion, 2 doubling and 3

Looking at the huge potential and opportunities in the North

railway electrification ongoing railway projects under North

Eastern Region (NER) as a whole, NER markets continue to

Eastern Railway. New railway lines on Azra-Byrnihat, Dudhnoi-

remain the focus market for cement subsidiaries of your Company.

Mehendi Pather and Byrnihat-Shillong routes in Meghalaya

In line with the trend of slowdown in economic activities in

are under construction. The construction of the extension of

the rest of the country, the economic activities in NER also

a vital broad gauge rail link between Bairabi rail terminus on

witnessed a slower pace of growth, though faster than the rest of

the Mizoram-Assam border and Sairang, a village 20 km west

the country, owing to its underdeveloped status in recent years.

of Aizawl, is in progress. In Sikkim, rail connectivity is being

NER represents 9% of India’s geographical area and contributes

created between Rangpoo and Siliguri in West Bengal. A railway

3% to the country’s gross domestic product (GDP). In relative

track is also to be laid for connecting Agartala with Akhaura in

terms, it is one of India’s economically underdeveloped regions.

Bangladesh.

However, given its natural resources base and strategic location,
NER has the potential to become India’s powerhouse in terms of
trade and investment. Although the NER is rich in resources like
hydrocarbons and other minerals and has immense potential to
produce hydroelectricity, absence of adequate infrastructure has
impeded its development.

All the above infrastructure development projects are expected
to convert to huge cement demand in NER. On the retail side of
demand, with increased focus on housing sector, retail demand in
the region is likely to get a boost. Per capita cement consumption
in NER is the lowest in the country, presenting huge potential
for cement demand. In line with the trend of Indian economy,

Owing to its geographical location, NER is unique in terms of

the per capita income and disposable surplus has seen a rising

the economic opportunities it offers. About 98% of the region’s

trend in NER as well. This has led to a boost in retail housing

borders form India’s international boundaries. It shares borders

sector too.

with China, Bangladesh, Bhutan and Myanmar. Given its
strategic location, the region has potential to be developed as
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In the backdrop of the above, NER presents huge opportunities
for cement demand in the North Eastern Region. As mentioned
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earlier, CMCL and its subsidiaries have been able to register a
growth of 5.78% in the sale of cement in NER during the year
under review over previous years. On the capacity side, there is
no major cement capacity in the pipeline in NER. In the backdrop
of potential demand growth expected to come in NER owing to
ongoing and upcoming infrastructure projects coupled with a
surge in retail demand, CMCL, along with its subsidiaries, enjoys
a strategic advantage of having surplus capacity in the region.
Keeping its strong foothold intact in the markets of NER and
consolidating its position further, your Company, through its
subsidiaries, is expanding its reach in other parts of Eastern
India in the states of West Bengal and Bihar. As compared to
the rest of India, the Eastern part is still underdeveloped in terms
of infrastructure and also in the housing sector. The per capita
consumption of cement in West Bengal, Bihar and Jharkhand
is much lower compared to the rest of India. Capitalising on the
growth opportunities existing in these Eastern states, Cement
Manufacturing Company Limited, a subsidiary of your Company,

improved its market share during the year under review.
CMCL, subsidiary of your Company, has also added to its
product portfolio value-added features and has recently launched
its newly developed Anti-Rust Cement in the markets of NER.
The product is presently under test marketing and is expected to
present a better volume in years to come.
Your Directors are pleased to report that markets of West Bengal
and Bihar have responded well to the product of your subsidiary,
STAR CEMENT, in terms of demand and acceptability. During
the year under review, markets of West Bengal and Bihar
recorded a sales volume of 670,871 MT of cement as against
214,622 MT during the FY 2013-14, registering more than
200% growth. In order to cater to the needs of markets of West
Bengal, Bihar and adjoining state Jharkhand, CMCL has tied up
with two grinding units in West Bengal to augment its capacity,
in addition to supplying cement to these markets from its own
units located in Assam and Meghalaya.

had launched its product during later part of FY 2013-14 and

The expansion of dealer and retail network in NER, especially

during the year under review has been able to make the presence

in rural and semi-urban areas of the region, has remained in

of its brand, Star Cement, felt in these states. To augment on

focus during the year under review too. CMCL, along with its

the capacity front, the subsidiary has made arrangements with

subsidiary MTEPL, has added more than 500 dealers and more

grinding units in West Bengal. With strategically located clinker

than 1000 sub-dealers to the family. The strong dealer and retail

manufacturing facility in Meghalaya, having access to quality

network in NER and in the markets of West Bengal and Bihar

limestone and quality fuel at a relatively lower cost, the grinding

coupled with huge branding activities has resulted in better

unit arrangement in West Bengal presents a strategic advantage

product placement, acceptability and top-of-the-mind recall for

to its subsidiaries to compete with relatively more established

the product, STAR CEMENT. On the back of strong dealer and

players in these states. The Company is expecting even better

retail network with consistency in product quality followed up by

volumes in these markets in the ensuing financial year and years

branding activities, your company expects improved performance

to come.

in the market in the ensuing financial year.

MARKET DEVELOPMENTS

POWER BUSINESS

During FY 2014-15, CMCL, along with its subsidiaries, continued

During the year under review, the performance of Meghalaya

to enjoy brand leadership position in the markets of North

Power Limited, a step down subsidiary of the Company was very

Eastern Region (NER). With more stabilised operations of the

optimistic. The power generation has increased to 1,679.23

newly commissioned Cement Grinding Unit of CMCL at Sonapur,

lac units as compared to 1,465.74 lac units recorded in the

Guwahati and clinkerisation unit of SCML at Lumshnong in

previous year. During FY 2014-15, the Company posted PBT of

Meghalaya coupled with concerted marketing efforts, subsidiaries

H1,287.38 lac and PAT of H546.55 lac as against H284.29 lac

of your Company were able to achieve the highest ever volume

and H151.33 lac recorded in the previous financial year.

in the markets of NER on a consolidated basis. During the year
under review, the total sale in NER stood at 14,98,380 MT as
against 14,16,426 MT in FY 2013-14, registering a growth of
5.78% over the previous year. During the first half of the year
under review, there was a slowdown in cement demand in NER
which started picking up in the third quarter; the last quarter
of the year closed at a very healthy note in terms of demand
pick-up. The focused approach of the subsidiary to expand its

OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS
With the Government’s initiative to develop infrastructure sector
including construction and housing sectors, the demand for the
cement industry has adequate potential for development. The
Government’s thrust on development of urban and rural housing,
ports, ultra mega power projects etc., the demand outlook
remains positive in the years to come.

reach in the urban and semi-urban markets of NER resulted in

Logistics cost accounting for majority of the costs incurred

consolidating the presence of brand Star Cement and further

by the industry, power and fuel remained under pressure.
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Non-availability of coal to power plants, price of coal and the

Ferro Alloy Division with effect from 1st April, 2014, being the

inadequate availability of quality coal restricted power supply

appointed date and are not comparable with Financial Results

and, in turn, affected power costs. Unblocking of coal blocks did,

for the year 2013-14.

however, help both the power and cement industries.

The highlights of the financial performance of the Company
for the financial year ended 31st March, 2015 and previous

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
Financial Statements for the year ended on 31st March, 2015

financial year are as under:

have been drawn after considering the effect of the demerger of
(H in lacs)
Particulars

Consolidated

Standalone

2014-15

2013-14

2014-15

2013-14

143,121.01

1,17,587.81

0.10

15,318.86

43,584.75

25,745.67

(138.55)

2848.06

(22,374.29)

(16,163.64)

-

(480.46)

(8,738.47)

(8,721.20)

0.03

(399.57)

1.83

(101.21)

-

9.56

12,473.82

759.62

(138.58)

1,977.58

(480.13)

(270.80)

-

(404.35)

Profit after Tax before Minority Interest

11,993.69

488.82

(138.58)

1,573.23

Less: Minority Interest

(3,650.03)

(123.63)

-

-

8,343.66

612.44

-

-

37,165.12

37,994.31

180.20

(558.86)

8,343.66

612.44

(138.58)

1,573.23

-Less: Interim Dividend on Equity Shares

-

1,042.52

-

733.17

-Less: Tax on Interim Equity Dividend

-

178.11

-

-

(670.55)

-

-

-

-

221.00

-

101.00

44,838.23

37,165.12

41.61

180.20

Net Sales/ Income
Profit Before Depreciation, Interest and Tax
Depreciation
Interest and Finance Charges
Exceptional Items
Profit Before Tax
Tax Expenses

Net profit after Minority Interest
Surplus in the Statement of Profit and Loss:
At the beginning of the year
Add: Profit for the year

-Less: Tax on Proposed Equity Dividend
-Less: Transfer to General Reserve
Balance at the end of the year

SHARE CAPITAL

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

The paid up Equity Share Capital as on March 31, 2015 was

During the year, six (6) Board Meetings and five (5) Audit

H2,221.73 lacs. During the year under review, the Company has

Committee Meetings were convened and held. The intervening

not issued shares with differential voting rights nor granted stock

gap between the Meetings was within the period prescribed under

options or sweat equity shares.

the Companies Act, 2013. The details of the Board meeting and

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

the Committee meeting are provided in the Corporate Governance
Report.

In terms of requirement of Section 134(3)(a) of the Companies
Act, 2013, the extract of the Annual return in form MGT-9 is

MEETINGS OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

annexed herewith and marked Annexure 1.

During the year under review, a meeting of Independent Directors
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was held on 19th March, 2015 wherein the performance

the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and

of the Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whole

other irregularities;

was reviewed. The Independent Directors at their meeting
also assessed the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of

•

information between the Company management and the Board
of Directors of the Company.

The Directors have prepared the Annual Accounts on going
concern basis;

•

The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure
compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD
The composition and terms of reference of the Audit Committee,
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Share Transfer

that such systems were adequate and operating effectively;
•

be followed by the Company and that such internal financial

cum Stakeholders Relationship Committee has been furnished in

controls are adequate and were operating effectively.

the Corporate Governance Report forming a part of this Annual
Report. There has been no instance where the Board has not
accepted the recommendations of the Audit Committee and
Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY/VIGIL
MECHANISM
The Company has formed a Whistle Blower Policy/Vigil
Mechanism as required under Section 177 of the Companies Act,
2013 and Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement. A Vigil (Whistle
Blower) mechanism provides a channel to the employees and
Directors to report to the management concerns about unethical
behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the codes
of conduct or policy. The mechanism provides for adequate
safeguards against victimisation of employees and Directors to
avail of the mechanism and also provide for direct access to

The Directors have laid down internal financial controls to

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS
All Independent Directors have given declarations that they meet
the criteria of independence as laid down under Section 149(6)
of the Companies Act, 2013. Mr. Manindra Nath Banerjee,
Mr. Santanu Ray, Mr. Mangilal Jain and Mrs. Plistina Dkhar
are Independent Directors on the Board of your Company. In
the opinion of the Board and as confirmed by these Directors,
they fulfil the conditions specified in Section 149 of the Act and
the Rules made thereunder about their status as Independent
Directors of the Company.

FAMILIARISATION PROGRAMME
UNDERTAKEN FOR INDEPENDENT
DIRECTORS
In order to enable the Independent Directors to perform their duties

the Chairman of the Audit Committee in exceptional cases. The

optimally, the Board has devised a familiarisation programme for

said policy may be referred to at the Company’s website at the

the Independent Directors to familiarise them with the Company,

web link: http://www.starferrocement.co.in/admin/docs/Whistle-

their roles, rights, responsibilities in the Company, nature of

Blower-Policy.pdf.

the industry in which the Company operates, business model

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 134(3)(c) read with
Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Directors
hereby confirm and state that:
•

•

development which takes place in the Company. The Independent
Directors have been issued Letters of Appointment setting out
in detail, the terms of appointment, duties, responsibilities and
commitments etc. The familiarisation programme is available

In the preparation of Annual Accounts, the applicable

on the Company’s website under the web link: http://www.

Accounting Standards have been followed along with the

starferrocement.co.in/admin/docs/Familiarisation-Programme.

proper explanation relating to material departures, if any;

pdf.

The Directors have selected such accounting policies and

POLICY ON APPOINTMENT AND
REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

have applied them consistently and made judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at
31st March, 2015 and of the profit of the Company for the
year under review;
•

of the Company, etc. They are periodically updated about the

The Board has framed a Remuneration Policy for selection,
appointment and remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel

and

Senior

Management

Employees.

The

Remuneration Policy aims to enable the company to attract,

The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the

retain and motivate highly qualified members for the Board and

maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance

other executive levels. It seeks to enable the Company to provide

with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of

a well-balanced and performance-related compensation package,
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taking into account shareholder interests, industry standards and

at the web link http://www.starferrocement.co.in/admin/docs/

relevant Indian corporate regulations. The details on the same

Related-Party-Transaction-Policy.pdf.

are given in the Corporate Governance Report.

AUDITORS AND AUDITORS’ REPORT
M/s. Kailash B. Goel and Co., Chartered Accountants, Statutory
Auditors (Firm Registration no. 322460E) of the Company, will

RESERVES
During the year under review, no amount was transferred to
reserves.

retire at the conclusion of the ensuing Annual General Meeting

DIVIDEND

of the Company. Being eligible, they have offered themselves for

Keeping in view the tight liquidity position in the market and in

re-appointment and have confirmed that their appointment, if

order to conserve funds for working capital needs, your Directors

made, will be in accordance with the provisions of Section 141

do not recommend any dividend for the FY 2014-15.

read with Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules
framed thereunder for re-appointment of auditors. Members are
requested to approve and ratify their appointment. Members are
also requested to empower the Board of Directors for fixing the
Auditor’s Remuneration.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY AND
TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION
In view of the transfer of Ferro Alloy business of the Company,
there is nothing to report under this segment.

The notes to the accounts referred to in the Auditors’ Report

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING AND OUT-GO

are self-explanatory and, therefore, do not call for any further

During the year under review, there was no foreign exchange

comments.

earning and out-go.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act,

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
INITIATIVES (CSR)

2013 and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of

Your Company’s Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy is

Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company has appointed.

committed towards improving the quality of life of communities

Mr. Manoj Kumar Banthia, Practising Company Secretary of M/s.

by working on four thrust areas – employability, education,

M K B & Associates, a firm of Company Secretaries in Practice, to

health and environment.

undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company. The Secretarial
Audit Report is annexed herewith and marked Annexure 2.
The report is self-explanatory and does not call for any further
comments.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR
INVESTMENTS

During the year under review, the Company has constituted
the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee as per the
requirements of Section 135 of the Companies Act 2013. The
Committee is headed by Mr. Sajjan Bhajanka, Director of your
Company and consists of members as stated below:
Name

Category

During the year under review, your Company has not given any
loan or guarantee to any person falling under the ambit of Section
186 of the Companies Act, 2013.
Details of investments covered under the provisions of Section
186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are given in the notes to the
Financial Statements.

Chairman/
Members

Mr. Sajjan Bhajanka

Non-Independent

Chairman

Mr. Mangilal Jain

Independent

Member

Mr. Hari Prasad

Non-Independent

Member

Agarwal
Annual Report on CSR, as required to be annexed in terms of

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

requirement of Section 135 of Companies Act, 2013 and rules

During the year under review, there were no materially significant

framed thereunder, is annexed herewith and marked Annexure-

related party transactions made by the Company with Promoters,

3.

Key Managerial Personnel or other designated persons which
may have potential conflict with interests of the Company at
large.
A policy on Related Party Transactions has been devised by the
Company which may be referred to at the Company’s website

The CSR Policy of the Company is available on the Company’s
website under the web link: http://www.starferrocement.co.in/
admin/docs/CSR-Policy.pdf.

EVALUATION OF THE BOARD’S PERFORMANCE
In compliance with the Companies Act, 2013 and Clause 49
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of the Listing Agreement, the Company has adopted a policy for

Nomination and Remuneration Committee, appointed Mr.

evaluation of performance of the Board of Directors. The Board

Sanjay Kumar Gupta as Chief Executive Officer and Mr. Dilip

follows a formal mechanism for the evaluation of the performance

Kumar Agarwal as Chief Financial Officer with effect from

of the Board as well as Committee.

20th September, 2014 and Mr. Debabrata Thakurta has been

A structured questionnaire was prepared after taking into
consideration inputs received from the Directors, covering

appointed as Company Secretary with effect from 13th August,
2014.

various aspects of the Board’s functioning such as adequacy of

The following personnel are Key Managerial Personnel of the

the composition of the Board and its Committees, Board culture,

Company:

execution and performance of specific duties, obligations and
governance.
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee at its meeting
established the criteria based on which the Board will evaluate
the performance of the Directors.
A separate exercise was carried out to evaluate the performance
of individual Directors including the Chairman of the Board,

Name

Chairman/ Members

Mr. Sanjay Kumar Gupta

Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Dilip Kumar Agarwal

Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Debabrata Thakurta

Company Secretary

SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES
Consequent to the Scheme of Arrangement being effective, the

on parameters such as level of engagement and contribution,

Company’s investment in Meghalaya Power Limited has been

independence of judgement, safeguarding the interest of the

transferred to and vested in Shyam Century Ferrous Limited.

Company and its minority shareholders, etc. The performance
evaluation of the Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a
whole was also carried out by the Independent Directors.

Cement Manufacturing Company Limited (CMCL), Star Cement
Meghalaya Limited (SCML), Megha Technical and Engineers
Private Limited (MTEPL), Meghalaya Power Limited (MPL) and

The Directors expressed their satisfaction over the evaluation

NE Hills Hydro Limited (NHHL) continued to be the subsidiaries

process and results thereof.

of your Company. CMCL, along with its subsidiaries, operates

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL
PERSONNEL
During the year under review, Mr. Hari Prasad Agarwal resigned
as Managing Director of the Company with effect from 1st
September, 2014 and is continuing as Non-Executive member
of the Board. In accordance with the provisions of Companies

integrated cement plants in the states of Meghalaya and Assam
with a combined installed capacity of 2.87 MMTPA of cement
and 2.54 MMTPA of clinker. MPL is in the business of power
generation and operates 51 MW Power Plant in the state of
Meghalaya. NHHL is exploring possibilities of power generation
in the North Eastern region of India.

Act, 2013 and in terms of the Memorandum and Articles of

A Policy has been formulated for determining the Material

Association of the Company, Mr. Hari Prasad Agarwal will retire

Subsidiaries of the Company pursuant to Clause 49 of the

by rotation and, being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchanges. The said Policy has

In view of his considerable experience, your Directors recommend

been posted on the Company’s website at the web link http://

his re-appointment as a Director of the Company.

www.starferrocement.co.in/admin/docs/Policy-On-Material-

The shareholders have ratified the appointment of Mr. Manindra
Nath Banerjee, Mr. Santanu Ray, Mr. Mangilal Jain and Mrs.
Plistina Dkhar as Independent Directors at the Annual General
Meeting held on 20th September, 2014 for a period of five years.

Subsidairy.pdf.

POLICY ON PREVENTION
HARASSMENT

OF

SEXUAL

The Company values the integrity and dignity of its employees.

During the year under review Mr. Ravi Prakash Mundhra,

The Company has put in place a ‘Policy on Prevention of

Company Secretary, and Mr. Om Prakash Lohia, Chief Financial

Sexual Harassment’ as per the Sexual Harassment of Women

Officer, resigned from the services of the Company with effect

at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013

from 9th August, 2014 and 28th August, 2014 respectively.

(“Sexual Harassment Act”). We affirm that adequate access

The Board places on record their appreciation for the services

has been provided to any complainants who wish to register a

and contribution made by them during their tenure.

complaint under the policy. No complaint was received during

The Board of Directors had, on the recommendation of the

the year.

31

Persistence pays

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE
COMPANY’S SUBSIDIARIES

The Internal Audit Department of the Company periodically
reviews the effectiveness and efficacy of Internal Control

Pursuant to Sub-section (3) of Section 129 of the Act, the

Systems and procedures. Audits are finalised and conducted

statement containing the salient features of the financial

based on internal risk assessments. Significant deviations from

statements for the year ended March 31, 2015 for each of the

the standard procedures are brought to the notice of the Board

Company’s subsidiaries viz. Cement Manufacturing Company

periodically and corrective measures are recommended for

Limited (CMCL), Star Cement Meghalaya Limited (SCML), Megha

implementation. All these steps facilitate timely detection of any

Technical and Engineers Private Limited (MTEPL), Meghalaya

irregularities, frauds and errors and early remedial measures to be

Power Limited (MPL) and NE Hills Hydro Limited (NHHL) are

undertaken so that no monetary losses are sustained. Significant

annexed in the Form AOC – 1 and marked as Annexure-4.

audit observations and corrective actions thereon are presented
to the Audit Committee of the Board.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company have

MANAGERIAL REMUNERATION

been prepared as per Accounting Standards – AS 21, as

Disclosures with respect to the remuneration of Directors

prescribed by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India,

and employees as required under Section 197 of Companies

and has been included as a part of this Annual Report.

Act, 2013 and Rule 5 (1) Companies (Appointment and

The detailed financial statements and audit reports of each of
the subsidiaries of the Company are available for inspection
at the Registered Office of the Company during office hours
between 11 A.M. and 1 P.M. As per the provisions of Section

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is annexed
herewith and marked Annexure- 5.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES
The Company has no employee whose remuneration exceeds

136 of the Companies Act, 2013, separate audited financial

the limit prescribed under Section 197 of the Companies Act,

statements of its subsidiaries are being placed on its website

2013 read with Rule 5(2) of The Companies (Appointment and

www.starferrocement.co.in and the Company will arrange to

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

send the financial statements of the subsidiaries upon written
request from the shareholders to their registered address.

DEPOSITS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The Company has complied with the Corporate Governance
requirements as stipulated under the Listing Agreement with the

During the year under report, the Company has not accepted any

Stock Exchanges. A separate Section on Corporate Governance,

deposits from public or from any of the Directors of the Company

along with a certificate from the auditors confirming the

or their relatives falling under the ambit of Section 73 of the

compliance, is annexed and forms part of the Annual Report.

Companies Act, 2013.

This certificate will be forwarded to the Stock Exchanges along

CHANGES IMPACTING GOING CONCERN
STATUS AND COMPANY’S OPERATIONS
During the year under review, there have been no material orders
passed by the Regulators/Courts impacting materially the going

with the Annual Report of the Company.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (CEO) /CHIEF
FINANCIAL OFFICER (CFO) CERTIFICATION
As required under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, the CEO/

concern status or future operations of the Company except the

CFO certification has been submitted to the Board and a copy

order passed by the Hon’ble Meghalaya High Court in respect of

thereof is contained in this Annual Report.

Scheme of Arrangement as mentioned in the foregoing paragraph.

ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL
CONTROL

GREEN INITIATIVES IN CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE
Ministry of Corporate Affairs has permitted Companies to send

The Company maintains a comprehensive internal control

copies of Annual report, Notices, etc., electronically to the

system commensurate with the size of its operations and

email IDs of shareholders. Your Company has arranged to send

monitoring procedure for all the major processes to ensure

the soft copies of these documents to registered email IDs of

reliability of financial reporting, timely feedback on achievement

shareholders, wherever applicable. In case any shareholder

of operational and strategic goals, compliance with policies,

would like to receive physical copies of these documents, the

procedures, laws and regulations, safeguarding of assets and

same shall be forwarded upon receipt of written request in this

economical and efficient use of resources.

respect.
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HUMAN RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT AND
INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

optimum levels, economies-of-scale will start optimising the
overall cost structure. Besides, the team is continuously striving

The Company has always provided a congenial atmosphere for

to minimise power and logistics costs (significant expense heads)

work to all Sections of society. It has provided equal opportunities

through a differentiated strategy which is expected to yield results

of employment to all irrespective of caste, religion, colour, marital

during the current year.

status and sex. The Company believes that the human capital of
the Company is its most valuable assets and its human resource
policies are aligned towards this objective.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
Your Directors take this opportunity to express their deep sense
of gratitude to the banks, Central and State Governments and

The Company focuses on enhancing organisational performance

their departments and the local authorities, customers, vendors,

by focusing on quick grievance resolution mechanisms and

business partners/associates and Stock Exchanges for their

maintaining cordial relations with employees and workmen

continued guidance and support.

across all levels. The relation amongst its employees remained
harmonious and the year under review remained free from any
labour unrest.

Your Directors would also like to place on record their sincere
appreciation for the commitment, dedication and hard work
put in by every member of the Company, and recognise their

Pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement, the employees relating

contribution towards the Company’s achievements. Your Directors

to the Ferro alloys business have been transferred to the resultant

express their gratitude to the shareholders of the Company for

company, M/s Shyam Century Ferrous Limited.

reposing their confidence and trust in the Management of the

RISK MANAGEMENT
The Company has evolved a risk management framework to
identify, assess and mitigate the key risk factors of the business.

Company.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT
Statements in this report describing the Company’s objectives,

The Board of the Company is kept informed about the risk

expectations or predictions, may be forward-looking within

management of the Company.

the meaning of applicable securities laws and regulations.

Key risks impacting the cement business:

Actual results may differ materially from those expressed in the

Excess cement capacity in the region could dampen the growth

statement. Important factors that could influence the Company’s

prospects for the Company.

operations include: global and domestic demand and supply

Mitigation: The Company’s entrenched presence in the geography
has created a brand loyalty among discerning customers. Besides,
the speedy clearance of bottlenecked projects provides optimism
for increased offtake over the coming months. The Company has
successfully established the Star Cement brand in the markets

conditions affecting selling prices, new capacity additions,
availability of critical materials and their cost, changes in
government policies and tax laws, economic development of the
country, and other factors which are material to the business
operations of the Company.

of West Bengal and Bihar. Furthermore, Bangladesh provides
a good business opportunity for the Company as infrastructure
development continues to get the Bangladeshi government’s
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

favour. Moreover, the nation does not have its own supply of
limestone and cannot produce clinker domestically – it imports
about 10-15 million tonnes of clinker annually.

SAJJAN BHAJANKA

Inflationary headwinds could dampen business margins.

Place: Kolkata

Mitigation: With the operation of new capacities reaching their

Date: 7th May, 2015

Chairman
(DIN: 00246043)
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Annexure 1 to Directors’ Report
Form No. MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
As on the Financial Year ended on 31st March, 2015
[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:
CIN

L27310ML2011PLC008564

Registration Date

Company incorporated on 10th March, 2011

Name of the Company

Star Ferro and Cement Limited

Category / Sub-Category of the Company

Company limited by Shares

Address of the Registered Office and contact details

Village: Lumshnong, PO: Khaliehriat, Dist.: East Jaintia Hills,
Meghalaya – 793210
Phone No.: 03655-278215

Whether listed company

Yes

Name, Address and contact details of Registrar and Transfer

Maheshwari Datamatics Private Limited

Agents (RTA), if any

6, Mangoe Lane (Surendra Mohan Ghosh Lane)
2nd Floor, Kolkata – 700 001
Phone: 033 2248 2248

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the Company shall be stated.
Name and Description

NIC Code of the

% to total turnover

of main products /services

Product/ service

of the company

Not Applicable

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES Name and Address of the

CIN/GLN

Holding / Subsidiary /

% of shares

Applicable

Associate

held

Section

U26942ML2001PLC006663

Subsidiary

70.48

2(87)

Star Cement Meghalaya Limited

U63090ML2005PLC008011

Step down Subsidiary

NIL

2(87)

Megha Technical and Engineers

U27107ML2002PTC006976

Step down Subsidiary

NIL

2(87)

Meghalaya Power Limited

U40108ML2002PLC006921

Step down Subsidiary

NIL

2(87)

NE Hills Hydro Limited

U40104WB2007PLC116195

Step down Subsidiary

NIL

2(87)

Company
Cement Manufacturing
Company Limited

Private Limited
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VI. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)
(i) Category-wise Share Holding
Category of
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the
beginning of the year
Demat

Physical

Total

No. of Shares held at the
end of the year
% of Total
Shares

Demat

Physical

%
Change
during
the
year

Total

% of Total
Shares

- 108360576

48.77

(4.41)

-

-

A. Promoters
(1) Indian
(a) Individual/HUF

118156596

(b) Central Govt

- 118156596
-

-

53.18 108360576
-

-

-

-

(c) State Govt (s)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(d) Bodies Corp.

39329080

-

39329080

17.70

39329080

-

39329080

17.70

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

- 147689656

66.47

(4.41)

(e) Banks / FI
(f) Any Other
Sub-total (A) (1):-

157485676

- 157485676

70.88 147689656

(2) Foreign
(a) NRIs - Individuals

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(b) Other - Individuals

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(c) Bodies Corp.

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(d) Banks / FI

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(e) Any Other

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Sub-total (A) (2):-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

- 147689656

66.47

(4.41)

-

Total shareholding of
Promoter
(A) = (A)(1)+(A)(2)

157485676

- 157485676

70.88 147689656

B. Public Shareholding
1. Institutions
(a) Mutual Funds

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(b) Banks / FI

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(c) Central Govt

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(d) State Govt(s)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(e) Venture Capital
Funds

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(f) Insurance Companies
(g) FIIs
(h) Foreign Venture
Capital Funds
(i) Others (specify)
Sub-total (B)(1):-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

771202

-

771202

0.35

249170

-

249170

0.11

(0.24)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

771202

-

771202

0.35

249170

-

249170

0.11

(0.24)

19087138

16500

19103638

8.60

20685188

16500

20701688

9.31

0.71

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

5706339

1190486

6896825

3.10

6506766

930689

7437455

3.35

0.25

2. Non-Institutions
(a) Bodies Corp.
(i) Indian
(ii) Overseas
(b) Individuals
(i) Individual
shareholders holding
nominal share capital
upto H1 lakh
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Category of
Shareholders

(ii) Individual
shareholders holding
nominal share capital in
excess of H1 lakh

No. of Shares held at the
beginning of the year

No. of Shares held at the
end of the year

%
Change
during
the
year

Demat

Physical

Total

% of Total
Shares

Demat

Physical

Total

% of Total
Shares

33506974

-

33506974

15.08

45875200

-

45875200

20.65

5.57

4259060

-

4259060

1.92

56460

-

56460

0.02

(1.90)

40865

-

40865

0.02

53111

-

53111

0.02

-

-

108750

0.05

110250

-

(c) Others
1. Clearing member
2. Non-resident
individual
3. Trusts

110250

0.05

-

Sub-total (B)(2):-

62709126

108750

1206986 63916112

28.77 73286975

947189 74234164

33.41

4.64

Total Public
Shareholding
(B)=(B)(1)+(B)(2)

63480328

1206986 64687314

29.12 73536145

947189 74483334

33.52

4.40

-

-

-

947189 222172990

100.00

-

C. Shares held by
Custodian for GDRs
and ADRs

-

Grand Total (A+B+C) 220966004

-

-

1206986 222172990

-

-

100.00 221225801

-

(ii) Shareholding of Promoters
Sl
Category of
No. Shareholders

Shareholding at the beginning
of the year
No. of
Shares

Shareholding at the
end of the year

% of % of Shares
total
Pledged /
Shares encumbered
of the
to total
company
shares

No. of
Shares

% of % of Shares
total
Pledged /
Shares encumbered
of the
to total
company
shares

% change
In share
holding
during
the year

1.

SANJAY AGARWAL

23788740

10.71

-

19539245

8.79

-

(1.92)

2.

SAJJAN BHAJANKA

23371570

10.52

-

16772675

7.55

-

(2.97)

3.

PREM KUMAR BHAJANKA

22125176

9.96

1.35

27369386

12.32

1.35

2.36

4.

SANTOSH BHAJANKA

15649500

7.04

-

15049500

6.77

-

(0.27)

5.

DIVYA AGARWAL

16749750

7.54

-

14488750

6.52

-

(1.02)

6.

SRIRAM VANIJYA PVT. LTD.

8502180

3.83

-

8502180

3.83

-

-

7.

BRIJDHAM MERCHANTS PVT. LTD.

7743990

3.49

-

7743990

3.49

-

-

8.

SUMANGAL INTERNATIONAL PVT. LTD.

7666800

3.45

-

7666800

3.45

-

-

9.

SUMANGAL BUSINESS PVT. LTD

6831240

3.07

-

6831240

3.07

-

-

10.

SRIRAM MERCHANTS PVT. LTD.

6739870

3.03

-

6739870

3.03

-

-

11.

YASH BHAJANKA

3297170

1.48

-

3297170

1.48

-

-

-

12.

HARI PRASAD AGARWALA

2435760

1.10

-

2435760

1.10

13.

BHAWNA AGARWAL

2887690

1.30

-

2402690

1.08

14.

AUROVILLE INVESTMENTS PVT. LTD

1845000

0.83

-

1845000

0.83

-

-

15.

SUMITRA DEVI AGARWAL

1676250

0.75

-

1676250

0.75

-

-

16.

HARI PRASAD AGARWALA

1852990

0.83

-

1530990

0.69

-

(0.14)

17.

SONU BHAJANKA

1000000

0.45

-

1030010

0.46

-

0.01

18.

PAYAL BHAJANKA

1000000

0.45

-

1000000

0.45

-

-

19.

SHRADDHA AGARWAL

800000

0.36

-

800000

0.36

-

-

20.

RAJESH KUMAR AGRAWAL

21.

NANCY BHAJANKA

22.

KESHAV BHAJANKA
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(0.22)

1422000

0.64

-

745225

0.34

-

(0.30)

100000

0.05

-

100000

0.05

-

-

-

-

-

122925

0.06
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(iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)
Sl
No.

Shareholding at the beginning

Cumulative Shareholding during

of the year

the year

No. of

% of total

No. of

% of total

Shares

shares of the

Shares

shares of the

company
1.

company

Mr. Sanjay Agarwal
At the beginning of the year

23788740

10.71

100463

0.05

Changes during the year
14.05.2014 Sale

10.66

05.06.2014 Sale

920032

0.41

22768245

10.25

21.07.2014 Sale

1064000

0.48

21704245

9.77

30.07.2014 Sale

600000

0.27

21104245

9.50

16.02.2015 Sale

375000

0.17

20729245

9.33

18.02.2015 Sale

1040000

0.47

19689245

8.86

24.03.2015 Sale

150000

0.07

19539245

8.79

19539245

8.79

At the end of the year
2.

23688277

Mr. Sajjan Bhajanka
At the beginning of the year

23371570

10.52

07.05.2014 Sale

2025000

0.91

21346570

9.61

14.05.2014 Sale

100463

0.05

21246107

9.56

Changes during the year

05.06.2014 Sale

920032

0.41

20326075

9.15

08.07.2014 Sale

1300000

0.59

19026075

8.56

25.11.2014 Sale (Gift)

100000

0.05

18926075

8.52

16.02.2015 Sale

375000

0.17

18551075

8.35

18.02.2015 Sale

1528400

0.69

17022675

7.66

19.03.2015 Sale

100000

0.05

16922675

7.62

24.03.2015 Sale

150000

0.07

16772675

7.55

-

-

16772675

7.55

16749750

7.54

07.05.2014 Sale

2025000

0.91

14724750

6.63

14.07.2015 Sale

236000

0.11

14488750

6.52

14488750

6.52

15049500

6.77

15049500

6.77

At the end of the year
3.

Mrs Divya Agarwal
At the beginning of the year
Changes during the year

At the end of the year
4.

Mrs. Santosh Bhajanka
At the beginning of the year

15649500

7.04

600000

0.27

Changes during the year
30.07.2014 Sale
At the end of the year
5.

Mr. Prem Kumar Bhajanka
At the beginning of the year

22125176

9.96

05.06.2014 Buy

2290810

1.03

24415986

10.99

06.06.2014 Buy

100000

0.05

24515986

11.03

18.02.2015 Buy

2853400

1.28

27369386

12.32

27369386

12.32

Changes during the year

At the end of the year
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Sl
No.

Shareholding at the beginning

Cumulative Shareholding during

of the year

the year

No. of

% of total

No. of

% of total

Shares

shares of the

Shares

shares of the

company
6.

company

Mrs. Bhawna Agarwal
At the beginning of the year

2887690

1.30

30.07.2014 Sale

150000

0.07

2737690

1.23

16.02.2015 Sale

50000

0.02

2687690

1.21

18.02.2015 Sale

285000

0.13

2402690

1.08

2402690

1.08

1530990

0.69

1530990

0.69

972000

0.44

Changes during the year

At the end of the year
7.

Mr. Hari Prasad Agarwala
At the beginning of the year

1852990

0.83

322000

0.14

Changes during the year
08.07.2014 Sale
At the end of the year
8.

Mr. Rajesh Kumar Agarwal
At the beginning of the year

1422000

0.64

450000

0.20

Changes during the year
07.05.2014 Sale
14.05.2014 Sale

22325

0.01

949675

0.43

05.06.2014 Sale

204450

0.09

745225

0.34

745225

0.34

At the end of the year
9.

Mrs. Sonu Kajaria
At the beginning of the year

1000000

0.45

06.01.2015 Buy

21111

0.01

1021111

0.46

07.01.2015 Buy

8899

0.00

1030010

0.46

1030010

0.46

Changes during the year

At the end of the year
10.

Mr. Keshav Bhajanka
At the beginning of the year

-

-

Changes during the year
22.11.2014 Buy
26.11.2014 Buy (Gift)
26.11.2014 Buy
At the end of the year
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7138

0.00

7138

0.00

100000

0.05

107138

0.05

15787

0.01

122925
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(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):
Sl

For Each of the Top

No. 10 Shareholders

Shareholding at the beginning

Cumulative Shareholding during

of the year

the year

No. of

% of total

No. of

% of total

Shares

shares of the

Shares

shares of the

company
1.

company

Subham Agarwal
At the Beginning of the year

3023430

1.36

30/06/2014 - Transfer

3200000

1.44

6223430

2.80

08/08/2014 - Transfer

750000

0.34

6973430

3.14

28/11/2014 - Transfer

700000

0.31

7673430

3.45

19/12/2014 - Transfer

900000

0.41

8573430

3.86

Changes during the year

31/12/2014 - Transfer

(690)

0.00

8572740

3.86

23/01/2015 - Transfer

1329827

0.60

9902567

4.46

9902567

4.46

7074841

3.18

At the end of the year
2.

Sheetij Agarwal
At the Beginning of the year

3777544

1.70

3297297

1.48

Changes during the year
30/05/2014 - Transfer
23/01/2015 - Transfer

680

0.00

7075521

3.18

20/02/2015 - Transfer

(300000)

(0.13)

6775521

3.05

6775521

3.05

4916400

2.21

4916400

2.21

7301057

3.29

At the end of the year
3.

Sumitra Devi Agarwal
At the Beginning of the year

2372543

1.07

2543857

1.14

Changes during the year
30/05/2014 – Transfer
At the end of the year
4.

Mittu Agarwal
At the Beginning of the year

7301057

Changes during the year

3.29
NO CHANGE

At the end of the year
5.

Mahabir Prasad Agarwal
At the Beginning of the year

1147090

0.52

30/05/2014 - Transfer

800000

0.36

1947090

0.88

30/06/2014 - Transfer

(1100000)

(0.50)

847090

0.38

847090

0.38

624709

0.28

624709

0.28

15049500

6.77

15049500

6.77

Changes during the year

At the end of the year
6.

Brij Bhushan Agarwal #
At the Beginning of the year

2724709

1.23

(2100000)

(0.95)

Changes during the year
30/06/2014 - Transfer
At the end of the year
7.

Santosh Bhajanka
At the Beginning of the year

15649500

7.04

(600000)

(0.27)

Changes during the year
08/08/2014 - Transfer
At the end of the year
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For Each of the Top

No. 10 Shareholders

Shareholding at the beginning

Cumulative Shareholding during

of the year

the year

No. of

% of total

No. of

% of total

Shares

shares of the

Shares

shares of the

company
7.

company

Mahabir Prasad Agarwal
At the Beginning of the year

3011602

1.36

750000

0.33

Changes during the year
30/05/2014 - Transfer
At the end of the year
8.

1.69

3761602

1.69

1883421

0.85

9344877

4.21

9344877

4.21

Subham Capital Private Limited *
At the Beginning of the year

1883421

Changes during the year

0.85
NO CHANGE

At the end of the year
9.

3761602

Brij Bhushan Agarwal
At the Beginning of the year

8344877

3.76

1000000

0.45

Changes during the year
30/05/2014 - Transfer
At the end of the year
10.

Ponni Trexim Private Limited
At the Beginning of the year

3348392

1.51

21/11/2014 - Transfer

(900000)

(0.41)

2448392

1.10

31/12/2014 - Transfer

(41000)

(0.02)

2407392

1.08

23/01/2015 - Transfer

(81217)

(0.03)

2326175

1.05

2326175

1.05

Changes during the year

At the end of the year
11.

Eskay Business (P) Ltd.
At the Beginning of the year

3766452

1.70

21/11/2014 - Transfer

(700000)

(0.32)

3066452

1.38

31/12/2014 - Transfer

(18460)

(0.01)

3047992

1.37

23/01/2015 - Transfer

(1100000)

(0.51)

1947992

0.88

1947992

0.88

Changes during the year

At the end of the year
12.

Motilal Oswal Sec Ltd #
At the Beginning of the year

4253557

1.91

30/05/2014 - Transfer

(4244901)

(1.91)

8656

0.00

30/06/2014 - Transfer

(480)

0.00

8176

0.00

08/08/2014 - Transfer

(3750)

0.00

4426

0.00

22/08/2014 - Transfer

401

0.00

4827

0.00

Changes during the year

40

12/09/2014 - Transfer

(106)

0.00

4721

0.00

30/09/2014 - Transfer

(3698)

0.00

1023

0.00

17/10/2014 - Transfer

(305)

0.00

718

0.00

21/11/2014 - Transfer

472

0.00

1190

0.00

28/11/2014 - Transfer

(129)

0.00

1061

0.00

19/12/2014 - Transfer

2878

0.00

3939

0.00

31/12/2014 - Transfer

700

0.00

4639

0.00
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Sl

For Each of the Top

No. 10 Shareholders

Shareholding at the beginning

Cumulative Shareholding during

of the year

the year

No. of

% of total

No. of

% of total

Shares

shares of the

Shares

shares of the

company
23/01/2015 - Transfer

1686

0.00

6325

0.00

13/02/2015 - Transfer

(872)

0.00

5453

0.00

20/02/2015 - Transfer

12596

0.01

18049

0.01

27/02/2015 - Transfer

9932

0.00

27981

0.01

06/03/2015 - Transfer

10474

0.00

38455

0.02

13/03/2015 - Transfer

(33604)

(0.02)

4851

0.00

20/03/2015 - Transfer

2185

0.00

7036

0.00

27/03/2015 - Transfer
At the end of the year
13.

company

3417

0.00

10453

0.00

(5770)

0.00

4683

0.00

10687

0.00

Eureka Stk & Sh Bkg Serv
At the Beginning of the year
Changes during the year
30/05/2014 - Transfer

4855

0.00

15542

0.01

30/06/2014 - Transfer

(13592)

(0.01)

1950

0.00

08/08/2014 - Transfer

10784

0.00

12734

0.01

22/08/2014 - Transfer

1049

0.00

13783

0.01

12/09/2014 - Transfer

6199

0.00

19982

0.01

30/09/2014 - Transfer

(6824)

0.00

13158

0.01

17/10/2014 - Transfer

75

0.00

13233

0.01

21/11/2014 - Transfer

2651

0.00

15884

0.01

28/11/2014 - Transfer

4119

0.00

20003

0.01

19/12/2014 - Transfer

(756)

0.00

19247

0.01

31/12/2014 - Transfer

255479

0.11

274726

0.12

23/01/2015 - Transfer

(197539)

(0.09)

77187

0.03

13/02/2015 - Transfer

(36210)

(0.02)

40977

0.02

20/02/2015 - Transfer

3463188

1.56

3504165

1.58

27/02/2015 - Transfer

(3409855)

(1.53)

94310

0.04

06/03/2015 - Transfer

(7927)

0.00

86383

0.04

13/03/2015 - Transfer

658750

0.30

745133

0.34

20/03/2015 - Transfer

(1693)

0.00

743440

0.33

27/03/2015 - Transfer

4585541

2.06

5328981

2.40

31/03/2015 - Transfer

(5279518)

(2.38)

49463

0.02

49463

0.02

21000

0.01

At the end of the year
14.

East India Sec Ltd
At the Beginning of the year

-

-

30/05/2014 - Transfer

750000

0.34

750000

0.34

08/08/2014 - Transfer

600000

0.27

1350000

0.61

Changes during the year

21/11/2014 - Transfer

250000

0.11

1600000

0.72

28/11/2014 - Transfer

(700000)

(0.31)

900000

0.41

23/01/2015 - Transfer

(898900)

(0.40)

1100

0.00

13/02/2015 - Transfer

155

0.00

1255

0.00
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Sl

For Each of the Top

Shareholding at the beginning

Cumulative Shareholding during

of the year

the year

No. 10 Shareholders

No. of

% of total

No. of

% of total

Shares

shares of the

Shares

shares of the

company
20/02/2015 - Transfer

(755)

0.00

500

0.00

13/03/2015 - Transfer

410

0.00

90

0.00

21000

0.01

At the end of the year
15.

company

Super Diamond Nirman Private Limited *
At the Beginning of the year

-

-

08/08/2014 - Transfer

1082000

0.49

1082000

0.49

22/08/2014 - Transfer

1350000

0.60

2432000

1.09

2432000

1.09

1008753

0.45

1008753

0.45

Changes during the year

At the end of the year
16.

Gulmohar Complex Private Limited
At the Beginning of the year

-

-

1008753

0.45

Changes during the year
30/06/2014 - Transfer
At the end of the year

# Ceased to be in the list of Top 10 shareholders as on 31/03/2015. The same is reflected above since the shareholder was one of
the Top 10 shareholders as on 01/04/2014.
* Not in the list of Top 10 shareholders as on 01/04/2014. The same has been reflected above since the shareholder was one of the
Top 10 shareholders as on 31/03/2015.

(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:
Sl

For Each of the Directors and KMP

Shareholding at the beginning

Cumulative Shareholding during

of the year

the year

No.
No. of

% of total

No. of

% of total

Shares

shares of the

Shares

shares of the

company
1.

company

Mr. Sajjan Bhajanka, Non – Executive Director
At the beginning of the year

23371570

10.52

07.05.2014 Sale

2025000

0.91

21346570

9.61

14.05.2014 Sale

100463

0.05

21246107

9.56

05.06.2014 Sale

920032

0.41

20326075

9.15

08.07.2014 Sale

1300000

0.59

19026075

8.56

25.11.2014 Sale (Gift)

100000

0.05

18926075

8.52

16.02.2015 Sale

375000

0.17

18551075

8.35

18.02.2015 Sale

1528400

0.69

17022675

7.66

19.03.2015 Sale

100000

0.05

16922675

7.62

24.03.2015 Sale

150000

0.07

16772675

7.55

-

-

16772675

7.55

23788740

10.71

14.05.2014 Sale

100463

0.05

23688277

10.66

05.06.2014 Sale

920032

0.41

22768245

10.25

Changes during the year

At the end of the year
2.

Mr. Sanjay Agarwal, Non-Executive Director
At the beginning of the year
Changes during the year
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Sl

For Each of the Directors and KMP

Shareholding at the beginning

Cumulative Shareholding during

of the year

the year

No.
No. of

% of total

No. of

% of total

Shares

shares of the

Shares

shares of the

company
21.07.2014 Sale

1064000

0.48

21704245

9.77

30.07.2014 Sale

600000

0.27

21104245

9.50

16.02.2015 Sale

375000

0.17

20729245

9.33

18.02.2015 Sale

1040000

0.47

19689245

8.86

24.03.2015 Sale

150000

0.07

19539245

8.79

19539245

8.79

At the end of the year
3.

company

Mr. Hari Prasad Agarwal, Non-Executive Director
At the beginning of the year

2435760

Changes during the year

1.10
NO CHANGE

At the end of the year
4.

2435760

1.10

Mr. Mangilal Jain, Non-Executive Director
At the beginning of the year

1300

0.00

23/01/2015 - Buy

700

0.00

2000

0.00

13/02/2015 - Buy

1000

0.00

3000

0.00

27/03/2015 - Buy

100

0.00

3100

0.00

3100

0.00

750

0.00

Changes during the year

At the end of the year
5.

Mrs. Plistina Dkhar, Non-Executive Director
At the beginning of the year

750

Changes during the year

0.00
NO CHANGE

At the end of the year
6.

7.

8.

Mr. Santanu Ray, Non-Executive Director
At the beginning of the year

-

-

-

-

Changes during the year

-

-

-

-

At the end of the year

-

-

-

-

Mr. Manindra Nath Banerjee, Non-Executive Director
At the beginning of the year

-

-

-

-

Changes during the year

-

-

-

-

At the end of the year

-

-

-

-

35575

0.02

30/05/2014 - Buy

1400

0.00

36975

0.02

30/06/2014 - Buy

600

0.00

37575

0.02

08/08/2014 - Sale

1500

0.00

36075

0.02

12/09/2014 - Sale

100

0.00

35975

0.02

30/09/2014 - Buy

25

0.00

36000

0.02

36000

0.02

Mr. Sanjay Kumar Gupta, Chief Executive Officer
At the beginning of the year
Changes during the year

At the end of the year
9.

Mr. Dilip Kumar Agarwal, Chief Financial Officer
At the beginning of the year

50

0.00

30/06/2014 - Buy

600

0.00

650

0.00

08/08/2014 - Buy

3000

0.00

3650

0.00

3650

0.00

Changes during the year

At the end of the year
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V. INDEBTEDNESS
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment
Secured Loans

Unsecured

excluding

Loans

Deposits

Total
Indebtedness

deposits
Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year
i) Principal Amount
ii) Interest due but not paid

Not Applicable

iii) Interest accrued but not due
Total (i+ii+iii)
Change in Indebtedness during the financial year
Not Applicable

• Addition
• Reduction
Net Change
Indebtedness at the end of the financial year
i) Principal Amount
ii) Interest due but not paid

Not Applicable

iii) Interest accrued but not due
Total (i+ii+iii)

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:
Sl

For Each of the Directors and KMP

No.
1.

Name of MD/WTD/Manager

Total

Hari Prasad Agarwal*

(H Lacs)

1.25

1.25

-

-

Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in Section 17(1) of the
Income-tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under

-

-

Stock Option

-

-

3.

Sweat Equity

-

-

4.

Commission
-

-

2.

- as % of profit
5.

- others, specify…

-

-

Others, please specify

-

-

1.25

1.25

Total (A)
Ceiling as per the Act

5% of net profit as calculated under Section 198

* upto 30th August, 2014.
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B. Remuneration to other directors:
Sl

Particulars of Remuneration

Name of Directors

No.
1.

Mrs. Plistina Dkhar

(H Lacs)

Independent Directors
· Fee for attending board

1.07

1.65

0.93

0.15

3.80

· Commission

-

-

-

-

-

· Others, please specify

-

-

-

-

-

1.07

1.65

0.93

0.15

3.80

-

-

-

-

-

· Commission

-

-

-

-

-

· Others, please specify

-

-

-

-

-

Total (2)

-

-

-

-

-

committee meetings

Total (1)
2.

Total Amount

Mr. Mangilal Jain Mr. M N Banerjee Mr. Santanu Ray

Other Non-Executive Directors
· Fee for attending board /
committee meetings

Total (B)=(1+2)
Total Managerial Remuneration

-

-

-

-

-

1.07

1.65

0.93

0.15

3.80

Overall Ceiling as per the Act #
# the overall ceiling limit for the sitting fees payable to the Non- Executive directors is H100,000 per Board / Committee meeting.

C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/Manager/ WTD
Sl

Particulars of

No. Remuneration

1.

Key Managerial Personnel

Total Amount

Mr. Om Prakash Mr. Ravi Prakash

(H lacs)

Mr. Sanjay Kr.

Mr. Dilip Kr.

Mr. Debabrata

Gupta*

Agarwal

Thakurta

lohia

Mundhra

Chief Executive

Chief Financial

Company

Chief Financial

Company

Officer

Officer (w.e.f.

Secretary (w.e.f.

Officer (upto

Secretary (upto

20.09.2014)

13.08.2014)

28.08.2014)

08.08.2014

-

20.75

8.69

8.83

4.32

42.59

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Gross salary
(a) Salary as per
provisions contained
in Section 17(1) of
the Income-tax Act,
1961
(b) Value of
perquisites u/s 17(2)
Income-tax Act,
1961
(c) Profits in lieu of
salary under Section
17(3) Income-tax
Act, 1961

2.

Stock Option

-

-

-

-

-

-

3.

Sweat Equity

-

-

-

-

-

-

4.

Commission
-

-

-

-

-

-

- as % of profit
5

- others, specify…

-

-

-

-

-

-

Others, please specify

-

-

-

-

-

-

Total

-

20.75

8.69

8.83

4.32

42.59

* Mr. Sanjay Kumar Gupta, Chief Executive Officer (CEO) draws salary from its Subsidiary, i.e. Cement Manufacturing Company Ltd.
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VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:
Type

Section of the

Brief

Companies Act

Description

Details of

Authority

Appeal

Penalty /

[RD/

made,

Punishment/

NCLT/

if any

Compounding

COURT]

fees imposed

(give
Details)

A. COMPANY
Penalty
Punishment

NONE

Compounding
B. DIRECTORS
Penalty
Punishment

NONE

Compounding
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty
Punishment

NONE

Compounding
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Annexure 2 to Directors’ Report
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
Form No. MR-3
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2015
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]
To

Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External

The Members,

Commercial Borrowings;

Star Ferro and Cement Limited

v)

The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of

the Securities & Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (“SEBI

applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good

Act”), to the extent applicable:

corporate practices by M/S Star Ferro and Cement Limited

a)

(hereinafter called “the Company”). Secretarial Audit was

The Securities & Exchange Board of India (Substantial
Acquisition of Shares and Takeover) Regulations, 2011

conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for

b)

evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and

The Securities & Exchange Board of India (Prohibition
of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992

expressing my opinion thereon.

c)

The Securities & Exchange Board of India (Issue of

The Company’s Management is responsible for preparation and

Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,

maintenance of secretarial and other records and for devising

2009

proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of

d)

The Securities & Exchange Board of India (Employee

applicable laws and regulations.

Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase

Based on my verification of books, papers, minute books, forms

Scheme) Guidelines, 1999

and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company

e)

and also the information provided by the Company, its officers,

listing of Debt securities) Regulations, 2008

agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of

f)

secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the Company

The Securities & Exchange Board of India (Registrars to
an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993

has during the audit period covering the financial year ended

g)

on 31st March, 2015 complied with the statutory provisions

The Securities & Exchange Board of India (Delisting of
Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009

listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-

h)

processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in

The Securities & Exchange Board of India (Buyback of
Securities) Regulations, 1998

the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter.
I have examined books, papers, minute books, forms and

The Securities & Exchange Board of India (Issue and

vi) As identified by the Management, no laws/acts are
specifically applicable to the Company.

returns filed and other records maintained by the Company for
the financial year ended on 31st March, 2015 to the extent

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of

applicable, according to the provisions of:

the following:

i)

a)

The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made

Secretaries of India. (Not notified and hence not applicable

thereunder;
ii)

to the company during the audit period).

The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act,1956 and Rules
made thereunder;

iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and Regulations and Bye-laws
framed thereunder;

Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company

b)

The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with
Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE) and National Stock
Exchange of India Limited (NSE).

iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules

During the period under review the Company has generally

and Regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign

complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Guidelines,
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Standards, etc. mentioned above.

(i) Increase in borrowing limits under Section 180(1)(c) of the
Companies Act, 2013.

I further report that
a)

b)

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted

(ii) Sell, lease or dispose of whole or substantially the whole of

with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive

the undertaking of the Company under Section 180(1)(a) of

Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the

the Companies Act, 2013.

composition of the Board of Directors that took place during

I further report that

the period under review were carried out in compliance with

a)

the Companies Act, 1956 was approved by the Hon’ble

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the

High Court of Meghalaya vide order dated 31st March,

Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were

2015. The appointed date and effective date is 1st April,

sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for

2014 and 10th April, 2015 respectively.

seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications

c)

A scheme of arrangement pursuant to Section 391/394 of

the provisions of the Act.

b)

The registered office of the company stood shifted from State

on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful

of West Bengal to the State of Meghalaya with effect from

participation at the meeting.

10th April, 2014.

None of the directors in any meeting dissented on any

This report is to be read with my letter of even date which is

resolution and hence there was no instance of recording any

annexed as Annexure – I which forms an integral part of this

dissenting member’s view in the minutes.

report.

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes

For MKB & Associates

in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of

Company Secretaries

the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable
laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
I further report that during the audit period, the Company has

Date: 7th May, 2015

Manoj Kumar Banthia

Place: Kolkata

[Proprietor]
ACS No. 11470

passed following special resolution which authorises the Board

COP No. 7596

to exercise powers in relation thereto, but presently does not have
any major bearing on the Company’s affairs:

Annexure – 1

3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of
financial records and Books of Accounts of the Company.
4. Wherever required, I have obtained the Management’s

To
The Members,
Star Ferro and Cement Limited
My report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

Representation about the compliance of Laws, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines and Directions and happening
events, etc.
5. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to

1. It is management’s responsibility to identify the Laws, Rules,

the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or

Regulations, Guidelines and Directions which are applicable

effectiveness with which the management has conducted

to the Company depending upon the industry in which it

the affairs of the Company.

operates and to comply and maintain those records with
same in letter and in spirit. My responsibility is to express an
opinion on those records based on our audit.
2. I have followed the audit practices and process as were

For MKB & Associates

appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the

Company Secretaries

correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The
verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct

Date: 7th May, 2015

facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the

Place: Kolkata

Manoj Kumar Banthia
[Proprietor]
ACS No. 11470

process and practices I followed provide a reasonable basis

COP No. 7596

for our opinion.
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Annexure 3 to Directors Report
REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES/ INITIATIVES
[Pursuant to Section 135 of the Act and Rules made thereunder]

1. A brief outline of the Company’s CSR policy, including overview of the projects or programmes proposed to be undertaken and
reference to the web-link to the CSR Policy and projects or programmes
The Board has framed a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the Company. Your company’s CSR strategy ensures compliance
with ethical standards in business practices, minimising environmental impacts and waste, addressing the challenges of
improved access to education, health, sports, drinking water, sanitation and livelihood opportunities, and helping underprivileged
communities become resilient and self-reliant.
2. The composition of the CSR Committee
•

Mr. Sajjan Bhajanka

-

Chairman

•

Mr. Hari Prasad Agarwal

-

Non-Executive Director

•

Mr. Mangilal Jain

-

Independent Director

3. Average Net Profit of the Company for last 3 financial years: H157.46 lacs
4. Prescribed CSR expenditure (2% of amount) : H3.15 lacs
5. Details of CSR activities/projects undertaken during the year:

1

a)

Total amount spent for the financial year: H5,00,000/-

b)

Amount un-spent, if any: NIL

c)

Manner in which the amount spent during financial year is detailed below:

2

Sr. CSR project/
No. activity identified

3

4

Sector in which the Projects/
Project is covered Programmes
1.Local area/
others-

5

6

7

8

Amount outlay
(budget) project/
programme wise

Amount spent
on the project/
programme

Cumulative spend
upto the reporting
period

Amount spent:

H5.00 lacs

H5.00 lacs through
Friends of Tribals
Society, a NonGovernment
Voluntary
Organisation
committed to up
liftment of tribals in
rural India.

2.Specify the state
/district
(Name of the
District/s, State/s
where project/
programme was
undertaken
01

Education

Literacy

One teacher
H5.00 lacs
School, across the
country

Sub-heads:

Direct/ through
implementing
agency*

1.Direct
expenditure
on project/
programme,
2.Overheads:

H5.00 lacs

We hereby confirm that the implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy, is in compliance with the CSR objectives and Policy of the Company.

Sanjay Kumar Gupta

Sajjan Bhajanka

Chief Executive Officer

Chairman – CSR Committee
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Annexure 4 to Directors Report
FORM AOC -1
(Pursuant to first proviso to Sub-section (3) of Section 129 read with Rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)
Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries
Part “A”: Subsidiaries
(H in lacs)
Sl.

Name of the subsidiary

No.

1

Cement

Megha

Star Cement

Meghalaya

NE Hills Hydro

Manufacturing

Technical and

Meghalaya

Power Limited

Limited

Company

Engineers

Limited

Limited

Private Limited

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

4,192.14

2,734.64

2,981.78

1,713.06

7.00

47,376.19

21,137.40

36,235.10

8,081.46

-

Reporting period for the subsidiary
concerned, if different from the
holding Company’s reporting period

2

Reporting currency and exchange
rate as on the last date of the
relevant Financial Year in the case
of foreign subsidiaries

3

Share capital

4

Reserves and surplus

5

Total assets

125,675.93

27,525.10

80,569.72

28,921.12

7.12

6

Total Liabilities

125,675.93

27,525.10

80,569.72

28,921.12

7.12

7

Investments

8

Turnover

9

23,878.43

2,983.33

-

117,759.95

19,691.78

49,067.72

10,334.13

2.70
-

Profit before taxation

4,500.19

1,902.67

4,912.38

1,287.38

-

10

Provision for taxation

102.44

7.97

152.19

(742.73)

-

11

Profit after taxation

4,602.63

1,910.64

5,064.58

544.66

-

12

Proposed Dividend

3,353.71

-

-

-

-

13

% of shareholding

70.48

70.48

70.48

35.94

70.48

The following information shall be furnished:1

Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations : NE Hills Hydro Limited

2

Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year : Not Applicable
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Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures
Sl.

Name of Associates / Joint Ventures

No.
1

Latest audited Balance Sheet Date

NA

2

Shares of Associate / Joint Ventures held by the company on the year end

NA

No.
Amount of Investment in Associates/Joint Venture
Extend of Holding %
3

Description of how there is significant influence

NA

4

Reason why the associate/joint venture is not consolidated

NA

5

Net worth attributable to Shareholding as per latest audited Balance Sheet

NA

6

Profit / Loss for the year

NA

i. Considered in Consolidation
ii. Not Considered in Consolidation
The following information shall be furnished:1

Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations : Not Applicable

2

Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year : Not Applicable

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Dilip Kumar Agarwal
Chief Financial Officer

Sajjan Bhajanka
Director
DIN: 00246043

Debabrata Thakurta
Company Secretary
Place: Kolkata

Hari Prasad Agarwal
Director
DIN: 00266005

Date: 7th May, 2015
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Annexure 5 to Directors Report
Statement pursuant to Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

(i)The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees and percentage increase in remuneration
of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company for the financial year:
Name of Directors & Key

Designation

Increase in Ratio of remuneration to

Managerial Personnel
Mr. Hari Prasad Agarwal

Remuneration in the

median remuneration of

financial year (%)*

all employees*

-

-

Director (resigned as Managing Director w.e.f 1st
September, 2014)

Mr. Dilip Kumar Agarwal

Chief Financial Officer (w.e.f. September 20, 2014)

-

-

Mr. Debabrata Thakurta

Company Secretary (w.e.f. August 13, 2014)

-

-

Chief Financial Officer (resigned w.e.f 29th August,

-

-

-

-

Mr. Om Prakash Lohia

2014)
Mr. Ravi Prakash Mundhra Company Secretary (resigned w.e.f 9th August,
2014)
*Since this information is for part of the year, the same is not comparable.
(ii) The number of permanent employees on the roll of the
Company : 2
(iii) The explanation on the relationship between average
increase in remuneration and Company performance : Not
Applicable
(iv) Comparison of the remuneration of the Key Managerial
Personnel against the performance of the Company: Not

Applicable
(v) Variations in the market capitalization of the Company, price
earnings ratio as at the closing date of the current financial
year and previous financial year and percentage increase
over decrease in the market quotations of the shares of the
Company in comparison to the rate at which the Company
came out with the last public offer:

Particulars

As at March 31, 2015

Market Capitalisation

BSE

H3692.51 crores

BSE

H563.20 crores

NSE

H3721.40 crore

NSE

H529.88 crores

BSE

44.20

BSE

90.53

NSE

44.54

NSE

85.17

Price earnings Ratio

As at March 31, 2014

(vi) Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of
employees other than the managerial personnel in the last
financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase
in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof
and point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for
increase in the managerial remuneration: Not Applicable
(vii) The key parameters for any variable component of
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remuneration : Not Applicable
(viii) The ratio of the remuneration of the highest paid Director
to that of the Employees who are not Directors but receive
remuneration in excess of the highest paid Director during
the year : Not Applicable
(ix) It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid during the
year is as per the Remuneration Policy of the Company.
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Report on
Corporate Governance
The Directors present the Company’s Report on Corporate

including and headed by a Non-Executive Chairman, two Non-

Governance

Executive Directors and four Independent Directors. The Board

Company’s
Governance:

Philosophy

on

Corporate

members are experts in different disciplines of corporate working
i.e. finance, banking, technical, marketing, administration, etc.
The Independent Directors are expert professionals with high

The Company’s philosophy on Corporate Governance is to

credentials and actively contribute to the deliberations of the

enhance the long-tern economic value of the Company at large

Board.

and its stakeholders. It emphasises the need for full transparency,
accountability and compliance with laws and regulations in all its
transactions and interactions with its stakeholders, employees,
lenders, the government, etc. without compromising the

None of the Directors is a member of the Board of more than
twenty Companies or a member of more than ten Board-level
Committees or a Chairman of more than five such Committees.

environment and health of the society at large. Your Company

During the year, Mr. Hari Prasad Agarwal stepped down as the

has complied with the requirements of Corporate Governance

Managing Director of the Company and is continuing as Non-

as laid down under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with the

Executive member of the Board.

Stock Exchanges, as amended.

Mr. Sanjay Kumar Gupta was appointed as the Chief Executive
Officer and Mr. Dilip Kumar Agarwal was appointed as the

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Chief Financial officer of the Company with effect from 20th

Composition
As on the date of this report, the Board consists of seven Directors,

September, 2014.

The Composition is as provided below:
Name of the Director

Designation

Category

Chairman

Promoter – Non-Executive

Mr. Hari Prasad Agarwal

Director

Promoter – Non-Executive

Mr. Sanjay Agarwal

Director

Promoter – Non-Executive

Mr. Manindra Nath Banerjee

Director

Independent

Mr. Sajjan Bhajanka

Mr. Santanu Ray

Director

Independent

Mr. Mangilal Jain

Director

Independent

Mrs. Plistina Dkhar

Director

Independent
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Directorship, Committee Membership and Chairmanship
As on 31st March, 2015, the details of each member of the Board along with the number of Directorship(s)/Committee Membership(s)
are provided below:
Name of the Director

Number of Directorships of Public Limited

Number of Membership including

Companies *

Chairmanships of Board Committee(s) **

Mr. Sajjan Bhajanka

10

5 (1 as Chairman)

Mr. Hari Prasad Agarwal

10

5

Mr. Sanjay Agarwal

8

-

Mr. Manindra Nath Banerjee

5

6 (3 as Chairman)

Mr. Santanu Ray

4

6 (3 as Chairman)

Mr. Mangilal Jain

9

9 (4 as Chairman)

Mrs. Plistina Dkhar

3

-

* Includes Private Companies which are subsidiaries of Public Limited Companies, Unlimited Liability Companies, Companies registered under Section
8 of the Companies Act, 2013, Membership of Managing Committees of Chambers of Commerce/Professional Bodies but excludes Foreign Companies.
* * Only Audit Committee and Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee have been considered as per Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.

Board Meetings and Procedures

November, 2014 and 20th January, 2015. Attendance at the

The Board meets at regular intervals to discuss and decide on

Board Meetings during the financial year 2014-15 and at the

the policies and strategies with respect to the business of the

previous Annual General Meeting is as under:

Company apart from normal business. The Board generally
meets at least once every quarter to review the quarterly results.
Additional meetings are held as and when necessary.

Name of the Director
Mr. Sajjan Bhajanka

No. of Board

Last AGM

Meetings Attended

Attended

6

Yes

All the meetings are scheduled well in advance and notices

Mr. Hari Prasad Agarwal

5

Yes

are sent to all the Directors at their address registered with the

Mr. Sanjay Agarwal

1

No

Company. The agenda of the meeting is backed by necessary

Mr. Manindra Nath

5

No

supporting information and documents to enable the Board to

Banerjee

take informed decisions. Agenda also includes minutes of the

Mr. Santanu Ray

5

No

meetings of all the Board Committees and Subsidiaries for the

Mr. Mangilal Jain

6

Yes

information of the Board. Additional agenda items in the form

Mrs. Plistina Dkhar

1

Yes

of “Other Business” are included with the permission of the
Chairman. Draft minutes of the proceedings of the Board Meetings

Resume of Directors proposed to be re-appointed

are circulated in advance and comments, if any, received from

The brief resume of Directors retiring by rotation and seeking

the Directors are incorporated in the minutes in consultation

re-appointment is appended to the notice convening the Annual

with the Chairman. The Board periodically reviews compliance

General Meeting.

reports of all laws applicable to the Company. Information about
major events/items is placed before the Board and approval of
the Board is taken on all such matters wherever such approval
is required. Senior executives of the Company are invited as
and when required to provide additional inputs or clarifications

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD
Currently, the Board has four committees: Audit Committee,
Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Share Transfer cum
Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee and Corporate Social

required on agenda items being discussed in the Board Meeting.

Responsibility Committee. The terms of reference of these

Number and dates of Board Meetings held during the
year

reviewed from time to time. Meetings of each of these Committees

Six Board Meetings were held during the Financial Year 201415 and the gap between two meetings did not exceed four
months. The Meetings were held on 28th May, 2014, 16th
July, 2014, 25th August, 2014, 20th September, 2014, 3rd
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Committees are determined by the Board and their relevance
are convened by the respective Chairmen of the Committees,
who also inform the Board about the summary of discussions
held in the Committee Meetings. The minutes of the Committee
Meetings are sent to all Directors individually and tabled at the
Board Meetings.
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Audit Committee:

vii. Review and monitor the auditor’s independence and
performance, and effectiveness of the audit process;

All the members of the Audit Committee are Non-Executive
Directors

with

majority

Independent

Directors

including

Chairman. The Committee is governed by a Charter which is
in line with the regulatory requirements mandated by the

viii. Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of
the Company with related parties;

Companies Act, 2013 and Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.

ix. Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are broadly inter

x.

alia as follows:
i.

Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting process and
the disclosure of its financial information to ensure that the
financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible;

ii.

Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms
of appointment of auditors of the Company;

iii. Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other
services rendered by the statutory auditors;
iv. Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial
statements and auditor’s report thereon before submission
to the Board for approval, with particular reference to:
a.

Matters required to be included in the Director’s
Responsibility Statement to be included in the Board’s
Report

b.

Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices
and reasons for the same

c.

Major accounting entries involving estimates based on
the exercise of judgement by the management

d.

Significant adjustments made in the financial statements
arising out of audit findings

e.

v.

Valuation of undertakings or assets of the company,
wherever necessary;

xi. Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management
systems;
xii. Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory
and internal auditors, adequacy of the internal control
systems;
xiii. Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any,
including the structure of the internal audit department,
staffing and seniority of the official heading the department,
reporting structure coverage and frequency of internal audit;
xiv. Discussion with internal auditors any significant findings
and follow up thereon;
xv. Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the
internal auditors into matters where there is suspected fraud
or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a
material nature and reporting the matter to the Board;
xvi. Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit
commences

the nature and scope of audit, audit

observations as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain
any area of concern;
xvii. To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the

Compliance with listing and other legal requirements

payment to the depositors, debenture holders, shareholders

relating to financial statements

(in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors;

f.

Disclosure of any related party transactions

xviii. To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower mechanism;

g.

Qualifications in the draft audit report

xix. Approval of appointment of CFO (i.e., the Whole-time

Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial
statements before submission to the board for approval;

vi. Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses/
application of funds raised through an issue (public issue,
rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of
funds utilised for purposes other than those stated in the
offer document/prospectus/notice and the report submitted
by the monitoring agency monitoring the utilisation of
proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making appropriate
recommendations to the Board to take up steps in this
matter;

Finance Director or any other person heading the finance
function or discharging that function) after assessing the
qualifications, experience and background, etc. of the
candidate.

Composition, number of Meetings and Attendance
The Audit Committee met five times during the Financial Year
2014-15. The Audit Committee’s composition meets the
requirements of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement. Members of the Audit
Committee possess financial/accounting expertise/exposure. The
Committee is chaired by Mr. Mangilal Jain. The meetings were
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held on 28th May, 2014, 16th July, 2014, 25th August, 2014,

and who may be appointed in senior management in

3rd November, 2014 and 20th January, 2015.

accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to
the Board their appointment and removal;

The composition of the Audit Committee and the details of
meetings attended by the Directors are as under:
Name

Category

v.

No. of Committee
Meetings Attended

Mr. Mangilal Jain

Chairman - Non

5

Member – Non

5

Banerjee

Member – Non

performance and defined assessment criteria.

Remuneration Policy
focus on attracting talent and rewarding performance based
on review of achievements. The remuneration to be paid to

Executive Independent
Mr. Manindra Nath

Director(s) and Whole-time Director(s) based on their

The Company has formulated a remuneration policy with a

Executive Independent
Mr. Santanu Ray

Recommending/reviewing remuneration of the Managing

5

the Executive Directors is recommended by the Remuneration
Committee based on the Net Profits of the Company which

Executive Independent

are then approved by the Board of Directors of the Company

Mr. Hari Prasad

Member - Non-

Agarwal

Executive, Non-

and the Shareholders of the Company in their respective

Independent,

meetings. The remuneration paid to the Executive Directors was

5

determined and based on the industry benchmark, performance

Mr. Sajjan

Member - Non

Bhajanka*

Executive, Non-

of the Company to the industry performance. Independent Non-

Independent,

Executive Directors are appointed for their performance expertise

-

Audit Committee meetings are attended by the Finance head
of the Company and Representatives of Statutory Auditors. The
Company Secretary acts as the Secretary of the Audit Committee.
*Appointed as a member of the Audit Committee w.e.f. 7th May,
2015.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee:
In compliance with Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013,
the Board has renamed the existing “Remuneration Committee”
as the “Nomination and Remuneration Committee”.

in their individual capacity as individual Professionals/Business
Executives. Independent Non-Executive Directors are paid sitting
fees for attending Board Meetings.
The composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
as at 31st March, 2015 and the details of Members participation
at the Meetings of the Committee are as under:
Name
Mr. Mangilal Jain

Category

Designation

Non Executive

Chairman

Independent
Mr. Santanu Ray

Non Executive

The broad terms of reference of the Committee inter alia are as

Member

Independent

follows:

Mr. Manindra Nath

i.

Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications,

Banerjee

positive attributes and independence of a Director and

Meetings and Attendance:

recommending to the Board a policy relating to the

The Remuneration Committee met once on 19th September,

remuneration of the Directors, key managerial personnel

2014 during the Financial Year 2014-15. All the members of

and other employees;

the Committee attended the meeting.

ii.

Non Executive

Member

Independent

Formulation of criteria for evaluation of performance of
Directors;

iii. Devising a policy on Board diversity;
iv. Identifying persons who are qualified to become Directors
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Remuneration paid to the Directors:The details of remuneration paid to Directors for the Financial Year 2014-15 are provided below:
Sl.

Name of the Director

Designation

Salary (H)

Sitting Fees (H)

No.

No. of Shares
held as on date

Executive Director:
1

Mr. Hari Prasad Agarwal

Managing Director

*1,25,000/-

Nil

2435760

Non-Executive Directors:
1

Mr. Manindra Nath Banerjee

Independent Director

Nil

1,65,000

Nil

2

Mr. Mangilal Jain

Independent Director

Nil

1,07,500

3100

3

Mr. Santanu Ray

Independent Director

Nil

92,500

Nil

4

Mrs. Plistina Dkhar

Independent Director

Nil

15,000

750

*Managing Director upto 31st August, 2014.

SHARE TRANSFER CUM STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE
In compliance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Agreement, the Board has renamed the
existing “Shareholders’/Investors’ Grievance Committee” as the “Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee”.
The Committee oversees Share Transfers and addresses the redressal of shareholders’ grievances, etc. The Committee also evaluates
performance and service standards of the Registrar and Share Transfer Agents of the Company.
During the Financial Year 2014-15, 13 meetings of the Share Transfer Cum Investor Grievance Committee were held on 26th June,
2014, 24th July, 2014, 14th August, 2014, 18th September, 2014, 9th October, 2014, 6th November, 2014, 20th November, 2014,
4th December, 2014, 8th January, 2015, 15th January, 2015, 29th January, 2015, 26th February, 2015 and 19th March, 2015.
The Composition of the Investors’ Grievance Committee and the details of the meeting attended by the Directors are given below:
Name of the Member

Category

Designation

No. of Committee Meetings

Independent, Non-Executive

Chairman

13

Non- Executive

Member

13

Attended
Mr. Manindra Nath Banerjee
Mr. Hari Prasad Agarwal

Mr. Debabrata Thakurta, Company Secretary acts as the Compliance Officer.
Status of Pending Complaints:The Company has not received any complaints during the Financial Year 2014-15. There were no complaints pending at the
beginning and at the close of the Financial Year.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE
The Company has constituted a CSR Committee as required under Section 135 of the Companies Act 2013. The Committee consists
of three Directors out of which one Director is an Independent Director.
The terms of reference of the Committee are as follows:
i.

To frame the CSR policy and monitor the same from time to time

ii.

To recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on CSR activities

During the Financial Year 2014-15, the committee met once on 16th July, 2014 wherein all its members were present.
The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee comprises of the following three members and the details of the meeting attended by
the Directors are given below:
Name of the Member

Category

Designation

No. of Committee Meetings

Non-Executive

Chairman

1

Non-Executive

Member

1

Non-Executive Independent

Member

1

Attended
Mr. Sajjan Bhajanka
Mr. Hari Prasad Agarwal
Mr. Mangilal Jain
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VIGIL MECHANISM/WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY
The Board of Directors of the Company has adopted a Vigil Mechanism Policy. This mechanism provides a tool in the hands of
Employees and Directors to report to the Management concerns about unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the
Codes of Conduct or Policy. The mechanism provides adequate safeguards against victimisation of employees and Directors to avail of
the mechanism and also provide direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee in exceptional cases.

GENERAL BODY MEETINGS
Particulars of last three Annual General Meetings
Venue

Date and time

2013-14

Financial Year

‘Star Club’, Village Lumshnong, PO: Khaliehriat,

20th September, 2014 at 11:00 A.M

2012-13

Indian Chamber of Commerce Auditorium, 10th Floor,

2011-12

6, Lyons Range, 1st Floor, Kolkata- 700001

Dist. East Jaintia Hills, Meghalaya – 793210
25th September, 2013 at 3:00 P.M

4, India Exchange Place, Kolkata – 700001

Special Resolutions passed in the Annual General Meeting held

•

on 20th September, 2014:
i)

risk assessment and minimisation procedures. The risk

The Company has obtained approval of its members under

policy provides for identification of risk, its assessments
and procedures to minimise risk. The risk management

2013.

policy is reviewed periodically to ensure that the executive

Keeping of registers, transfer books, books of accounts,
copies of all certificates and documents at a place other than
the registered office of the Company.

During the year under review, no resolution has been passed

management controls the risk as per decided policy.
•

The Directors of the Company are not related inter-se.

•

The financial statements of the Company are prepared in
accordance with the Accounting Standards stipulated under

through the exercise of Postal Ballot. One Court Convened

the Companies Act.

Meeting of the Equity Shareholders of the Company was held on
29th January, 2015 as per direction of the Hon’ble Meghalaya

•

Shareholders was held during the year.

During the year under review, the Company has not raised
any money through public issue.

High Court, Shillong, wherein the Scheme of Arrangement
was approved. No other Extra-Ordinary General Meeting of the

The Company has a well-defined risk management
framework and the Board is kept informed about the

Section 180(1)(a) and 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act

ii)

26th September, 2012 at 2:30 P.M

RECONCILIATION OF SHARE CAPITAL AUDIT
i.

Pursuant to Clause 47(C) of the Listing Agreement with the

DISCLOSURES

Stock Exchanges, certificates, on half-yearly basis, have

•

No materially significant related party transactions took place

been issued by a Company Secretary in Practice for due

between the Company and its subsidiaries, its Promoters,

compliance of share transfer formalities by the Company.

Directors or the Management and their relatives which have
a bearing on interests of the Company at large. Other related
party transactions have been reported in Notes to Accounts.
•

ii.

A Practising Company Secretary carries out the reconciliation
of Share Capital of the Company for every quarter to reconcile
the total capital admitted with National Securities Depository

The Company has complied with the requirements of the

Limited and Central Depository Services (India) Limited(‘

Stock Exchanges, SEBI and other statutory authorities on

Depositories’) and the total issued and listed capital of the

all matters relating to capital markets during the last three

Company. The Audit confirms that the total issued/paid

years. No penalties or strictures have been imposed on the

up Capital is in agreement with the aggregate of the total

Company by the Stock Exchanges, SEBI or other statutory

number of shares in physical form and the total number of

authorities relating to the above.

shares in dematerialised form.
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CODE OF CONDUCT

Financial Calendar (for the year 2015-16)

In pursuance of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, the Board

The Company follows financial year starting from 1st of April of

has approved the ‘Code of Conduct for Board of Directors and

the financial year and ending on 31st March of the following

Senior Management’ and the same has been circulated and

year.

posted on the Company’s website, www.starferrocement.co.in.

Proposed date for approval of financial result

The Directors and Senior Management personnel have affirmed
compliance with the provisions of the above Code of Conduct.
The declaration by the Chief Executive Officer to this effect is also
attached to this Report.

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION
The Company’s quarterly financial results, after their approval
by the Board of Directors, are promptly issued to all the Stock
Exchanges with whom the Company has listing arrangements.

First quarter ended 30th June, Within 45 days from the end
2015

of quarter

Second quarter ended 30th

Within 45 days from the end

September, 2015

of quarter

Third quarter ended 31st

Within 45 days from the end

December, 2015

of quarter

Fourth/Last quarter ended 31st Within 60 days from the end
March, 2016

of quarter

These financial results, in the prescribed format, as per amended
Clause 41 of the listing agreement, are published in prominent

Listing on Stock Exchanges

English and Khasi (regional language) newspapers, usually

The Shares of the Company are presently listed on the following

in The Economic Times, Business Standard and Hima. The

Stock Exchanges:-

quarterly financial results and official news are also posted on
the website of the Company - www.starferrocement.co.in.

a)

Exchange Plaza, Bandra –Kurla Complex, Bandra (E)

The audited financial statements form a part of the Annual
Report which is sent to the Members well in advance of the
Annual General Meeting. The Annual Report of the Company, the
quarterly/half yearly and the annual results of the Company are
also placed on the Company’s website: www.starferrocement.
co.in and can be downloaded.
All periodical compliance filings like shareholding pattern,
corporate governance report, media releases, among others are
filed electronically on NSE Electronic Application Processing
System (NEAPS) and BSE’s Listing Centre which are web-

National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE)
Mumbai- 400 051

b)

BSE Ltd. (BSE)
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers,
Dalal Street, Fort,
Mumbai – 400 001

The Company has paid listing fees to NSE and BSE for the year
2015-16. Annual custodian fees for the year 2014-15 has
been paid by the Company to NSDL and CSDL. Bills for the year
2015-16 are yet to be received.

based applications designed by NSE and BSE respectively for

Stock Code

corporates.

Name of the Exchange

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
A Management Discussion and Analysis Report, forms a part of
the Directors’ Report.

Annual General Meeting
Venue

The Bombay Stock Exchange Limited

SFCL
536666

ISIN Allotted to the Company by the Depositories
The Company has signed Depository agreement with both

GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION
Date and Time

The National Stock Exchange of India Limited

Stock Code

25th September, 2015 at 10.00 A.M.

National Securities Depository Limited and Central Depository
Services (India) Limited. The ISIN allotted to the Company is
INE935O01010

‘Star Club’, Village: Lumshnong, PO:

Corporate Identity Number:

Khaleihriat, Dist: East jaintia Hills,

L27310ML2011PLC008564

Meghalaya - 793210
Dates of Book Closure

22nd September, 2015 to 25th
September, 2015
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Market Information
Market Price Data: High, Low (based on the closing prices) and volume of shares traded at BSE and NSE, for the financial year
2014-15 are as follows:
Month

Bombay Stock Exchange

National Stock Exchange

High

Low

Volume

High

Low

Volume

April 2014

25.00

22.25

92,554

25.00

21.15

1,51,784

May 2014

34.15

23.25

7,85,539

34.50

23.00

20,40,589

June 2014

49.00

32.00

5,33,934

49.00

32.85

13,14,747

July 2014

53.50

41.15

3,59,757

53.55

40.90

34,32,000

August 2014

47.10

40.00

67,815

47.85

40.50

2,04,881

September 2014

67.00

48.20

2,40,049

66.50

48.10

7,71,839

October 2014

81.25

58.05

63,296

77.30

58.60

2,57,788

November 2014

89.00

67.10

74,651

92.80

67.95

3,30,680

December 2014

116.00

83.60

1,46,103

119.00

82.30

9,72,384

January 2015

112.50

66.55

4,51,068

112.85

65.00

35,05,063

February 2015

179.00

97.00

17,29,783

179.00

95.05

71,69,249

March 2015

189.00

156.50

5,73,467

180.50

157.00

26,88,862

Performance of the Shares of the Company in comparison to BSE Sensex is as under:
Month

BSE Sensex

Company’s Share

Closing

% Change

Closing

% Change

April 2014

22417.80

0.14

23.50

9.78

May 2014

24217.34

8.03

34.10

45.11

June 2014

25413.78

4.94

41.25

20.96

July 2014

25894.97

1.89

42.00

1.81

August 2014

26638.11

2.87

45.95

9.40

September 2014

26630.51

-0.03

62.20

35.36

October 2014

27865.83

4.64

71.50

14.95

November 2014

28693.99

2.97

87.40

22.23

December 2014

27499.42

-4.16

87.95

0.62

January 2015

29182.95

6.12

98.25

11.71

February 2015

29361.50

0.61

168.10

71.09

March 2015

27,957.49

-4.78

166.20

- 1.13

Registrars and Share Transfer Agents
M/s Maheshwari Datamatics Private Limited
6, Mangoe Lane (Surendra Mohan Ghosh Lane)
2nd Floor, Kolkata – 700001
Phone: 033 22435029/22482248
Fax - 033 22484787
Email - mdplc@yahoo.com, mdpl@cal.vsnl.net.in

Share Transfer System
Requests for transfer of shares can be lodged either at the office of the Company or at the office of the Registrar. The transfer are
normally processed within a maximum period of 15 days from the receipt of documents, compete in all respects.
Transfer of Shares in dematerialised form is duly processed by NSDL/CDSL in electronic form through the respective Depository
Participants. Dematerialisation is required to be done with a period of 15 days from the date of lodgment of dematerialisation request,
complete in all respects, with the Depository Participant of the Shareholder.

60

Persistence pays

STAR FERRO AND CEMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT

2014/15

Distribution of Shareholding of Ordinary Shares as on 31st March, 2015.
Shareholding

No. of Shareholders

No. of Shares

Total

%

7234

78.88

754660

0.34

520

5.68

455357

0.20

1001-5000

928

10.11

2265898

1.02

5001-10000

212

2.32

1552478

0.70

95

1.03

1376918

0.62

1- 500
501-1000

10001- 20000
20001 and above
Total

Total

%

182

1.98

215767679

97.12

9171

100.00

222172990

100.00

Number of

Number of

% of total Share

Shareholders

Shares

Capital

29

147689656

66.47

Shareholding Pattern as on 31st March, 2015
Category
Promoter and Promoter Group
Foreign Institutional Investors
Bodies Corporate
Trusts
Clearing Member
NRIs

5

249170

0.11

401

20701688

9.32

7

110250

0.05

61

56460

0.03

108

53111

0.02

Individual

8560

53312655

24.00

TOTAL

9171

222172990

100.00

Promoter and Promoter Group
24.00

Foreign Institutional Investors
Bodies Corporate
Trusts
Clearing Member
NRIs
Individual

0.02
0.03
0.05

9.32

0.11
66.47
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Dematerialisation of shares and liquidity
The Company’s shares are compulsorily traded in dematerialised form and are available for trading on both the Depositories in India
– National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Ltd. (CDSL).
221225801 Ordinary Shares of the Company representing 99.57 of the Company’s share capital is dematerialised as on 31st March,
2015.

Address for Correspondence:
The Compliance Officer
Star Ferro and Cement Limited
Satyam Tower, 3 Alipore Road
Kolkata-700 027
Phone: 033 22435029
Fax: 033 22484787
Email: investors@starferrocement.co.in
Website: www.starferrocement.co.in

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Place: Kolkata

Sajjan Bhajanka

Date: 7th May, 2015

Chairman

Compliance with Code of
Business Conduct and Ethics
As provided under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreements with the stock exchanges, it is hereby declared that all Board members and
senior management personnel of the Company have affirmed the compliance of the Code of Conduct for the year ended 31st March,
2015.
Place: Kolkata

Sanjay Kumar Gupta

Date: 7th May, 2015

Chief Executive Officer
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Certificate by Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer
To,
The Board of Directors
Star Ferro and Cement Limited
We the undersigned, in our respective capacities as Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of Star Ferro and Cement Limited
(‘the Company”), to the best of our knowledge and belief certify that:
a.

We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement for the Financial year ended 31st March, 2015 and based
on our knowledge and belief, we state that:
i)

These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that might
be misleading;

ii)

These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with existing accounting
standards, applicable laws and regulations;

b.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year are fraudulent, illegal or
violative of the Company’s code of conduct.

c.

We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting. We have evaluated the
effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting. Deficiencies in the design or
operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware, have been disclosed to the auditors and the Audit Committee
and steps have been taken to rectify these deficiencies.

d.

We have indicated, based on our most recent evaluation, wherever applicable, to the Auditors and Audit Committee:
i)

Significant changes, if any, in internal control over financial reporting during the year;

ii)

Significant changes, if any, in accounting policies made during the year and that the same has been disclosed in the notes
to the financial statements; and

iii) Instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the management or any
employee having a significant role in the Company’s internal control system over financial reporting.

Place: Kolkata

Sanjay Kumar Gupta

Dilip Kumar Agarwal

Date: 7th May, 2015

Chief Executive Officer

Chief Financial Officer
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Auditors’ Certificate
on Corporate Governance
To
The Members of
Star Ferro & Cement Limited
Vill:-Lumshnong, P.O. Khaliehrait,
Dist. East Jaintia Hills,
Meghalaya - 793 210

We have examined the compliance of conditions of the Corporate Governance by Star Ferro & Cement Limited for the year ended on
31st March, 2015, as stipulated in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement of the said company with Stock Exchange(s).
The compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. Our examination was limited to
the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of the Corporate
Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we certify that the Company has
complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in Clause 49 of Listing Agreement.
We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness
with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For KAILASH B. GOEL and CO.
Firm Registration No. 322460E
Chartered Accountants

Place : Kolkata
Date : 7th May, 2015
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Independent Auditors’ Report
To
The Members of
Star Ferro and Cement Limited

Report on the Financial Statement
We have audited the accompanying standalone financial
statements of Star Ferro and Cement Limited (“the Company”),
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2015 and
the Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement for
the period then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters
in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with
respect to the preparation and presentation of these standalone
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company
in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes the
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provision of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting the frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial control that were operating effectively
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone
financial statements based on our audit.
We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the
accounting and auditing standards and matters which are
required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of
the Act and the Rules made there under.
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those
Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments; the auditor considers internal financial
control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the financial
statements that give true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on whether the Company
has in place an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and the operating effectiveness of such
controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the
accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
standalone financial statements.
Opinion
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone financial
statements give the information required by the Act in the manner
so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India:
(i) in the case of the Balance Sheet of the state of affairs of the
Company as at 31st March, 2015;
(ii) in the case of the Statement of Profit and Loss account, of
the Loss of the Company for the year ended on that date;
and
(iii) in the case of Cash Flow Statement, of the Cash flows of the
Company for the year ended on that date.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order,
2015 (“the order”) as amended, issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Sub-section (11) Section
143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the said Order, to
the extent applicable.
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2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:
a)

b)

c)

We have sought and obtained all the information and
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;
In our opinion proper books of account as required by
law have been kept by the Company so far as appears
from our examination of those books;
The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss and
Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account;

d)

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial
statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule
7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014;

e)

On the basis of written representations received from
the directors as on March 31, 2015 and taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the Directors
is disqualified as on March 31, 2015 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Sub-section (2) of
Section 164 of the Act.

f)

66
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Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
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Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us:
i.

The Company does not have any pending litigations
which would impact its financial position.

ii.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts
including derivative contracts for which there were
any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be
transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company.

For KAILASH B. GOEL and CO.
Firm Registration No. 322460E
Chartered Accountants

Place : Kolkata
Date : 7th May, 2015

CA. Arun Kumar Sharma
Partner
Membership No. 57329
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Annexure to Independent Auditors’ Report
Annexure referred to in Paragraph (1) under the heading of “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” of our report of
even date.

1. Since the Company does not have any Fixed Assets during
the year, in our opinion paragraph 3(i) of the Order is not
applicable.
2. Since the Company does not have any Inventories during
the year, in our opinion paragraph 3(ii) of the order is not
applicable.
3. The Company has not
company covered in the
189 of the Companies
paragraph 3(iii) of the
company.

granted any unsecured loan to
register maintained under Section
Act, 2013. So the provisions of
order are not applicable to the

4. In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, there is an adequate internal
control system commensurate with the size of the Company
and the nature of its business. During the course of our
audit, no major weakness has been noticed in these internal
controls.
5. On the basis of our examination of books and records of the
Company, in our opinion and according to the information
and explanations given to us, the company has not accepted
deposits during the year and therefore the directives issued
by the Reserve bank of India and the provisions of Sections
73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the rules framed there under are not
applicable to the Company.

(c) According to the information and explanation give to
us, there is no such amount which is required to be
transferred to investor education and protection fund
in accordance with the relevant provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder.
8. The Company has no accumulated losses at the end of
the financial year. It has incurred cash losses during the
financial year covered by our audit but not in the immediately
preceding financial year.
9. Based on our audit procedures and as per the information
and explanation given by the management, the Company
has not defaulted in repayment of dues to financial Institution
or Banks. The Company has not issued any debentures.
10. The Company has not given any guarantee for loan taken by
others from banks and financial institution.
11. The Company has not obtained any term loans and hence
paragraph 3(xi) of the Order is not applicable.
12. During the course of our examination of the books and
records of the Company carried out in accordance with
the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and
according to the information and explanations given to us,
we have neither come across any instance of fraud on or by
the Company, noticed or reported during the year, nor have
we been informed of any such case by the management.

6. In our opinion, maintenance of Cost records under Section
148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the
Company.
7. (a) The Company is generally regular in depositing
with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory
dues including Income Tax and other statutory dues
applicable to it. There are no undisputed amount
payable in respect of Income tax and other applicable
Statutory dues which were in arrears as at 31st March,
2015 for a period of more than six months from the
date they became payable.
(b) According to the information and explanation give to us,
there are no dues of Income tax and other applicable
Statutory Dues which have not been deposited on
account of any dispute.

For KAILASH B. GOEL and CO.
Firm Registration No. 322460E
Chartered Accountants

Place : Kolkata
Date : 7th May, 2015

CA. Arun Kumar Sharma
Partner
Membership No. 57329
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Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2015

(H in Lacs)

Particulars
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders’ Funds
Share Capital
Reserves and Surplus

31st March, 2015

31st March, 2014

2
3

2,221.73
786.14
3,007.87

2,221.73
9,229.23
11,450.96

4
5
6

6.06
6.06

835.98
78.10
27.70
941.78

7

17.36
0.27
17.63
3,031.56

1,733.72
1,058.40
252.45
105.38
3,149.95
15,542.69

2,954.75
2,954.75

2,959.11
1.12
28.57
2,988.80
6,328.25
837.30
3.14
10,157.49

5.94
70.87
76.81
3,031.56

2,001.64
1,656.20
116.87
1,213.94
396.55
5,385.20
15,542.69

Note

Non-Current Liabilities
Long Term Borrowings
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Long Term Provisions
Current Liabilities
Short Term Borrowings
Trade Payables
Other Current Liabilities
Short Term Provisions

8
9

Total
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Fixed Assets
-Tangible Assets
-Intangible Assets
-Capital Work in Progress

10
11

Non-Current Investments
Long Term Loans and Advances
Other Non-Current Assets

12
13
14

Current Assets
Current Investments
Inventories
Trade Receivables
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Short Term Loans and Advances
Other Current Assets

15
16
17
18
19
20

Total
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

1.2

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date
For Kailash B. Goel and Co.
Firm Registration No. 322460E
Chartered Accountants
CA. Arun Kumar Sharma
Partner
Membership No: 57329

Place: Kolkata
Date: 7th May, 2015
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Dilip Kumar Agarwal
Chief Financial Officer

Debabrata Thakurta
Company Secretary

Sajjan Bhajanka
Chairman and Director
DIN: 00246043
Hari Prasad Agarwal
Director
DIN: 00266005
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Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2015
Particulars

(H in Lacs)

Note

2014-15

2013-14

-

14,235.54

-

(341.97)

INCOME
Revenue from Operations (Gross)

21

Less: Excise Duty (Net)
Revenue from Operations (Net)
Other Income

22

Total Revenue

-

14,577.51

0.10

741.35

0.10

15,318.86

EXPENSES
Cost of Materials Consumed

23

-

4,374.75

(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories

24

-

826.31

Employee Benefit Expenses

25

51.61

516.76

Finance Costs

26

0.03

399.57

Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses

10

-

480.46

Other Expenses

27

Total Expenses
Profit/(Loss) before exceptional and extraordinary items and tax
Exceptional Items
Profit/(Loss) before tax [including H Nil (Profit of H1,303.14 lacs)
for discontinuing operations - Refer Note no. 29]

87.04

6,752.99

138.68

13,350.84

(138.58)

1,968.02

-

9.56

(138.58)

1,977.58

Tax Expenses
-Current Tax

-

217.46

Less MAT Credit Entitlement

-

(98.94)

Net Current Tax

-

118.52

-Deferred Tax
Profit/(Loss) for the year [including H Nil (Profit of H898.80 lacs)
for discontinuing operations - Refer Note no. 29]

-

285.83

(138.58)

1,573.23

(0.06)

0.71

(0.06)

0.71

Earnings Per Equity Share (Nominal value of share H1/-)
Basic Earning Per Share
Diluted Earning Per Share
Significant accounting policies and notes on accounts

1.2

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date
For Kailash B. Goel and Co.
Firm Registration No.: 322460E
Chartered Accountants
CA. Arun Kumar Sharma
Partner
Membership No.: 57329

Place: Kolkata
Date: 7th May, 2015

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Dilip Kumar Agarwal
Chief Financial Officer

Debabrata Thakurta
Company Secretary

Sajjan Bhajanka
Chairman and Director
DIN: 00246043
Hari Prasad Agarwal
Director
DIN: 00266005
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Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2015
Particulars

(H in Lacs)
2014-15

2013-14

(138.58)

1,977.58

A CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit before Tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation/Amortisation
Finance Cost
Dividend Income
(Profit)/Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets

-

480.46

0.03

399.57

-

(738.69)

-

(1.19)

(0.10)

(2.66)

(138.65)

2,115.07

(Increase)/ Decrease in Trade Receivables

-

(508.43)

(Increase)/ Decrease in Inventories

-

821.32

(Increase)/ Decrease in Long Term Loans and Advances

-

(738.43)

(Increase)/ Decrease in Short Term Loans and Advances

(70.87)

(481.08)

(Increase)/ Decrease in Other Current Assets

76.90

(15.79)

Increase/ (Decrease) in Long Term Provisions

6.06

6.77

Increase/ (Decrease) in Short Term Provisions

0.27

82.33

Interest and Other Income
Operating Profit before Working Capital changes
Adjustments for:

Increase/ (Decrease) in Other Long Term Liabilities

-

(336.99)

17.36

(47.44)

-

186.67

(108.94)

1,084.00

-

(118.51)

(108.94)

965.49

Purchase of Fixed Assets

-

(45.81)

Sale / Adjustments of Fixed Assets

-

38.19

Increase/ (Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities
Increase/ (Decrease) in Trade Payables
Cash Generated from Operations
Direct Taxes Paid ( Net of Refunds )
Net Cash generated from Operating Activities
B CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Fixed Deposits/Margin Money (Given)/Refund

1.85

2.68

-

738.69

Interest Received

0.10

2.66

Net Cash from Investing Activities

1.95

736.41

Dividend Received

70

Persistence pays

STAR FERRO AND CEMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT

2014/15

Cash Flow Statement (contd.)

for the year ended 31st March, 2015

(H in Lacs)

Particulars

2014-15

2013-14

Repayment of Short Term Borrowings

-

(417.61)

Repayment of Long Term Borrowings

-

(200.39)

C CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Interest Paid

(0.03)

(374.01)

Other Borrowing Cost Paid

-

(11.40)

Dividend paid

-

(733.17)

Net Cash used in Financing Activities
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A + B + C)
Cash and Cash Equivalents as on 1st April, 2014
Less: Amount transferred pursuant to Scheme of Arrangement (Refer Note no. 28)
* Cash and Cash Equivalents as on 31st March, 2015

(0.03)

(1,736.58)

(107.02)

(34.68)

116.87

151.55

3.91

-

112.96

151.55

5.94

116.87

*

Represents Cash and Bank Balances as indicated in Note 18.

*

It includes earmarked balance with bank of H1.67 lacs which are not available for use by the company as they represent unpaid
dividend liability.

Note :
1) As the Ferro Alloys Division of the Company has been demerged and transferred to the resulting company, Shyam Century Ferrous
Limited, the current year Cash Flow Statement is not comparable with the corresponding previous year Cash Flow Statement
2) The Cash Flow Statement for the current financial year has been reported after exclusion of the financial statements of demerging
Ferro Alloy Division.

As per our report of even date
For Kailash B. Goel and Co.
Firm Registration No. 322460E
Chartered Accountants
CA. Arun Kumar Sharma
Partner
Membership No.: 57329

Place: Kolkata
Date: 7th May, 2015

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Dilip Kumar Agarwal
Chief Financial Officer

Debabrata Thakurta
Company Secretary

Sajjan Bhajanka
Chairman and Director
DIN: 00246043
Hari Prasad Agarwal
Director
DIN: 00266005
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Notes to Financial Statements
1. CORPORATE INFORMATION
Star Ferro and Cement Limited (the Company) is a public company domiciled in India and incorporated under the provisions of
the Companies Act, 1956. Its shares are listed on National Stock Exchange and Bombay Stock Exchange in India. The Company
is holding investments in its subsidiaries which are engaged in manufacture of Cement, Cement Clinker and generation of Power.
1.1 Basis of Preparation
The financial statements of the company have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in
India (Indian GAAP). The Company has prepared these financial statements to comply in all material respects with the Accounting
Standards as prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014 and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent notified. The financial statements are prepared under
the historical cost convention on accrual basis and on the basis of going concern. The accounting policies are consistently followed
by the company and changes in accounting policy are separately disclosed.
1.2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(i) Revenue Recognition
(a) Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the company and the
revenue can be reliably measured.
(b) Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to receive the payment is established.
(c) Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and rate applicable.
(ii) Fixed Assets
Fixed Assets are stated at their cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated depreciation/amortisation and impairment
loss, if any. Cost comprises the purchase price, installation and attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition
for its intended use.
(iii) Intangible Assets
Intangible assets are recognised when it is probable that the future economic benefit that are attributable to the assets will
flow to the Company and the cost of the assets can be measured reliably. The amortisable amount of an intangible asset is
allocated over its estimated useful life.
(iv) Impairment of Assets
The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine if there is any indication of impairment
based on external/internal factors. An impairment loss is recognised wherever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount which represents the greater of the net selling price and ‘Value in use’ of the assets. In assessing the
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and risks specific to the asset.
(v) Depreciation
Depreciation on fixed assets is provided under Written Down Value method in accordance with the provisions of Schedule
II to the Companies Act, 2013 and considering the useful lives for computing depreciation specified in Part ‘C’, thereof. In
respect of an asset for which impairment loss is recognised, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the
assets over its remaining useful life.
(vi) Investments
Investments that are readily realisable and intended to be held for not more than a year are classified as Current investments.
All other investments are classified as long-term investments. Current investments are carried at lower of cost and market/fair
value on individual investment basis. Long-term investments are considered at cost, unless there is an “other than temporary”
decline in value, in which case adequate provision is made for the diminution in the value of Investments.
(vii) Retirement and other employee benefits
(a) Retirement benefit in the form of Provident Fund is a defined contribution scheme and is charged to the Statement of
Profit and Loss for the year when the contributions to the respective funds are due. The Company has no obligations
other than the contribution payable to the respective funds.
(b) Gratuity liability, being a defined benefit obligation, is provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation on projected unit
credit method made at the end of each financial year.
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Notes to Financial Statements (contd.)
(c) Short term compensated absences are provided for based on estimates. Long term compensated absences are provided
for based on actuarial valuation which is done as per projected unit credit method at the end of each financial year.
(d) Actuarial gains / losses are immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss and are not deferred.
(viii) Earnings per Share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders (after
deductible preference dividend and attributable taxes) by the weighted number of equity shares outstanding during the year.
For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity share holders and
the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effect of all dilutive potential equity
shares.
(ix) Taxation
Tax expenses comprises of current and deferred tax. Current income tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to
the tax authorities in accordance with the Indian Income Tax Act, 1961. Deferred income taxes reflect the impact of current
year timing differences between taxable income for the year and reversal of timing differences of earlier years.
The deferred tax for timing differences between the book and tax profits for the year is accounted for using the tax rates and
laws that have been substantively enacted as of the Balance Sheet date. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are
offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities relate to the taxes on income levied by same governing taxation laws. Deferred tax assets are
recognised only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available against
which such deferred tax assets can be realised. If the company has carry forward unabsorbed depreciation and tax losses,
deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent there is virtual certainty supported by convincing evidence that sufficient
taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be realised.
The carrying amounts of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date. The company writes-down the carrying
amount of deferred tax assets to the extent that it is no longer reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be, that
sufficient future taxable income will be available against which deferred tax asset can be realised. Any such write-down is
reversed to the extent that it becomes reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future taxable
income will be available.
Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence
that the company will pay normal income tax during the specified period. In the year in which the Minimum Alternative Tax
(MAT) credit becomes eligible to be recognised as an asset in accordance with the recommendation contained in guidance
note issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, the said assets is created by way of a credit to the statement
of profit and loss and shown as MAT credit entitlement. The company reviews the carrying amount of MAT at each Balance
Sheet date and writes down MAT credit entitlement to the extent there is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that the
company will pay normal income-tax during specified period.
(x) Cash and Cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of Cash Flow Statement comprise cash in hand, demand deposits with Banks and
other short-term highly liquid investments/deposits with an original maturity of three months or less.
(xi) Provision
A provision is recognised when an enterprise has a present obligation as a result of past event and it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions
made in terms of Accounting Standard 29 are not discounted to their present value and are determined based on best
estimates required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.
(xii) Contingent Liabilities
A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not
recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability
also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognised because it cannot be measured reliably.
The Company does not recognise a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements. Contingent
assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the financial statements.
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2. SHARE CAPITAL
(H in Lacs)
31st March, 2015

Particulars

31st March, 2014

Authorised
23,00,00,000 (23,00,00,000 as at 31.03.2014) Equity Shares of H1/- each fully paid-up

2,300.00

2,300.00

Total

2,300.00

2,300.00

Issued
22,21,72,990 (22,21,72,990 as at 31.03.2014) Equity Shares of H1/- each fully paid-up

2,221.73

2,221.73

Total

2,221.73

2,221.73

Subscribed and Paid up
22,21,72,990 (22,21,72,990 as at 31.03.2014) Equity Shares of H1/- each fully paid-up

2,221.73

2,221.73

Total

2,221.73

2,221.73

a) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period
Equity Shares

31st March, 2014

No. of Shares

(H in Lacs)

No. of Shares

(H in Lacs)

222,172,990

2,221.73

500,000

5.00

Cancelled during the year
(pursuant to Scheme of Arrangement)

-

-

(500,000)

(5.00)

Issued during the year
(pursuant to Scheme of Arrangement)

-

-

222,172,990

2,221.73

222,172,990

2,221.73

222,172,990

2,221.73

At the Beginning of the year

Outstanding at the end of the year
b)

31st March, 2015

Terms/Rights attached to the Equity Shares and Notes
The company has only one class of equity shares having par value of H1/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to
one vote per share.
The company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the
approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting except in case of interim dividend.
In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company,
after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the
shareholders.

c) Terms of issue of shares other than cash
Pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement (“the scheme”) between Century Plyboards (India) Limited (CPIL), the Company and their
respective shareholders as approved by the Hon’ble High Court at Kolkata vide its order dated 17th May, 2013, the company has
issued and alloted 22,21,72,990 Equity Shares to the shareholders of CPIL in ratio of 1 (one) Equity share of H1/- each of the
Company as fully paid-up for every 1 (one) Equity Share of H1/- each held by them in CPIL.
d) Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company
Particulars

31st March, 2015

31st March, 2014

No. of Shares

% holding in
the class

No. of Shares

% holding in
the class

Mr. Sajjan Bhajanka

16772675

7.55

23371570

10.52

Mr. Sanjay Agarwal

19539245

8.79

23788740

10.71

Equity Shares of H1/- each fully paid-up

Mrs. Santosh Bhajanka

15049500

6.77

15649500

7.04

Mrs. Divya Agarwal

14488750

6.52

16749750

7.54

Mr. Prem Kumar Bhajanka

27369386

12.32

22125176

9.96

As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/members, the above shareholding represents legal ownerships
of shares.
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3. RESERVES AND SURPLUS
(H in Lacs)
Particulars
Capital Reserves
Balance as per last account
Less : Amount adjusted pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement (Refer Note no. 28)
Closing Balance
General Reserve
Balance as per the last account
Add: Transferred from Statement of Profit and Loss
Closing Balance
Surplus as per Statement of Profit and Loss
Balance as per the last account
Add: Profit /(Loss) for the year
Less: Appropriations
- Interim Equity Dividend H Nil (H0.33) per share
- Transfer to General Reserve
Total Appropriations
Net Surplus in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Total

31st March, 2015

31st March, 2014

8,948.03
8,304.50
643.53

8,948.03
8,948.03

101.00
101.00

101.00
101.00

180.20
(138.58)

(558.86)
1,573.23

41.61
786.14

733.17
101.00
834.17
180.20
9,229.23

4. LONG TERM BORROWINGS
(H in Lacs)
Particulars
Term Loans (Secured)
-Rupee Term Loan from a Financial Institution
Other Loans and Advances (Secured)
-Hire Purchase Finance
From Bank
From Bodies Corporate
Less: Current Maturities of Long Term Borrowing and Hire Purchase Obligations
Total

31st March, 2015

31st March, 2014

-

978.94

-

28.09
10.56
1,017.59
181.61
835.98

-

5. DEFERRED TAX ASSET / (LIABILITY) (NET)
(H in Lacs)
Particulars
Deferred Tax Asset
Business Loss Carried forward
Impact of expenditure charged to the statement of profit and loss in the current
year but allowable for tax purposes upon payment
Provision for Bad and Doubtful Debts
Deferred Tax Liability
Fixed assets: Impact of difference between tax depreciation and depreciation/
amortisation charged
Net Deferred Tax Asset / (Liability)

31st March, 2015

31st March, 2014

-

9.58

-

42.14
51.72

-

129.82

-

129.82
(78.10)

Note: Deferred tax asset is not recognised in respect of business loss and expenditures allowable on payment basis for tax purpose,
considering the principle of prudence. However, the position will be reviewed every year.
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6. LONG TERM PROVISIONS
(H in Lacs)
31st March, 2015

31st March, 2014

-Gratuity

3.11

18.84

-Leave Encashment

2.95

8.86

6.06

27.70

Particulars
Provisions for employee benefits

Total

7. SHORT TERM BORROWINGS
(H in Lacs)
Particulars

31st March, 2015

31st March, 2014

-

1,294.12

-

219.80

Working Capital Facilities
-Cash Credit from a bank (Secured)
Short Term Loan
-From Bodies Corporate (Unsecured)
Loans from related parties
- From Bodies Corporate (Unsecured)

-

219.80

-

1,733.72

31st March, 2015

31st March, 2014

Current Maturities of long term borrowings

-

181.61

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings

-

0.13

Total

8. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
(H in Lacs)
Particulars

Other Payables
-Statutory Liabilities

2.89

62.43

-Creditors-Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (Refer Note no. 31)

-

-

-Advances from customer

-

8.28

-Salary and Bonus Payable to Employees

1.61

-

-Unclaimed dividends**

1.67

-

11.18

-

17.36

252.45

-Other Liabilities
Total

** Amount to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund shall be determined on the respective due date.
9. SHORT TERM PROVISIONS
(H in Lacs)
Particulars

31st March, 2015

31st March, 2014

-Gratuity

0.14

1.81

-Leave Encashment

0.13

-

-

103.57

0.27

105.38

Provisions for employee benefits

Other Provisions
-Provision for Taxation
(Net of Advance Tax and Mat Credit Entitlement)
Total
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10. TANGIBLE ASSETS
(H in Lacs)
Land

Factory and

Plant and

Electrical Furniture and

Office

Computers

Vehicles

and Site

Non-Factory

Machinery

Installations

Fixtures

Equipments

Total

Development

Buildings

86.17

1,403.49

4,557.35

1,110.04

34.23

-

-

1.68

7.74

0.18

8.51

25.00

670.17

7,894.95

3.64

3.59

9.57

26.41

COST
At 1st April, 2013
Addition

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

83.19

83.19

At 31st March, 2014

Disposals

86.17

1,403.49

4,559.03

1,117.78

34.41

12.15

28.59

596.56

7,838.17

Transferred to the resulting

86.17

1,403.49

4,559.03

1,117.78

34.41

12.15

28.59

596.56

7,838.17

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

At 1st April, 2013

-

618.85

2,681.01

682.53

25.40

5.32

19.93

422.44

4,455.48

Charge for the year

-

65.51

284.46

64.86

1.52

0.44

3.23

60.16

480.18

Disposal

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

56.61

56.61

At 31st March, 2014

-

684.36

2,965.47

747.39

26.92

5.76

23.16

425.99

4,879.06

Transferred to the resulting

-

684.36

2,965.47

747.39

26.92

5.76

23.16

425.99

4,879.06

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

As at 31st March, 2014

86.17

719.13

1,593.55

370.39

7.50

6.39

5.42

170.57

2,959.11

As at 31st March, 2015

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

company pursuant to
Scheme of Arrangement
(Refer Note no. 28)
As at 31 March, 2015
Depreciation

company pursuant to
Scheme of Arrangement
(Refer Note no. 28)
As at 31 March, 2015
Net Block

11. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
(H in Lacs)

Total
COST
At 1st April, 2013
Addition
Disposals

1.75
-

At 31st March, 2014

1.75

Transferred to the resulting company pursuant to Scheme of Arrangement (Refer Note no. 28)

1.75

As at 31 March, 2015

-

Depreciation
At 1st April, 2013

0.35

Charge for the year

0.28

Disposal

-

At 31st March, 2014

0.63

Transferred to the resulting company pursuant to Scheme of Arrangement (Refer Note no. 28)

0.63

As at 31 March, 2015

-

Net Block
As at 31st March, 2014

1.12

As at 31st March, 2015

-
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12. NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS
(H in Lacs)
Particulars

31st March, 2015

31st March, 2014

2,954.75

2,954.75

-

3,373.50

2,954.75

6,328.25

Trade Investments (valued at cost unless stated otherwise)
Investment in Unquoted Equity Instruments
Investment in subsidiaries
Cement Manufacturing Company Limited
2,95,47,500 ( 2,95,47,500 as at 31.03.14 ) Equity Shares of H10/- each fully
paid-up
Meghalaya Power Limited*
Nil ( 83,58,998 as at 31.03.14 ) Equity Shares of H10/- each fully paid-up
Total

* Transferred to the resulting company pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement (Refer Note no. 28).
13. LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
(H in Lacs)
Particulars

31st March, 2015

31st March, 2014

-

62.16

-

62.16

Prepaid expenses

-

0.16

Balance with Statutory/Government Authorities

-

774.98

Security Deposits
-Unsecured, Considered Good
Other Loans and advances
-Unsecured considered Good

Total

-

775.14

-

837.30

14. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS
(H in Lacs)
Particulars

31st March, 2015

31st March, 2014

-In Fixed Deposit accounts with original maturity of more than 12 months

-

3.14

Total

-

3.14

Secured, Considered Good

15. CURRENT INVESTMENTS
(H in Lacs)
Particulars

31st March, 2015

31st March, 2014

5,00,000 (NIL as at 31.03.14) Equity Shares of H1/- each fully paid up

5.00

-

Less : Provision*

5.00

-

-

-

Trade Investments (valued at cost unless stated otherwise)
Investment in Unquoted Equity Instruments
Investment in subsidiaries
Shyam Century Ferrous Limited

Total

* The above shares will get cancelled on issuance of fresh equity shares by the resulting company pursuant to the Scheme of
Arrangement and accordingly provision for the same has been made in accounts. (Refer Note no. 28)
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16. INVENTORIES
(H in Lacs)
31st March, 2015

31st March, 2014

Raw Materials

-

204.80

Finished Goods

-

219.16

Stores and Spare Parts, etc.

-

1,577.68

-

2,001.64

Particulars
Inventories

Total
17. TRADE RECEIVABLES

(H in Lacs)
Particulars

31st March, 2015

31st March, 2014

Considered Good

-

106.96

Considered Doubtful

-

129.89

Less: Provision for Bad and Doubtful debts

-

(129.89)

-

106.96

-

1,549.24

-

1,549.24

-

1,656.20

Unsecured
Over Six Months

Other Debts
Unsecured Considered Good
Total
18. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
(H in Lacs)
Particulars

31st March, 2015

31st March, 2014

Cash On Hand

-

3.97

Cheques In Hand

-

11.37

- In current accounts

4.27

101.53

- On unpaid Dividend Account

1.67

-

5.94

116.87

Balance with Banks:

Total
19. SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

(H in Lacs)
Particulars
Others
Unsecured considered Good
Advances Income Tax Net of Provisions
Advances to suppliers
Advances for Services and Expenses
Security Deposits
Prepaid Expenses
Balances with/Receivable from Statutory/Government Authorities
Loans and Advances to Related Party
Advance recoverable from an associate
Total

31st March, 2015

31st March, 2014

-

166.38
326.75
0.50
16.21
704.10

70.87
70.87

1,213.94

79

Persistence pays

Notes to Financial Statements (contd.)
20. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
(H in Lacs)
Particulars

31st March, 2015

31st March, 2014

Unsecured, Considered Good
-Subsidies/Incentives Receivable from Central/State Government
Total

-

396.55

-

396.55

21. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
(H in Lacs)
Particulars
Revenue from Operations
Sale of products
- Finished Goods
Other Operating Revenues
Miscellaneous Income
Revenue from Operation (Gross)
Details of Products Sold
Finished Goods Sold
Ferro Silicon

2014-15

2013-14

-

14,206.63

-

28.91
14,235.54

-

14,206.63
14,206.63

22. OTHER INCOME
(H in Lacs)
Particulars
Dividend Income

2014-15

2013-14

-

738.69

Interest Income on Fixed Deposits

0.06

2.66

Miscellaneous Receipts

0.04

-

Total

0.10

741.35

23. COST OF RAW MATERIALS CONSUMED
(H in Lacs)
Particulars
Inventory at the beginning of the year
Less: Stock transferred to the resulting company pursuant to the Scheme of
Arrangement (Refer Note no. 28)
Add: Purchases
Less: Inventory at the end of the year
Cost of Material Consumed
Details of Raw Material consumed
Charcoal
Quartz
Lam Coke
Mill Scale
Coal
Other
Total
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2014-15

2013-14

204.80
204.80

156.27

-

4,423.28
4,579.55
204.80
4,374.75

-

1,521.48
501.86
1,926.61
372.16
30.11
22.53
4,374.75
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24. (INCREASE)/DECREASE IN INVENTORIES
(H in Lacs)
2014-15

2013-14

Inventory at the beginning of the year - Finished Goods

219.16

1,045.47

Less : Inventories transferred to the resulting company pursuant to the Scheme of
Arrangement (Refer Note no. 28)

219.16

Particulars

Inventory at the end of the year

-

219.16

(Increase) /Decrease

-

826.31

Ferro Silicon

-

209.30

Silico Manganese

-

9.86

-

219.16

Details of Finished Goods

25. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
(H in Lacs)
Particulars
Salaries and Wages

2014-15

2013-14

48.98

454.91

Contribution to Provident Fund and other Funds

2.37

16.63

Staff Welfare Expenses

0.26

45.22

51.61

516.76

Total

26. FINANCE COSTS
(H in Lacs)
Particulars

2014-15

2013-14

-On Fixed Loans

-

137.66

-On Other Loans

0.03

236.35

-

25.56

0.03

399.57

Interest Expenses

Other Finance Costs
Total
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27. OTHER EXPENSES
(H in Lacs)
2014-15

2013-14

Consumption of Stores and Spares

-

782.13

Packing Materials

-

93.76

Power and Fuel (Net)

-

4,677.36

Particulars

Repairs and Maintenance
- Building

-

63.93

- Plant and Machinery

-

208.85

- Others

-

7.05

Excise Duty variation on opening/closing inventory

-

(96.69)

1.93

61.65

Travelling and Conveyance

4.95

15.86

Corporate Social Responsibility

5.00

0.55

-

12.30

Rent, Rates and Taxes

Share Issue Expenses
Listing Expenses (including publication)

27.22

14.15

Outward Freight Charges

-

736.76

Commission, Discount and Incentives on Sale

-

43.81

Miscellaneous Expenses

47.94

131.52

Total

87.04

6,752.99

28. SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT
a) Pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement (“The Scheme”) between the Company, Shyam Century Ferrous Limited (SCFL) and their
respective shareholders as approved by the Hon’ble High Court of Meghalaya at Shillong vide its order dated 31st March, 2015,
all the assets and liabilities of the Ferro Alloy division (i.e. business and interest of the company in manufacture of Ferro Alloys
including captive power plant at Byrnihat in the State of Meghalaya) and investment in 83,58,998 Equity Shares of Meghalaya
Power Limited of face value of H10/- each, have been transferred to and vested in Shyam Century Ferrous Limited (Resulting
Company) at their respective book values on a going concern basis with effect from 1st April, 2014 being the appointed date.
The said order of the Hon’ble High Court has been filed with the Registrar of Companies on 10th April, 2015, the effective date
of the scheme and accordingly, the Scheme of Arrangement has been given effect to in these accounts.
b)

The details of assets and liabilities transferred to the Resulting Company are as under :
(H in Lacs)
Particulars

Amount

Assets
Non-Current Assets
Fixed Assets
Capital Work in Progress
Long term Loans and Advances
Other Non - Current Assets
Non-Current Investments

2,960.23
28.57
837.30
1.29
3,373.50
7,200.89

Current Asset
Inventories
Sundry Debtors
Cash and Cash equivalents
Short term Loans and Advances
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2,001.64
1,656.20
3.90
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28. SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT (contd.)
(H in Lacs)
Particulars

Amount

Other Current Assets

396.55
5,272.23
12,473.12

Total Assets (A)
Current Liabilities and Short term Provisions
Short term Borrowings
Trade Payables
Other Current Liabilities
Short term Provisions

1,733.72
1,058.40
329.35
105.38
3,226.85

Non-Current Liabilities
Long term Borrowings
Long term Provisions
Deferred Tax Liabilities

835.98
27.70
78.10
941.78
4,168.63
8,304.49

Total Liabilities (B)
Difference (A-B)
c)

Pursuant to the Scheme, the difference between book value of assets and liabilities transferred to the Resulting Company has been
debited to the following Reserve of the Company :
(H in Lacs)
Particulars

Amount

Capital Reserve

8,304.49

Total

8,304.49

29. DISCONTINUING OPERATIONS
The following statement shows the revenue and expenses of discontinuing operations i.e. Ferro Alloy division of the company which
has been demerged w.e.f. 1st April, 2014 (Refer Note no. 28)
(H in Lacs)
Particulars
Income
Revenue from Operations (Gross)
Less: Excise Duty
Revenue from Operations (Net)
Other Income
Total Revenue (I)
Expenses
Cost of Raw Materials consumed
(Increase)/Decrease in inventories
Employee Benefit Expenses
Other Expenses
Total (II)
Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (EBIDTA) (I – II)
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Finance Cost
Profit Before Tax
Tax Expense
Profit/(Loss) After Tax

2014-15

2013-14

-

14,235.54
(341.97)
14,577.51
9.56
14,587.07

-

4,374.75
826.31
507.99
6,694.85
12,403.90
2,183.17
480.46
399.57
1,303.14
404.34
898.80
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29. DISCONTINUING OPERATIONS (contd.)
The carrying amounts of the total assets and liabilities of the Ferro Alloy division of the company are as follows:
(H in Lacs)
Particulars
Total Assets
Total Liabilities
Net Assets

2014-15

2013-14

-

12,473.12
4,168.63
8,304.49

The net cash attributable to the Ferro Alloy division of the company is below:
(H in Lacs)
Particulars
Operating Activities
Investing Activities
Financing Activities
Net Cash inflows/(outflows)

2014-15

2013-14

-

1,109.15
(2.27)
(1,249.78)
(142.90)

30. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
(H in Lacs)
Particulars

31st March, 2015

31st March, 2014

(a) Bills discounted with banks

-

2,088.71

(b) Solvent surety given to Excise Department against differential
excise duty refund

-

404.88

Contingent Liabilities not provided for in respect of:

31. There are no Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises, as defined in the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,
2006 to whom the Company owes dues on account of principal amount together with interest and accordingly no additional
disclosures have been made. The above information regarding Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has been determined to the
extent such parties have been identified on the basis of the information available with the Company.

32. PAYMENT TO AUDITORS
(H in Lacs)
Particulars

2014-15

2013-14

-Audit Fees

1.25

1.10

-Limited Review Fees

6.00

6.00

-

0.50

Certification and Other Services

0.55

1.00

Total

7.80

8.60

As Auditor

-Tax Audit Fees
In Other Capacity
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33. EMPLOYEE DEFINED BENEFITS
(a) Defined Contribution Plans: The Company has recognised an expense of H2.36 Lacs (Previous year H9.28 Lacs towards the
defined contribution plans).
(b) The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more service is entitled
to Gratuity on terms not less than the provisions of The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The following tables summarise the
components of net benefit expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss and amounts recognised in the balance sheet
for the Gratuity.
(c) Under leave encashment scheme, the company allows its employees to encash accumulated leave over and above thirty days
at any time during the year.
(d) Defined Benefit Plans – As per Actuarial Valuation as at 31st March, 2015.
(H in Lacs)
Particulars

I.

2014-15

2013-14

Gratuity

Leave
Encashment

Gratuity

Leave
Encashment

1. Current Service Cost

0.73

1.25

5.54

1.64

2. Interest Cost

Expense recognised in the statement of Profit
and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2015
0.13

0.12

1.87

0.80

3. Employee Contribution

-

-

-

-

4. Expected Return on Plan Assets

-

-

-

-

2.38

2.55

(0.82)

2.03

-

-

-

-

3.25

3.93

6.59

4.47

3.25

3.08

20.66

8.86

-

-

-

-

5. Actuarial (Gains)/Losses
6. Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on plan Assets
7. Total Expense
II. Net Asset/(Liability) recognised in the Balance
Sheet as at 31st March, 2015
1. Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation
2. Fair Value of Plan Assets
3. Funded Status [Surplus/(Deficit)]

(3.25)

(3.08)

(20.66)

(8.86)

4. Net Asset/(Liability) as at 31st March, 2015

(3.25)

(3.08)

(20.66)

(8.86)

-

-

20.93

8.89

2. Current Service Cost

0.73

1.25

5.54

1.64

3. Interest Cost

III. Change in Obligation during the Year ended 31st
March, 2015
1. Present value of Defined Benefit Obligation at
the beginning of the year

0.13

0.12

1.87

0.80

4. Past Service Cost

-

-

-

-

5. Employee Contribution

-

-

-

-

6. Liabilities assumed on acquisition/(settled on
divesture)

-

-

-

-

2.38

2.55

(0.82)

2.03

-

(0.84)

(6.86)

(4.50)

3.25

4.77

20.66

8.86

7. Actuarial (Gains/Losses)
8. Benefits Payments
9. Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation at
the end of the year
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33. EMPLOYEE DEFINED BENEFITS (contd.)
(H in Lacs)
Particulars

2014-15

2013-14

Gratuity

Leave
Encashment

Gratuity

Leave
Encashment

1. Plan Assets at the beginning of the year

-

-

-

-

2. Assets acquired on amalgamation in previous
year

-

-

-

-

3. Actual return on plan assets

-

-

-

-

4. Contributions by employer

-

0.84

6.86

4.50

5. Actual Benefit Paid

-

(0.84)

(6.86)

(4.50)

IV. Change in assets during the Year ended March,
2015

6. Actuarial Gains/(Losses)

-

-

-

-

7. Plan Assets at the end of the year

-

-

-

-

8. Actual Return on plan assets

-

-

-

-

8.00%

8.00%

8.25%

8.25%

-

-

-

-

5%

5%

5%

5%

1%-8%

1%-8%

1%-8%

1%-8%

V. The principal actuarial assumptions are as
follows:
Discount Rate
Expected Return on Plan Assets
Salary increase
Withdrawal rates (Varying between per annum
depending upon the duration and age of the
employees)

e.

The details of the Experience adjustments for the current and previous periods are as follows:
(H in Lacs)
Particulars

Defined Benefit Obligation
Plan Assets
Surplus/(Deficit)
Experience adjustments on plan Liability
Experience adjustments on plan Assets
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2014-15

2013-14

Gratuity

Leave
Encashment

Gratuity

Leave
Encashment

3.25

3.08

20.66

8.86

-

-

-

-

(3.25)

(3.08)

(20.66)

(8.86)

0.06

0.06

0.82

(2.03)

-

-

-

-
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34. EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS):
In terms of Accounting Standard - 20, the calculation of EPS is given below:
Particulars

2014-15

2013-14

Profit/(Loss) attributable to Equity Shareholders for basic and diluted EPS

(138.58)

1,573.23

Weighted average number of Equity Shares for basic EPS

22,21,72,990

22,21,72,990

Weighted average number of Equity Shares for diluted EPS

22,21,72,990

22,21,72,990

Nominal value of equity shares (H)

1.00

1.00

Basic earnings per share (EPS) (H)

(0.06)

0.71

Diluted earnings per share (DPS) (H)

(0.06)

0.71

35. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
Name of the related parties and related party relationship:
Related parties where control exists
Subsidiary Companies

Cement Manufacturing Company Limited
Megha Technical and Engineers Private Limited
Meghalaya Power Limited
Star Cement Meghalaya Limited
NE Hills Hydro Limited

Associate

Shyam Century Ferrous Limited*

Related parties with whom transactions have taken place
during the year/previous year
Key Management Personnel

Mr. Sajjan Bhajanka (Chairman)
Mr. Sanjay Agarwal (Director)
Mr. Hari Prasad Agarwal (Director)
Managing Director upto 31st August, 2014
Mr. Dilip Kumar Agarwal (Chief Financial Officer)
w.e.f. 20th September, 2014
Mr. Debabrata Thakurta (Company Secretary)
w.e.f. 13th August, 2014
Mr. Om Prakash Lohia (Chief Financial Officer)
Upto 27th August, 2014
Mr. Ravi Prakash Mundra (Company Secretary)
Upto 8th August, 2014

Enterprises Owned/Influenced by
Key Management Personnel or their relatives

Brijdham Merchants Private Limited

Relatives of Key Management Personnel

Mrs. Santosh Bhajanka (wife of Mr. Sajjan Bhajanka)

Sriram Vanijya Private Limited
Mrs. Sonu Kajaria (Daughter of Mr. Sajjan Bhajanka)
Mrs. Payal Agarwal (Daughter of Mr. Sajjan Bhajanka)
Mrs. Shradha Agarwal (Daughter of Mr. Sajjan Bhajanka)
Mrs. Divya Agarwal (Wife of Mr. Sanjay Agarwal)
Mrs. Sumitra Devi Agarwal (Wife of Mr. Hari Prasad Agarwal)
Mr. Rajesh Kumar Agarwal (Son of Mr. Hari Prasad Agarwal)

*Ceased to be subsidiary pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement (Refer note no. 28)
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35. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (contd.)
Details of transactions between the Company and related parties and the status of outstanding balance as at 31st March, 2015 are
given hereunder:
(H in Lacs)
Sl. Type of Transactions
No.

Subsidiary Companies Associate/Enterprises
Owned/Influenced
by KMP

Key Management
Personnel

Relatives of KMP

2014-15 2013-14 2014-15 2013-14 2014-15 2013-14 2014-15 2013-14
1

2

Purchase Transaction
Cement Manufacturing
Company Limited

-

9.75

-

-

-

-

-

-

Megha Technical and Engineers
Private Limited

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

29.39

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

5.96

-

-

-

-

-

-

Cement Manufacturing
Company Limited

-

360.00

-

-

-

-

-

-

Megha Technical and Engineers
Private Limited

-

30.00

-

-

-

-

-

-

Meghalaya Power Limited

-

259.00

-

-

-

-

-

-

Cement Manufacturing
Company Limited

-

360.00

-

-

-

-

-

-

Megha Technical and Engineers
Private Limited

-

590.00

-

-

-

-

-

-

Meghalaya Power Limited

-

259.00

-

-

-

-

-

-

Cement Manufacturing
Company Limited

-

0.92

-

-

-

-

-

-

Megha Technical and Engineers
Private Limited

-

20.24

-

-

-

-

-

-

Meghalaya Power Limited

-

1.40

-

-

-

-

-

-

Brijdham Merchants Private
Limited

-

-

-

11.00

-

-

-

-

Sriram Vanijya Private Limited

-

-

-

11.00

-

-

-

-

Other Income
Cement Manufacturing
Company Limited

3

Other Payments
Star Cement Meghalaya Limited

4

5

6

7

88

Loans Taken

Loans Repaid

Interest Paid

Remuneration Paid
Mr. Hari Prasad Agarwal

-

-

-

-

1.25

3.00

-

-

Mr. Dilip Kumar Agarwal

-

-

-

-

20.75

-

-

-

Mr. Debabrata Thakurta

-

-

-

-

8.69

-

-

-

Mr. Om Prakash Lohia

-

-

-

-

8.83

-

-

-

Mr. Ravi Prakash Mundra

-

-

-

-

4.32

-

-

-
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35. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (contd.)
Details of transactions between the Company and related parties and the status of outstanding balance as at 31st March, 2015 are
given hereunder:
(H in Lacs)
Sl. Type of Transactions
No.

Subsidiary Companies Associate/Enterprises
Owned/Influenced
by KMP

Key Management
Personnel

Relatives of KMP

2014-15 2013-14 2014-15 2013-14 2014-15 2013-14 2014-15 2013-14
8

Dividend Received
Cement Manufacturing
Company Limited

9

-

738.69

-

-

-

-

-

-

Mr. Sajjan Bhajanka

-

-

-

-

-

77.13

Mr. Hari Prasad Agarwal

-

-

-

-

-

8.04

10.22

Mr. Sanjay Agarwal

-

-

-

-

-

78.50

55.27

Others

-

-

-

28.73

-

-

-

Mr. Sajjan Bhajanka

-

-

-

-

-

245.72

-

174.50

Mr. Hari Prasad Agarwal

-

-

-

-

-

24.36

-

30.98

Mr. Sanjay Agarwal

-

-

-

-

-

237.89

-

167.50

Others

-

-

-

162.46

-

-

-

-

Brijdham Merchants Private
Limited

-

-

-

109.90

-

-

-

-

Sriram Vanijya Private Limited

-

-

-

109.90

-

-

-

-

-

-

72.36

-

-

-

-

-

2,954.75 2,954.75

-

-

-

-

-

-

- 3,373.50

-

-

-

-

-

-

Mr. Sajjan Bhajanka

-

-

-

-

- 1,500.00

-

-

Mr. Hari Prasad Agarwal

-

-

-

-

- 1,500.00

-

-

Mr. Sanjay Agarwal

-

-

-

-

- 1,500.00

-

-

Dividend Paid
60.88

10 Share Allotment

11 Outstanding Balances
as at 31st March, 2015:
Loans received

Advances receivable
Shyam Century Ferrous Limited
Investments
Cement Manufacturing
Company Limited
Meghalaya Power Limited
-Guarantee Obtained*

*Guarantee given in aggregate by all the Directors
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Notes to Financial Statements (contd.)
36. The Company’s segment information as at and for the Year ended 31st March, 2015 are as below:
(H in Lacs)
Sl. Particulars
No.
a.

b.

2013-14
Discontinuing Operation

2014-15
Continuing
Operation*

Ferro Alloys

Power Unit

Total

External sales

-

14,206.63

-

14,206.63

Inter-segment sales

-

-

4,916.81

4,916.81

Less: Elimination

-

-

-

4,916.81

Total Revenue (Gross)

-

14,206.63

4,916.81

14,206.63

Segment Results

-

501.93

1,235.35

1,737.58

Unallocated Income/(-) Expenses
(Net of unallocated Income/(-)Expenses)
(Including Exceptional Items)

-

-

-

(37.52)

Operating Profit/Loss (-)

-

-

-

1,700.06

Finance Cost

-

-

-

396.91

Provision for Taxation

-

-

-

217.46

Deferred Tax charge / (-) Credit

-

-

-

285.83

Mat Credit Entitlement (-)

-

-

-

98.94

Total Profit /(-) Loss after tax

-

-

-

898.80

-

6,325.07

2,887.45

9,212.52

Other Information
a.

b.

Segment Assets
Unallocated Corporate/Other Assets

-

-

-

3,260.60

TOTAL

-

6,325.07

2,887.45

12,473.12

Segment Liabilities

-

962.19

347.80

1,309.99

Unallocated Corporate/Other Liabilities

-

-

-

2,858.64

TOTAL

-

962.19

347.80

4,168.63

c.

Capital Expenditure

-

43.36

2.46

45.81

d.

Depreciation/ Amortisation

-

247.94

232.52

480.46

Notes:
*The Company does not have any reportable segment in accordance with the principle outlined in Accounting Standard (AS 17),
“Segment Reporting” and therefore the disclosure requirements on “Segment Reporting” is not applicable. However, the Company had
Ferro Alloy and Power as business segments till 31st March, 2014 which have been demerged w.e.f. 1st April, 2014. (Refer Note
no. 28).

37. The company’s subsidiary, Cement Manufacturing Company Limited have proposed final dividend of H8/- per share. Pending
approval of the same in their Annual General Meeting, this income has not been recognised in these accounts.
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Notes to Financial Statements (contd.)
38. (a) Value of Imported and indigenous Raw-materials and stores, Spare parts etc. and their percentage to total consumption
(H in Lacs)
Particulars

2014-15

2013-14

Value

%

Value

%

Raw Materials
-Imported

-

-

-

-

-Indigenous

-

-

4,374.75

100

Total

-

-

4,374.75

100

-Imported

-

-

-

-

-Indigenous

-

-

875.89

100

Total

-

-

875.89

100

Stores and Spare parts etc

(b) Expenditures in Foreign Currency
(H in Lacs)
Particulars

2014-15

Books and Periodicals

2013-14
-

0.99

39. Figures have been rounded off to the nearest H in Lacs. Previous year’s figures including those given in brackets have been
rearranged and regrouped where necessary to confirm to the current year’s classifications. Further, previous year figures include
figures of Ferro Alloy division which has been demerged w.e.f. 1st April, 2014 pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement (Refer
note no. 28) and hence are not comparable with the current year’s figure.

As per our report of even date
For Kailash B. Goel and Co.
Firm Registration No. 322460E
Chartered Accountants
CA. Arun Kumar Sharma
Partner
Membership No: 57329

Place: Kolkata
Date: 7th May, 2015

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Dilip Kumar Agarwal
Chief Financial Officer

Debabrata Thakurta
Company Secretary

Sajjan Bhajanka
Chairman and Director
DIN: 00246043
Hari Prasad Agarwal
Director
DIN: 00266005
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Independent Auditors’ Report
To
The Board of Directors of
Star Ferro and Cement Limited
We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Financial
Statement of Star Ferro and Cement Limited (“the Company“) and
its subsidiaries, which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet
as at 31st March, 2015, the Consolidated Statement of Profit
and Loss Account and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for
the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.
Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial
statements
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters
in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position,
consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash flows
of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also
includes the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provision of the Act for safeguarding of the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting the frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design and implementation and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit.
We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the
accounting and auditing standards and matters which are
required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of
the Act and the Rules made there under.
We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards on
Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those
Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments; the
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auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the
Company’s preparation of the consolidated financial statements
that give true and fair view in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on whether the company has in place
an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and the operating effectiveness of such control. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
consolidated financial statements.
Opinion
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us, and based on consideration
of the report of the other auditor on the consolidated financial
statement of the subsidiary as noted below, the consolidated
financial statements give a true and fair view in conformity with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India :
(i) in the case of the Consolidated Balance Sheet, of the state of
affairs of the Company and its subsidiaries as at 31st March,
2015;
(ii) in the case of the Consolidated Statement of Profit and
Loss account, of the Profit of the Company and Profit of its
subsidiaries for the year ended on that date; and
(iii) in the case of Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, of the
Consolidated Cash flows of the Company and its subsidiaries
for the year ended on that date.
Other Matters
We did not audit the financial statements of a subsidiary (NE
Hills Hydro Limited), whose financial statements reflect total
assets worth of H7.12 Lacs as at 31st March, 2015. These
financial statements and other financial information have been
audited by other auditor whose report have been furnished to us,
and our opinion is based solely on the report of the other auditor.

For KAILASH B. GOEL and CO.
Firm Registration No. 322460E
Chartered Accountants

Place: Kolkata
Date: 7th May, 2015

CA. Arun Kumar Sharma
Partner
Membership No. 57329
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Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2015

(H in Lacs)
31st March, 2015

31st March, 2014

2
3

Minority Interest
Non-current Liabilities
Long Term Borrowings
Other Long Term Liabilities
Deferred Tax Liability
Long Term Provisions

2,221.73
65,779.97
68,001.70
32,308.66

2,221.73
66,411.35
68,633.08
25,285.13

4
5
6
7

50,247.33
8,362.35
866.08
228.82
59,704.58

65,695.64
7,281.79
447.52
183.48
73,608.43

Current Liabilities
Short Term Borrowings
Trade Payables
Other Current Liabilities
Short Term Provisions

8
9
9
10

18,928.83
7,701.83
31,646.30
754.86
59,031.82
219,046.76

18,733.86
8,291.59
26,135.17
32.57
53,193.19
220,719.84

11
11

102,781.92
14.88
4,097.18
106,893.98
152.86
39,675.30
44.91
146,767.05

117,191.50
31.01
9,951.81
127,174.32
152.86
37,731.31
54.16
165,112.65

10,914.48
30,980.40
2,036.79
28,348.04
72,279.71
219,046.76

17,548.68
14,157.49
1,258.12
22,642.90
55,607.19
220,719.84

Particulars
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders’ Funds
Share Capital
Reserves and Surplus

Note

Total
ASSETS
Non-current Assets
Fixed Assets
-Tangible Assets
-Intangible Assets
-Capital Work in Progress
Non-Current Investments
Long term Loans and Advances
Other Non-Current Assets

12
13
14

Current Assets
Current Investments
Inventories
Trade Receivables
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Short Term Loans and Advances

15
16
17
18
19

Total
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

1.1

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date
For Kailash B. Goel and Co.
Firm Registration No. 322460E
Chartered Accountants
CA. Arun Kumar Sharma
Partner
Membership No.: 57329

Place: Kolkata
Date: 7th May, 2015

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Dilip Kumar Agarwal
Chief Financial Officer

Debabrata Thakurta
Company Secretary

Sajjan Bhajanka
Chairman and Director
DIN: 00246043
Hari Prasad Agarwal
Director
DIN: 00266005
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Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2015
Particulars

Note

(H in Lacs)

2014-15

2013-14

147,312.78

117,130.26

INCOME
Gross Revenue from Operations

20

Less: Excise Duty (Net)
Net Revenue from Operations
Other Income

21

Total Revenue

(4,270.00)

(207.07)

143,042.78

117,337.32

78.23

250.48

143,121.01

117,587.81

16,791.04

20,956.52

4,971.92

-

EXPENSES
Cost of Raw Materials Consumed

22

Purchase of Traded Goods
(Increase)/Decrease in inventories

23

1,192.42

(775.93)

Employee Benefits Expense

24

9,127.90

7,857.68

Other Expenses

25

Deprecation and Amortisation Expense
Finance Cost

26

Total Expenses
Profit before Tax and Exceptional Items
Exceptional Items
Profit before Taxation [including H NIL (Profit of H1,303.14 lacs
for discontinuing operations - Refer Note No. 28]
Tax Expenses
Current Tax
MAT credit entitlement
Net Current Tax Expense
Deferred Tax
MAT Credit Adjustments for earlier years

67,452.98

63,803.87

22,374.29

16,163.64

8,738.47

8,721.20

130,649.02

116,726.98

12,471.99

860.83

1.83

(101.21)

12,473.82

759.62

2,640.09

305.33

(2,640.09)

(98.94)

-

206.38

496.65

38.21

-

26.61

Income Tax for earlier years

(16.52)

(0.40)

Total Tax Expenses

480.13

270.80

11,993.69

488.82

Minority Interest

3,650.03

(123.63)

Profit/(loss) for the period after minority interest

8,343.66

612.44

3.76

0.28

3.76

0.28

Profit/(loss) for the period before minority interest

Earnings per equity share (Nominal value of share H1/- (H1/-)
Basic
Diluted
Summary of significant Accounting Policies

1.1

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date
For Kailash B. Goel and Co.
Firm Registration No. 322460E
Chartered Accountants
CA. Arun Kumar Sharma
Partner
Membership No.: 57329

Place: Kolkata
Date: 7th May, 2015
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Dilip Kumar Agarwal
Chief Financial Officer

Debabrata Thakurta
Company Secretary

Sajjan Bhajanka
Chairman and Director
DIN: 00246043
Hari Prasad Agarwal
Director
DIN: 00266005
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2015
Particulars

(H in Lacs)
2014-15

2013-14

12,471.99

759.62

Depreciation

22,374.29

16,163.64

Finance Cost

8,738.47

8,721.20

-

(1.87)

A CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit before Tax
Adjustments for:

(Profit) /Loss on Fixed Assets sold/discarded
Provision for Wealth Tax

(1.82)

-

Provision for Doubtful Debts

(5.10)

0.34

-

(23.97)

Unspent Liabilities Written Back
Unrealised Foreign Exchange Fluctuations Loss

(39.22)

(70.76)

Interest Income

(78.23)

(139.35)

43,460.39

25,408.86

6,360.63

9,192.43

(18,474.00)

(6,701.84)

Operating Profit before Working Capital changes
Adjustments for:
Increase/(decrease) in Trade Payables, Other Liabilities and Provisions
(Increase)/decrease in Trade Receivables
(Increase)/decrease in Loans and Advances and other assets
(Increase)/decrease in Inventories

(7,841.45)

(9,355.80)

4,632.56

(2,549.28)

(15,322.25)

(9,414.49)

Cash Generated from Operations

28,138.13

15,994.37

Direct Taxes Paid (Net)

(2,075.00)

-

Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities

26,063.13

15,994.37

188.45

(153.62)

B CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Fixed Deposits/Margin Money Refund
Interest Received

78.23

139.35

Purchase of Fixed Assets Net*

(4,335.52)

(11,732.29)

Net Cash Flow used in Investing Activities

(4,068.84)

(11,746.55)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (contd.)

for the year ended 31st March, 2015

Particulars

(H in Lacs)

2014-15

2013-14

(12,311.12)

4,090.74

-

(1.00)

C CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from Borrowings*
Purchase of Capital from minority shareholders
Increase in Capital Reserve / Share capital
Interest Paid
Dividend Paid
Tax on Dividend
Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Net Changes in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and Cash Equivalents on 1st April, 2015
Less: Amount transferred pursuant to Scheme of Arrangement (Refer Note no. 28)
**Cash and Cash Equivalents on 31st March, 2015

18.36

-

(8,738.47)

(8,721.20)

-

(1,042.52)

-

(178.11)

(21,031.22)

(5,852.10)

963.07

(1,604.28)

1,021.16

2,625.44

1,021.16

2,625.44

3.91

-

1,980.31

1,021.16

*

Excluding notional foreign exchange loss of H747.24 Lacs capitalised /reduced in accordance with para 46A of AS-11

*

Represents Cash and Bank Balances as indicated in Note-17 and excludes H56.47 lacs (H236.97 lacs) being Bank Balances with
restrictive use and maturity of more than three months.

As per our report of even date
For Kailash B. Goel and Co.
Firm Registration No. 322460E
Chartered Accountants
CA. Arun Kumar Sharma
Partner
Membership No.: 57329

Place: Kolkata
Date: 7th May, 2015
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Dilip Kumar Agarwal
Chief Financial Officer

Debabrata Thakurta
Company Secretary

Sajjan Bhajanka
Chairman and Director
DIN: 00246043
Hari Prasad Agarwal
Director
DIN: 00266005

STAR FERRO AND CEMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT

2014/15

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
1. PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION
The Consolidated Financial Statements which relate to Star Ferro and Cement Limited (the Company) and its subsidiaries have
been prepared on the following basis:
(a) The financial statements of the company and its subsidiaries are combined on a line-by-line basis by adding together the
book values of like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenditure, after fully eliminating intra group balances, intra
group transactions and any unrealised profit / loss included therein, in accordance with Accounting Standards (AS-21),
“Consolidated Financial Statements”.
(b) The excess/shortfall of cost to the company of its investments in the subsidiary companies, over the net assets at the time
of acquisition in the subsidiaries as on the date of investment is recognised in the financial statements as goodwill/capital
reserve as the case may be.
(c) The subsidiary companies considered in the financial statements are as follows:
Name

Country of
Incorporation

% of Voting power
as on 31.03.2015

% of Voting power
as on 31.03.2014

Cement Manufacturing Company Limited (CMCL)

India

70.48

70.48

Megha Technical and Engineers Private Limited
(subsidiary of CMCL)

India

70.48

70.48

Star Cement Meghalaya Limited (subsidiary of CMCL)

India

70.48

70.48

Meghalaya Power Limited (subsidiary of CMCL)

India

35.94

84.74

NE Hills Hydro Limited (subsidiary of CMCL)

India

70.48

70.48

(d) The consolidated financial statements have been prepared using uniform accounting policies, except stated otherwise, for like
transactions and are presented, to the extent possible, in the same manner as the Company’s separate financial statements.
(e) In terms of Accounting Standard-21 notified under the Companies Accounting Standards Rules, 2006, Minority interest has
been computed in respect of non-fully owned subsidiaries and adjusted against the consolidated income of the group in order
to arrive at the net income attributable to the shareholders’ of the Company.
2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
The financial statements of the company have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in
India (Indian GAAP). The Company has prepared these financial statements to comply in all material respects with the Accounting
Standards as prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014 and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ,to the extent notified.. The financial statements are prepared under
the historical cost convention on accrual basis and on the basis of going concern.
The accounting policies are consistently followed by the company and changes in accounting policy are separately disclosed.
2.1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(i) Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requires the management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. Although these estimates are based on the management’s best
knowledge of current events and actions, actual results could differ from these estimates.
(ii) Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the company and the revenue
can be reliably measured.
(a) Revenue from sale of goods and services rendered is recognised upon passage of title which generally coincides with
delivery of materials and rendering of services to the customers. The Company collects sales taxes and value added taxes
(VAT) on behalf of the government and, therefore, these are not economic benefits flowing to the Company. Hence, they
are excluded from revenues. Sales figures are net of rebates, trade discounts and returns.
(b) Dividend Income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to receive the payment is established.
(c) Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and rate applicable.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (contd.)
(iii) Fixed Assets
Fixed Assets are stated at cost or revalued amount, as the case may be, less accumulated depreciation / amortisation and
impairment, if any, except freehold land which is carried at cost. Cost comprises the purchase price inclusive of duties (net
of cenvat / VAT), taxes, incidental expenses and erection / commissioning expenses etc. up to the date, the asset is ready
for its intended use. In case of revaluation of fixed assets, the original cost as written-up by the valuer, is considered in the
accounts and the differential amount is transferred to revaluation reserve. Railway sidings the ownership of which vest with
the Railway authorities are depreciated over ten years. The subsidiaries VIZ. Cement Manufacturing Company Limited, Star
Cement Meghalaya Limited and Meghalaya Power Limited have adopted the provisions of para 46A of AS-11 “The Effects
of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates” and accordingly exchange differences arising on restatement/settlement of long-term
foreign currency borrowings relating to acquisition of depreciable fixed assets are adjusted to the cost of the respective assets
and depreciated over the remaining useful life of such assets.
(iv) Intangible Assets
Intangible assets are recognised when it is probable that the future economic benefit that are attributable to the assets will
flow to the Company and the cost of the assets can be measured reliably. The depreciable amount of an intangible asset is
allocated over its estimated useful life. Expenditure on purchased /developed software are written off over a period of three
years.
(v) Capital Work in Progress
Capital work in Progress is carried at cost comprising direct cost and pre-operative expenses during construction period to be
allocated to the fixed assets on the completion of construction.
(vi) Expenditure during construction period
In case of new projects and substantial expenses of existing units, expenditure incurred including trial production expenses
net of revenue earned, and attributable interest and financing cost, prior to Commencement of commercial production/
completion of project, are capitalised.
(vii) Research and Development Expenditure
Revenue expenditure is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss and capital expenditure is added to the cost of fixed assets
in the year in which they are incurred.
(viii)Impairment of Assets
The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine if there is any indication of impairment
based on external/internal factors. An impairment loss is recognised wherever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount which represents the greater of the net selling price and ‘Value in use’ of the assets. In assessing the
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and risks specific to the asset.
(ix) Depreciation
(a) Depreciation on fixed assets is provided under Written down Value method (except in case of fixed assets of power
division of the subsidiary Megha Technical and Engineers Private Limited where straight line method is followed) in
accordance with the provisions of Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 and considering the useful lives for computing
depreciation specified in Part ‘C’, thereof.
(b) Depreciation on amount capitalised pursuant to para 46A of AS 11 ‘The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates‘
is provided over the balance useful life of depreciable capital assets. In respect of an asset for which impairment loss is
recognised, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the assets over its remaining useful life.
(x) Foreign Currency Transactions and Balances
Transactions in foreign currencies entered into by the Company are accounted at the exchanges rates prevailing on the
date of the transactions. Exchange differences arising on settlement /restatement of short –term foreign currency monetary
assets and liabilities of the Company and its subsidiaries Star Cement Meghalaya Limited and Meghalaya Power Limited.
are recognised as income or expenses in the Statement of Profit and Loss. All long term foreign currency monetary items
consisting of liabilities which relate to acquisition of depreciable capital assets at the end of the period/ year are restated at
the rate prevailing at the Balance Sheet date. The exchange difference arising as a result is added to or deducted from the
cost of the assets in accordance with para 46A of Accounting Standard 11‘The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates‘
in the case of the company and its subsidiaries Cement Manufacturing Company Limited, Star Cement Meghalaya Limited
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (contd.)
and Meghalaya Power Limited. Profit/Loss arising out of cancellation of forward contracts is taken to revenue in the year of
cancellation.
(xi) Investments
Investments that are readily realisable and intended to be held for not more than a year are classified as Current investments.
All other investments are classified as long-term investments. Current investments are carried at lower of cost and market
value on individual investment basis. Long Term Investments are considered at cost, unless there is an “other than temporary”
decline in value, in which case adequate provision is made for the diminution in the value of Investments.
(x) Inventories
Raw Materials, stores and spares are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. However, these items are considered
to be realisable at cost if the finished products, in which they will be used, are expected to be sold at or above cost. Work in
progress and finished goods are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost includes direct materials and labour
and a part of manufacturing overheads based on normal operating capacity. Cost of finished goods includes excise duty. Cost
of Inventories is computed on weighted average. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
(xi) Government Grants and subsidies
Government grants / subsidies are recognised when there is reasonable certainty that the same will be received. Revenue
grants in the nature of recoupment/ reimbursement of any particular item of expenses are recognised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss as deduction from related item of expenditure. Capital grants / subsidies are reduced from cost of respective fixed
assets where it relates to specific fixed assets. Other grants / subsidies are credited to the capital reserve.
(xii) Retirement and other employee benefits
(a) Retirement benefit in the form of Provident Fund is a defined contribution scheme and is charged to the Statement of
Profit and Loss of the year when the contributions to the respective funds are due. The Company has no obligations other
than the contribution payable to the respective funds.
(b) Gratuity liability, being a defined benefit obligation, is provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation on projected unit
credit method made at the end of each financial year.
(c) Short term compensated absences are provided for based on estimates. Long term compensated absences are provided
for based on actuarial valuation which is done as per projected unit credit method at the end of each financial year.
(d) Actuarial gains / losses are immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss and are not deferred.
(xiii) Earning per Share
Basic Earnings per Share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders (after
deductible preference dividend and attributable taxes) by the weighted number of equity shares outstanding during the year.
For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity share holders and
the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effect of all dilutive potential equity
shares.
(xiv) Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs includes interest, amortisation of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangements of borrowings
and exchange differences arising from relevant foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment
to the interest cost.
Borrowing cost directly attributable to the acquisition, construction of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of
time to get ready for its intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of the respective assets. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period they occur.
(xv) Taxation
Tax expenses comprises of current and deferred tax. Current income tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to
the tax authorities in accordance with the Indian Income Tax Act, 1961. Deferred income taxes reflect the impact of current
year timing differences between taxable income for the year and reversal of timing differences of earlier years.
The deferred tax for timing differences between the book and tax profits for the year is accounted for using the tax rates and
laws that have been substantively enacted as of the Balance Sheet date. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are
offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets
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and deferred tax liabilities relate to the taxes on income levied of the same governing taxation laws. Deferred tax assets are
recognised only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available against
which such deferred tax assets can be realised. If the company has carry forward unabsorbed depreciation and tax losses,
deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent there is virtual certainty supported by convincing evidence that sufficient
taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be realised.
The deferred tax in respect of timing differences which originate during the tax holiday period and is likely to reverse during
the tax holiday period, is not recognised to the extent income is subject to deduction during the tax holiday period as per the
requirements of the Income Tax Act, 1961. The deferred tax asset is recognised and carried forward only to the extent that
there is reasonable certainty that the assets will be realised in future.
The carrying amounts of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date. The company writes-down the carrying
amount of deferred tax assets to the extent that it is no longer reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be, that
sufficient future taxable income will be available against which deferred tax asset can be realised. Any such write-down is
reversed to the extent that it becomes reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future taxable
income will be available.
Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence
that the company will pay normal income tax during the specified period. In the year in which the Minimum Alternative Tax
(MAT) credit becomes eligible to be recognised as an asset in accordance with the recommendation contained in guidance
note issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, the said assets is created by way of a credit to the statement
of profit and loss and shown as MAT credit entitlement. The company reviews the carrying amount of MAT at each Balance
Sheet date and writes down MAT credit entitlement to the extent there is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that the
company will pay normal income-tax during specified period.
(xvi) Segment Reporting
a)

Identification of segments:
The company has identified that its business segments are the primary segments. The Company’s business are organised
and managed separately according to the nature of products/services, with each segment representing a strategic business
unit that offers different product / services and serves different markets. The analysis of geographical segments is based
on the areas in which major operating divisions of the company operate.

b)

Inter segment transfers:
The Company generally accounts for inter segment sales and transfers at cost.

c)

Allocation of Common Costs:
Common allocable costs are allocated to each segment on case to case basis applying the ratio, appropriate to each
relevant case. Revenue and expenses, which relate to the enterprise as a whole and are not allocable to segment on a
reasonable basis, have been included under the head “Unallocated”.
The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are in line with those of the Company’s accounting policies.

(xvii) Cash and Cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of Cash Flow Statement comprise cash in hand, demand deposits with Banks and
other short-term highly liquid investments / deposits with an original maturity of three months or less.
(xviii) Provision
A provision is recognised when an enterprise has a present obligation as a result of past event and it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions
made in terms of Accounting Standard 29 are not discounted to their present value and are determined based on best
estimates required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.
(xix) Contingent Liabilities
A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is
not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent
liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognised because it cannot be measured
reliably. The Company does not recognise a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.
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2. SHARE CAPITAL
(H in Lacs)
31st March, 2015

Particulars

31st March, 2014

Authorised
23,00,00,000 (23,00,00,000 as at 31.03.2014) Equity Shares of H1/- fully paid-up

2,300.00

2,300.00

Total

2,300.00

2,300.00

Issued
22,21,72,990 (22,21,72,990 as at 31.03.2014) Equity Shares of H1/- fully paid-up

2,221.73

2,221.73

Total

2,221.73

2,221.73

Subscribed and Paid up
22,21,72,990 (22,21,72,990 as at 31.03.2014) Equity Shares of H1/- fully paid-up

2,221.73

2,221.73

Total

2,221.73

2,221.73

a) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period
Equity Shares

31st March, 2014

No of Shares

(H in Lacs)

No of Shares

(H in Lacs)

222,172,990

2,221.73

500,000

5.00

Cancelled during the year
(pursuant to Scheme of Arrangement)

-

-

(500,000)

(5.00)

Issued during the year
(pursuant to Scheme of Arrangement)

-

-

222,172,990

2,221.73

222,172,990

2,221.73

222,172,990

2,221.73

At the Beginning of the year

Outstanding at the end of the year
b)

31st March, 2015

Terms/Rights attached to the Equity Shares and Notes
The company has only one class of equity shares having par value of H1/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to
one vote per share.
The company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the
approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting except in case of interim dividend.
In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company,
after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the
shareholders.

c) Terms of issue of shares other than cash
Pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement (“the scheme”) between Century Plyboards (India) Limited (CPIL), the Company and their
respective shareholders as approved by the Hon’ble High Court at Kolkata vide its order dated 17th May, 2013, the company has
issued and alloted 222,172,990 Equity Shares to the shareholders of CPIL in ratio of 1 (one) Equity share of H1/- each of the
Company as fully paid-up for every 1 (one) Equity Share of H1/- each held by them in CPIL.
d) Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company
Particulars

31st March, 2015

31st March, 2014

No. of Shares

% holding in
the class

No. of Shares

% holding in
the class

Mr. Sajjan Bhajanka

16,772,675

7.55

23,371,570

10.52

Mr. Sanjay Agarwal

19,539,245

8.79

23,788,740

10.71

Equity Shares of H1/- each fully paid-up

Mrs. Santosh Bhajanka

15,049,500

6.77

16,749,750

7.54

Mrs. Divya Agarwal

14,488,750

6.52

15,649,500

7.04

Mr. Prem Kumar Bhajanka

27,369,386

12.32

22,125,176

9.96

As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/members, the above shareholding represents legal ownerships
of shares
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3. RESERVES AND SURPLUS
(H in Lacs)
Particulars

31st March, 2015

31st March, 2014

26,452.78

26,447.63

-

5.15

(8,304.50)

-

18,148.28

26,452.78

2,793.45

2,607.87

Capital Reserve
Balance as per last Account
Addition/(Deduction) during the period
Less : Amount adjusted pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement (Refer Note no. 27)
General Reserve
Balance as per last Account
Addition/(Deduction) during the period

-

185.58

2,793.45

2,793.45

Balance as per last Account

37,165.12

37,994.31

Profit /(Loss) for the period

8,343.66

612.44

Surplus as per Profit and Loss Account

Amount available for appropriation

45,508.78

38,606.75

Interim Equity Dividend

-

(1,042.52)

Tax on Interim Equity Dividend

-

(178.11)

Tax on Proposed Equity Dividend *
Transfer to General Reserve
Total Appropriations

(670.55)

-

-

(221.00)

(670.55)

(1,441.63)

Net Surplus in the Statement of Profit and Loss

44,838.23

37,165.12

Total Reserves and Surplus

65,779.97

66,411.35

* Note: Tax Liability on Proposed dividend by the Company’s Subsidiary Cement Manufacturing Company Limited

4. LONG TERM BORROWINGS
(H in Lacs)
Particulars

31st March, 2015

31st March, 2014

36,420.75

49,527.50

-

978.94

3,997.77

-

25,073.34

28,805.49

3,300.00

-

-

521.47

Term Loans
Rupee Loans from Banks (Secured)
Rupee Loan from a Financial Institution (Secured)
Rupee Loans from a Body Corporate (Secured)
Foreign Currency Loan from Banks
Loans and Advances from a Related Party
- From a Director (Unsecured)
Other Loans and Advances (Secured)
Buyers Credit from banks for Capital expenditure
Hire Purchase Finance from a Body Corporates (Secured)
Hire Purchase Finance from banks (Secured)
Less: Current Maturities of long term borrowings

102

Persistence pays

23.44

14.18

302.60
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18,870.57

14,740.99
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4. LONG TERM BORROWINGS (contd.)
(a) Rupee Term Loan of H3,935.58 lacs from a bank is repayable in further 9 equal quarterly instalments ending on June 2017. The
Loan is secured by pari passu first charge on current assets and pari passu first charge on fixed assets of the subsidiary’s cement
plant at Lumshnong, Meghalaya
(b) Rupee Term Loans of 9,842.45 lacs and Foreign Currency Loan of H3,414.10 lacs from banks are repayable in further 19
unequal quarterly instalments ending on December 2019. The loans are secured by pari passu first charge on fixed assets and
pari passu second charge on current assets of the subsidiary’s cement grinding unit at Guwahati, Assam.
(c) Rupee Term Loan of H24,392.29 lacs and foreign currency loan of H8,996.49 lacs from banks and body corporates are repayble
in further 19 unequal quarterly installments ending on December 2019. Term Loans are secured by first charge on the fixed assets
of the subsidiary’s Cement clinker plant at Lumshnong, Meghalaya on pari passu basis.
(d) Rupee Term Loan of H2,248.20 lacs and foreign currency loan of H12,662.75 lacs from a bank are repayble in 28 unequal
quarterly installments commenced from March 2013. These Term Loans are secured by first charge on the fixed assets of the
subsidiary’s power plants at Lumshnong, Meghalaya on pari-passu basis.
(e) Hire Purchase Finance from banks and body corporates of H326.05 lacs is secured by hypothecation of subsidiary’s vehicles /
equipments and is repayable within three to four years having varying date of payment.
(f) Term Loans of H61,494.08 Lacs from Banks have been guaranteed by some of the Directors of the Company.

5. OTHER LONG TERM LIABILITIES
(H in Lacs)
Particulars
Security Deposits
Others
Total Amount

31st March, 2015

31st March, 2014

7,636.89

5,945.94

725.46

1,335.84

8,362.35

7,281.79

6. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES
(H in Lacs)
Particulars

31st March, 2015

31st March, 2014

866.08

579.11

866.08

579.11

Deferred tax liability
Fixed assets: Impact of difference between tax depreciation and depreciation/
amortisation charged for the financial reporting
Deferred tax asset
Business Loss Carried forward

-

-

Impact of expenditure charged to the statement of profit and loss in the current year
but allowable for tax purposes

-

32.52

Provision for Bad and Doubtful Debts

-

99.06

-

131.59

866.08

447.52

Net Deferred Tax Liabilities

Note: Deferred Tax Asset in respect of the Company and its Subsidiaries where the net results is deferred tax asset, is not recognised
in respect of timing difference of depreciation and expenditures allowable on payment basis for tax purpose, considering the principle
of prudence. However, the position will be reviewed every year.
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7. LONG TERM PROVISIONS
(H in Lacs)
Particulars

31st March, 2015

31st March, 2014

Provision for Employee Benefits
Provision for Gratuity

80.00

81.39

Provision for Leave Encashment

148.82

102.09

Total

228.82

183.48

8. SHORT TERM BORROWINGS
(H in Lacs)
Particulars

31st March, 2015

31st March, 2014

12,799.29

12,289.27

3,129.54

4,504.99

3,000.00

1,500.00

-

219.80

-

219.80

18928.83

18,733.86

Working Capital Facilities from Banks
Cash Credit (Secured)
Foreign Currency Demand Loan (Secured)
Short Term Loan
- From a Bank (Unsecured)
- From a Body Corporate (Unsecured)
Loans and advances from related parties
- From Bodies Corporate (Unsecured)
Total
Notes:(a) Working Capital facilities of H 4,030.87 lacs from banks are secured by first pari passu charge on current assets and second pari
passu charge on fixed assets of the subsidiary’s cement plant at Lumshnong, Meghalaya.
(b) Working capital facilities of H8,843.74 Lacs from banks are secured by pari passu first charge on current assets and pari passu
second charge on fixed assets of the subsidiary’s cement grinding unit at Guwahati, Assam.
(c) Working capital facilities of H71.68 lacs from banks are secured by first charge on current assets and second charge on fixed
assets of subsidiary’s Cement Grinding unit at Lumshnong, Meghalaya on pari passu basis.
(d) Working capital facilities of H2,051.70 lacs from banks are secured by first charge current assets and second charge on fixed
assets of subsidiary’s Clinker unit at Lumshnong, Meghalaya on pari passu basis.
(e) Cash credit of H930.84 lacs from a bank is secured by first charge on current assets and second charge on fixed assets of
subsidiary’s power plants at Lumshnong, Meghalaya.
(f) Further, the working capital facilities for H26,500 Lacs are also guaranteed by some Directors of the company.
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9. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
(H in Lacs)
Particulars

31st March, 2015

31st March, 2014

Trade Payables
- Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises (refer note no 35)

-

-

7,701.83

8,291.59

7,701.83

8,291.59

Current Maturities of Long Term Borrowings

18,870.57

14,740.99

Interest accrued but not due on Borrowings

41.43

68.13

176.42

136.81

1.67

-

1,221.04

986.52

258.36

363.92

9,550.07

6,216.84

- Dues to Others
Others Liabilities

Creditors for Capital goods
-Unclaimed dividends*
Advances from Customers
Salary and Bonus to employees
Other Liabilities
Statutory Dues Payable

1,526.74

3,621.97

31,646.30

26,135.17

* Amount to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund shall be determined on the respective due date.

10. SHORT TERM PROVISIONS
(H in Lacs)
Particulars

31st March, 2015

31st March, 2014

-Gratuity

47.59

16.05

-Leave Encashment

36.72

16.52

670.55

-

754.86

32.57

Provisions for employee benefits

Other Provisions
-Tax on Proposed Equity Dividend
Total
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7,086.55

120,508.09

Plant, Machinery and

141,545.63

Previous Year's figures

6,153.14
7,615.85

19,038.14

3,321.12

686.10

487.26

716.09

146.39

152.35

-

93.18

115.38

25,096.87

41,047.12

2,363.42

467.10

207.81

392.91

31,888.05

959.32

4,768.51

-

(0.63)

-

(4,879.05)

(425.99)

(23.16)

(5.76)

(26.92)

(3,712.86)

(141.14)

(543.22)

-

22.20

22.89

16,141.45

22,351.41

531.02

119.68

188.28

91.40

18,133.60

1,936.78

1,350.65

-

-

0.16

191.19

210.53

200.24

0.09

4.91

0.86

4.43

-

-

-

6,153.14

1,052.90

122.58

101.84

259.56

76,768.81

4,860.89

13,462.21

As on

1,671.51

151.73

270.35

291.34

88,620.06

4,262.13

14,837.84

7,086.54

31.03.14

115.38

137.47

31.01

14.88

31.51

31.01

41,047.12 117,191.50 116,448.76

58,308.95 102,781.92 117,191.50

2,268.22

563.52

385.42

456.54

46,304.35

2,754.97

5,575.93

As on
31.03.15

In Company subsidiary’s Cement Manufacturing Company Limited, cost of internal road of amounting H1,239.26 lacs has been re-grouped under non-factory building which was
considered under land and site development in the previous year.

-

0.16

292.82 158,238.62

278.19 161,090.87

254.35

0.42

15.44

1.33

6.65 123,073.16

1,239.26

-

(1,239.26)

31.03.15

Total as on

b.

21.69

7.87

16,985.81

10,968.61

139.54

93.83

36.69

67.59

8,248.52

1,542.31

448.11

Adjustment

Deduction /

During the year subsidiary company has discarded fixes assets amounting to H2.08 lacs, (Previous Year - Nil) and sold fixed assets amounting to H276.11 lacs (Previous Year H59.81 lacs).

124.69

Previous Year's figures

(1.75)

-

(7,838.18)

(596.56)

(28.59)

(12.15)

(34.41)

(5,676.81)

(387.17)

(1,016.32)

(86.17)

arrangement

Adjusted

Transfer / For the year

arrangement
392.02

Upto
31.03.14
Scheme of

31.03.15

Total as on
pursuant to

Adjustment

Deduction /

(H in Lacs)

NET BLOCK

a.

146.39

Computer Software

B. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

4,032.49

158,238.62

621.27

Computers

Total - A

478.16

Office Equipments

Vehicles

684.25

Furniture and Fixtures

Equipments

5,221.45

19,606.35

Additions

Scheme of

Adjusted

DEPRECIATION

pursuant to

Transfer /

As on

GROSS BLOCK

01.04.14

Non Factory Building

Factory Building

Land and Site Development

A TANGIBLE ASSETS

11. FIXED ASSETS
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12. NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS
(H in Lacs)
Particulars
A

31st March, 2015

31st March, 2014

24.54

24.54

24.54

24.54

31.36

31.36

31.42

31.42

31.42

31.42

31.42

31.42

2.70

2.70

128.32

128.32

152.86

152.86

24.54

24.54

128.32

128.32

4.94

5.38

Non Trade Investments (valued at cost unless stated otherwise)
Investment in Quoted Equity Instruments
Reliance Power Ltd
8,743 (8,743 as at 31.03.14) Equity Shares of H10/- each fully paid up

B

Trade Investments (valued at cost unless stated otherwise)
Investment in Unquoted Equity Instruments
Ara Suppliers Pvt. Ltd.
3,23,190 (3,23,190 as at 31.03.14) Equity Share of H10 each fully paid up
Arham Sales Pvt. Ltd.
3,23,190 (3,23,190 as at 31.03.14) Equity Share of H10 each fully paid up
Adonis Vyapar Pvt. Ltd.
3,23,190 (3,23,190 as at 31.03.14) Equity Share of H10 each fully paid up
Apanapan Viniyog Pvt. Ltd.
Ribhoi Engineering Company Pvt Ltd.
27,000 (27,000 as at 31.03.14) Equity Shares of of H10/- each fully paid up

Aggregate Amount of Investments
Quoted
Unquoted
Market Value of Quoted Investments

13. LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
(H in Lacs)
Particulars

31st March, 2015

31st March, 2014

-

8.00

3,788.74

4,042.37

814.12

295.86

-

0.16

-Advance Income Tax (net of provision for taxation ),including MAT Credit
Entitlement

12,383.68

10,004.89

-Subsidies/Incentives Receivable from Central/State Governments

21,219.50

21,219.50

1,469.26

2,160.53

39,675.30

37,731.31

Capital Advances
Secured, Considered Good
Unsecured, Considered Good
Security Deposits
Unsecured, Considered Good
Other Loans and advances
Unsecured, Considered Good
Prepaid Expenses

Balances with Statutory/Government Authorities
Total
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14. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS
(H in Lacs)
31st March, 2015

31st March, 2014

Balance with banks held as margin money deposits with original maturity of more
than 12 months

44.91

54.16

Total

44.91

54.16

Particulars
Others

15. CURRENT INVESTMENTS
(H in Lacs)
Particulars

31st March, 2015

31st March, 2014

5.00

-

(5.00)

-

-

-

Trade Investments (valued at cost unless stated otherwise)
Investment in subsidiaries
Shyam Century Ferrous Limited
5,00,000 (NIL as at 31.03.14) Equity Shares of H1/- each fully paid up
Less: Provision*
Total

*The above shares will get cancelled on issuance of fresh Equity Shares by the resulting company pursuant to the Scheme of
Arrangement and accordingly provision has been made in accounts. (Refer Note no. 27)
16. INVENTORIES
(H in Lacs)
Particulars
Raw Materials
Work in Progress
Finished Goods [including Power inventory (with MeSCL) H593.05, PY H687.15 Lacs)
Stock in Trade

31st March, 2015

31st March, 2014

1,657.80

1,995.76

191.75

289.92

2,674.87

4,082.25

93.97

-

6,296.09

11,180.75

10,914.48

17,548.68

Stock in Trade

13.92

-

Finished Goods

464.40

559.17

Stores and Spares Parts, etc
Total
Note:
The above includes stock in Transit

17. TRADE RECEIVABLES
(H in Lacs)
Particulars

31st March, 2015

31st March, 2014

145.97

101.65

4,453.75

2,424.21

4,599.72

2,525.85

I - Considered Good

329.71

226.94

Considered Doubtful

187.96

309.89

Secured Considered Good
Over Six months
Other debts
Unsecured
Over Six Months
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17. TRADE RECEIVABLES
(H in Lacs)
31st March, 2015

31st March, 2014

Less: Provision for Doubtful Debts

(187.96)

(309.89)

329.71

226.94

II- Claims due from Central Government - Considered Good

5,899.03

1,301.63

15,496.26

8,220.07

4,655.68

1,883.00

20,151.94

11,404.69

30,980.41

14,157.49

Particulars

Other Debts
I - Considered Good
II- Claims due from Central Government - Considered Good

Note: Periodically, the Company evaluates realisability of all customer dues. The need for provisions is assessed based on various
factors including collectability of specific dues, risk perceptions of the industry in which the customer operates, general economic
factors, which could affect the customers’s ability to settle. The Company and its Subsidiaries normally provides for debtor dues
outstanding for six months or longer from the invoice date, at the Balance Sheet date. The Company and its subsidiaries pursues the
recovery of the dues, in part or full.
18. CASH AND BANK BALANCES
(H in Lacs)
Particulars
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Balances with Banks
On Current accounts/Cash credit accounts
On Unpaid Dividend account
Deposits with Original Maturity of less than three months
Cheques in hand
Cash on hand
Other Bank Balances
Deposits with Original Maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12 months

31st March, 2015

31st March, 2014

889.24
1.67
11.64
1,012.89
64.88
1,980.32

532.32
0.13
430.61
58.10
1,021.16

56.47
56.47
2,036.79

236.97
236.97
1,258.12

19. SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
(H in Lacs)
Particulars
Loans and advances to related parties
Advances recoverable from an associate
Others
Unsecured, Considered Good
Advances to suppliers
Loan and advances to employees
Balances with/Receivables from Government authorities
Subsidies Receivable from Central/State Governments
Advances for Services and Expenses
Prepaid expenses
Inter-corporate Deposits

31st March, 2015

31st March, 2014

105.86
105.86

35.00
35.00

1,388.78
87.93
5,220.33
18,486.02
2,723.45
335.67
28,242.18
28,348.04

1,013.30
70.65
7,448.78
10,479.36
2,435.82
359.99
800.00
22,607.90
22,642.90

* Represents amount receivable from Cement Manufacturing Company Limited, a subsidiary company
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20. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
(H in Lacs)
Particulars
Revenue from Operations
Sale of Products
Domestic
Export
Other Operating revenue
Scrap Sales
Miscellaneous Income
Revenue from Operations (Gross)
Details of Products Sold
Finished Goods Sold
Cement
Clinker
Ferro Silicon
Gypsum
Power

2014-15

2013-14

143,345.56
3,620.85
146,966.41

116,937.22
116,937.22

173.26
173.12
147,312.78

111.25
81.79
117,130.26

134,776.92
11,607.75
77.38
504.36
146,966.41

97,565.59
5,101.04
14,206.63
63.97
116,937.22

21. OTHER INCOME
(H in Lacs)
Particulars

2014-15

2013-14

Interest Income

51.74

139.35

Other Non Operating Income

26.48

111.13

Total

78.23

250.48

22. COST OF RAW MATERIALS CONSUMED
(H in Lacs)
Particulars
Inventory at the beginning of the year
Less: Inventories transferred pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement (Refer Note no. 27)
Add: Purchases
Less: Inventory at the end of the year
Cost of Raw Materials Consumed
Details of Raw Material consumed
Fly Ash
Limestone
Charcoal
Iron Mill Scale and Fines
Lam Coke
Quartz
Gypsum
Shale
Others including freight on clinker
Total

110

Persistence pays

2014-15

2013-14

1,995.76
(204.80)
16,657.88
18,448.84
1,657.80
16,791.04

1,484.15
21,468.13
22,952.28
1,995.76
20,956.52

5,655.07
5,758.79
726.16
253.06
292.73
4,105.23
16,791.04

6,243.02
4,552.73
1,521.48
1,458.79
1,926.61
501.86
483.10
190.50
4,078.42
20,956.52
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23. (INCREASE)/DECREASE IN INVENTORIES
(H in Lacs)
2014-15

2013-14

Finished Goods

4,082.25

3,481.82

Less: Inventories transferred pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement (Refer Note no. 27)

(219.16)

-

289.92

114.42

Particulars
Inventories at the beginning of the year

Work in Progress
Stock in Trade

-

-

4,153.01

3,596.24

2,674.87

4,082.25

191.75

289.92

Inventories at the end of the year
Finished Goods
Work in Progress
Stock in Trade
(Increase)/Decrease in inventories

93.97

-

2,960.59

4,372.17

1,192.42

(775.93)

-

209.30

Details of Inventory
Finished Goods
Ferro Silicon
Silico Mangenese
Power
Cement
Clinker

-

9.86

570.42

687.15

1,681.70

1,899.40

422.75

1,276.54

2,674.87

4,082.25

24. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
(H in Lacs)
Particulars

2014-15

2013-14

Salaries, Wages and other Manpower Expenses

8,571.55

7,323.43

252.53

209.82

Contribution to Provident, Gratuity and other Funds
Employees Welfare Expenses
Total

303.82

324.43

9,127.90

7,857.68

25. OTHER EXPENSES
(H in Lacs)
Particulars

2014-15

2013-14

Stores and Spare parts consumed

1,186.88

2,131.83

Packing Materials
Power and Fuel
(Increase)/decrease of excise duty on inventory
Insurance

4,079.66

3,168.51

17,200.41

20,864.53

(120.76)

0.32

370.45

307.18

Heavy Vehicle/Equipment Running Expenses

1,565.24

1,159.67

Rent, Rates and Taxes

1,500.15

1,241.19

54.77

60.03

Research and Development Expenses
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25. OTHER EXPENSES (contd.)
(H in Lacs)
Particulars
Travelling and Conveyance

2014-15

2013-14

849.09

671.69

530.22

545.78

1,411.02

1,580.85

Repairs and Maintenance
-Buildings
-Plant and Machinery
-Others

238.47

237.99

24,260.18

18,613.52

Commission, Discount and Incentives on Sale

7,574.08

6,704.94

Advertisement, Publicity and Sales Promotion

4,618.78

4,337.97

258.17

342.40

Outward Freight Charges (Net)

Charity and Donations
Miscellaneous Expenses
Total

1,876.17

1,835.47

67,452.98

63,803.87

26. FINANCE COSTS
(H in Lacs)
Particulars

2014-15

2013-14

- On Fixed Loans

6,804.53

7,136.19

- Others

Interest Expenses
1,559.05

1,267.45

- Exchange Difference to the extent considered as an adjustment to borrowing costs

126.55

174.16

Other Finance Cost

248.34

143.40

8,738.47

8,721.20

Total

27. SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT
a) Pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement (“The Scheme”) between the Company, Shyam Century Ferrous Limited (SCFL) and their
respective shareholders as approved by the Hon’ble High Court of Meghalaya at Shillong vide its order dated 31st March, 2015,
all the assets and liabilities of the Ferro Alloy division (i.e. business and interest of the company in manufacture of Ferro Alloys
including captive power plant at Byrnihat in the State of Meghalaya) and investment in 83,58,998 Equity Shares of Meghalaya
Power Limited of face value of H10/- each have been transferred to and vested in Shyam Century Ferrous Limited (Resulting
Company) at their respective book values on a going concern basis with effect from 1st April, 2014 being the appointed date. The
said order of the Hon’ble High Court has been filed with the Registrar of Companies on 10 th April, 2015, the effective date of the
scheme and accordingly, the Scheme of Arrangement has been given effect to in these accounts.
b)

The details of the assets and liabilities transferred to the Resulting Company are as under:
(H in Lacs)
Particulars

Amount

Assets
Non-Current Assets
Fixed Assets
Capital Work in Progress
Long term Loans and Advances
Other Non - Current Assets
Investments
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27. SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT (contd.)
(H in Lacs)
Particulars

Amount

Current Asset
Inventories
Sundry Debtors
Cash and Bank Balances
Short term Loans and Advances
Other Current Assets

2,001.64
1,656.20
3.90
1,213.94
396.55
5,272.23
12,473.12

Total Assets (A)
Current Liabilities and Short term Provisions
Short term Borrowings
Trade Payables
Other Current Liabilities
Short term Provisions

1,733.72
1,058.40
329.35
105.38
3,226.85

Non-Current Liabilities
Long term Borrowings
Long term Provisions
Deferred Tax Liabilities

835.98
27.70
78.10
941.78
4,168.63
8,304.49

Total Liabilities (B)
Difference (A-B)
c)

Pursuant to the Scheme, the difference between book value of assets and liabilities transferred to the Resulting Company being
H8,304.49 Lacs, has been debited to the following Reserve of the Company.
(H in Lacs)
Particulars

Amount

Capital Reserve

8,304.49

Total

8,304.49

28. DISCONTINUING OPERATIONS
The following statement shows the revenue and expenses of discontinuing operations i.e. Ferro Alloy division of the company which
has been demerged w.e.f. 1st April, 2014 (Refer Note no. 27).
(H in Lacs)
Particulars

2014-15

2013-14

Revenue from Operations (Gross)

-

14,235.54

Less : Excise Duty

-

(341.97)

Revenue from Operations (Net)

-

14,577.51

Other Income

-

9.56

Total Revenue (I)

-

14,587.07

-

4,374.75

Income

Expenses
Cost of Raw Materials consumed
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28. DISCONTINUING OPERATIONS (contd.)
(H in Lacs)
Particulars

2014-15

2013-14

(Increase)/Decrease in inventories

-

826.31

Employee Benefit Expenses

-

507.99

Other Expenses

-

6,694.85

Total (II)

-

12,403.90

Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (EBIDTA) ( I – II)

-

2,183.17

Depreciation and amortisation expense

-

480.46

Finance Cost

-

399.57

Profit Before Tax

-

1,303.14

Tax Expense

-

404.34

Profit/(Loss) After Tax

-

898.80

The carrying amounts of the total assets and liabilities of the Ferro Alloy division of the company are as follows:
(H in Lacs)
Particulars
Total Assets
Total Liabilities
Net Assets

2014-15

2013-14

-

12,473.12
4,168.63
8,304.49

The net cash attributable to the Ferro Alloy division of the company is below :
(H in Lacs)
Particulars
Operating Activities
Investing Activities
Financing Activities
Net Cash inflows/(outflows)

2014-15

2013-14

-

1,109.15
(2.27)
(1,249.78)
(142.90)

31st March, 2015

31st March, 2014

-

166.92

29. CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS (TO THE EXTENT NOT PROVIDED FOR)
(H in Lacs)
Particulars
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on Capital Account and not
provided for (Net of advances)
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30. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
(H in Lacs)
Sl. No. Particulars

31st March, 2015

31st March, 2014

2,794.49

3,198.07

Contingent Liabilities not provided for in respect of :–
(a)

Claims against the company not acknowledged as debts- Excise / VAT /
Income Tax matters

(b)

Un-redeemed bank guarantees

431.17

4,212.11

(c)

Bills discounted with banks

386.73

2,088.71

(d)

Letters of credit issued by the banks

(e)

Custom Duty on import under EPCG Scheme against which Export obligation
is to be fulfilled

(f)

Guarantee provided to bank on behalf of Contractors

(g)

Solvent surety furnished to Excise Department against differential excise duty
refund (Refer note no. 32)

183.83

82.00

1,063.64

1,001.04

80.91

379.18

2,131.40

2,286.18

Note: Based on discussion with the solicitors/favourable decisions in similar cases/legal opinion taken by the company, the management
believes that the company has a good chance of success in cases mentioned here-in-above and hence, no provision there against is
considered necessary.
31. BORROWING COSTS CAPITALISED
(H in Lacs)
Particulars
Borrowing Costs Capitalised

2014-15

2013-14

61.69

1,105.40

32. There is a diminution of H19.60 lacs (H18.39 lacs as at 31.03.2014) in the value of a quoted investment based on last quoted
price. The above investment being long term and strategic in nature, the said diminution, in the opinion of the management, is
temporary in nature and hence no provision is considered necessary.
33. Against claim for refund of differential excise duty, Hon’ble High Court at Guwahati (Shillong Bench) vide its order dated 12th
September, 2012, has directed the Excise Department to release 50% of the differential amount against furnishing of solvent
surety in line with the Interim Order dated 13th January, 2012 passed by Hon’ble Supreme Court in case of “VVF Ltd and others”.
Based on the said judgment of Hon’ble High Court in favour of the company and its subsidiaries Viz. Cement Manufacturing
Company Limited and Megha Technical and Engineers Private Limited and based on legal opinion obtained the differential excise
duty refund of H803.30 Lacs (PY H4,585.52 lacs) has been recognised as revenue.
34. The Company has charged depreciation based on the remaining useful life of the assets as per the provisions and requirement of
Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 effective from April 1, 2014. Had there not been any change in useful life of the assets,
the depreciation for the year of its subsidiaries Cement Manufacturing Company Limited, Star Cement Meghalaya Limited, Megha
Technical and Engineers (P) Limited and Meghalaya Power Limited would have been lower by H6,121.14 lacs and consequently
profit before tax for the year would have been higher by H6,121.14 lacs.
35. There are no Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises, as defined in the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,
2006 to whom the Company owes dues on account of principal amount together with interest and accordingly no additional
disclosures have been made. The above information regarding Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has been determined to the
extent such parties have been identified on the basis of the information available with the company.
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36. EMPLOYEE DEFINED BENEFITS
(a) Defined Contribution Plans: The Company has recognised an expense of H252.52 Lacs (PY H202.47 Lacs towards the defined
contribution plans).
(b) The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more service is entitled to
Gratuity on terms not less than the provisions of The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The said scheme in respect of its subsidiaries
is funded with an Insurance company. The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expenses recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss and the funded status of its subsidiaries and amounts recognised in the balance sheet for the Gratuity.
(c) Under leave encashment scheme, the company allows its employees to encash accumulated leave over and above thirty days at
any time during the year. The scheme is not funded by the company.
(d) Defined Benefit Plans – As per Actuarial Valuation as at 31st March, 2015.
(H in Lacs)
Particulars

I.

2014-15

2013-14

Gratuity

Leave
Encashment

Gratuity

Leave
Encashment

1. Current Service Cost

58.28

59.05

46.90

27.92

2. Interest Cost

20.29

11.82

18.49

9.62

-

-

-

-

(12.21)

-

(10.49)

-

Expense recognised in the statement of Profit
and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2015

3. Employee Contribution
4. Expected Return on Plan Assets

18.87

65.43

9.36

38.88

6. Past Service Cost

5. Actuarial (Gains)/Losses

-

-

-

-

7. Settlement Cost

-

-

-

-

8. Losses/(gains) on acquisition/divesture

1.42

-

(9.54)

-

86.66

136.30

54.73

76.42

1. Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation

296.56

185.54

231.32

118.59

2. Fair Value of Plan Assets

168.98

-

137.11

-

3. Funded Status [Surplus/(Deficit)]

(127.58)

(185.54)

(94.22)

(118.59)

4. Net Asset/(Liability) as at 31st March, 2015

(127.58)

(185.54)

(94.22)

(118.59)

210.68

109.74

179.75

95.20

2. Current Service Cost

58.28

59.05

46.90

27.92

3. Interest Cost

20.29

11.82

18.49

9.62

9. Total Expense
II. Net Asset/(Liability) recognised in the Balance
Sheet as at 31st March, 2015

III. Change in Obligation during the Year ended 31st
March, 2015
1. Present value of Defined Benefit Obligation at
the beginning of the year

4. Past Service Cost

-

-

-

-

5. Employee Contribution

-

-

-

-

(1.73)

-

-

-

6. Liabilities assumed on acquisition/(settled on
divesture)
7. Actuarial (Gains/Losses)

18.87

65.43

9.36

38.88

8. Benefits Payments

(9.82)

(58.81)

(23.18)

(53.02)

296.57

187.23

231.34

118.60

9. Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation at
the end of the year
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36. EMPLOYEE DEFINED BENEFITS (contd.)
(H in Lacs)
Particulars

2014-15

2013-14

Gratuity

Leave
Encashment

Gratuity

Leave
Encashment

137.11

-

95.93

-

-

-

-

-

IV. Change in assets during the Year ended March,
2015
1. Plan Assets at the beginning of the year
2. Assets acquired on amalgamation in previous
year
3. Settlements

-

-

-

-

4. Expected return on plan assets

12.21

-

10.49

-

5. Contributions by employer

32.05

60.50

44.32

53.02

6. Actual Benefit Paid

(9.82)

(60.50)

(23.18)

(53.02)

7. Actuarial Gains/(Losses)

(2.56)

-

9.54

-

168.99

-

137.11

-

8.54

-

15.13

-

8.25%

8.25%

8.25%

8.25%

9%

-

9%

-

8. Plan Assets at the end of the year
9. Actual Return on plan assets
V. The Principal actuarial assumptions are as
follows:
Discount Rate
Expected Return on Plan Assets
Salary increase
Withdrawal rates (Varying between per annum
depending upon the duration and age of the
employees)

e.

5%

5%

5%

5%

1%-8%

1%-8%

1%-8%

1%-8%

The details of the Experience adjustments for the current and previous periods are as follows:
(H in Lacs)
Particulars

1. Defined Benefit Obligation
2. Plan Assets
3. Surplus/(Deficit)
4. Experience adjustments on plan Liability
5.

Experience adjustments on Plan Assets

2014-15

2013-14

Gratuity

Leave
Encashment

Gratuity

Leave
Encashment

296.58

185.55

231.33

118.60

168.99

-

137.11

-

(127.59)

(185.55)

(94.22)

(118.60)

7.76

5.20

(9.36)

(38.88)

(2.56)

-

9.54

-
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37. EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS):
In terms of Accounting Standard - 20, the calculation of EPS is given below: Particulars

2014-15

2013-14

Profit attributable to Equity Shareholders for basic and diluted EPS

8,343.66

612.44

Weighted average number of Equity Shares for basic EPS

22,21,72,990

22,21,72,990

Nominal value of equity shares (H)

1.00

1.00

Basic earnings per share (EPS) (H)

3.76

0.28

Diluted earnings per share (H)

3.76

0.28

38. DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS AND UNHEDGED FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE.
The particulars of unhedged foreign currency exposures as on the balance sheet dates are as follows:
Particulars

2014-15

2013-14

Foreign
Currency

In Millions

H in Lacs

Foreign
Currency

In Millions

H in Lacs

FCNRB Term Loan

USD

2.74

1,714.99

USD

3.86

2,318.40

FCNRB Demand Loan

USD

5.00

3,129.54

USD

5.00

3,004.99

ECB-Term Loan

USD

166.68

23,358.35

USD

197.83

26,487.08

Buyers Credit

-

-

-

EURO

0.13

11.07

Buyers Credit

-

-

-

USD

8.17

488.43

Buyers Credit

-

-

-

GBP

0.22

21.97

39. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
Name of the related parties and related party relationship:
I

II
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Others - with whom transactions have taken place during
the year
Names of related parties

Nature of relationship

Century Plyboards (India) Limited (CPIL)

Associate

Shyam Century Ferrous Limited (SCFL)*

Associate

Brijdham Merchants Private Limited (BMPL)

Enterprises Owned/Influenced by Key Management
Personnel or their relatives

Sriram Vanijya Private Limited (SVPL)

Enterprises Owned/Influenced by Key Management
Personnel or their relatives

Star India Cement Limited (SICL)

Enterprises Owned/Influenced by Key Management
Personnel or their relatives

Key Management Personnel of the Company
Names of related parties

Nature of relationship

Mr. Sajjan Bhajanka

Chairman

Mr. Sanjay Agarwal

Director

Mr. Hari Prasad Agarwal

Director
Managing Director upto 31st August, 2014

Mr. Dilip Kumar Agarwal

Chief Financial Officer w.e.f. 20th September, 2014

Mr. Debabrata Thakurta

Company Secretary w.e.f. 13th August, 2014

Mr. Om Prakash Lohia

Chief Financial Officer upto 27th August, 2014

Mr. Ravi Mundra

Company Secretary upto 8th August, 2014
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39. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (contd.)
III

Key Management Personnel of the Subsidiaries
Names of related parties

IV

Nature of relationship

Mr. Sajjan Bhajanka

Chairman and Managing Director

Mr. Rajendra Chamaria

Vice Chairman and Managing Director

Mr. Sanjay Agarwal

Joint Managing Director

Mr. Pankaj Kejriwal

Managing Director

Mr. Prem Kumar Bhajanka

Managing Director

Mr. Sanjay Kumar Gupta

Chief Executive Officer
(Deputy Chief Executive Officer upto 25th March, 2015)

Mr. Vishal Agarwal

Chief Financial Officer (w.e.f. 20th September, 2014)

Mr. Vivek Lahoti

Chief Financial Officer (w.e.f. 20th September, 2014)

Mr. Pramod Mundhra

Chief Financial Officer (Upto 21st March, 2015)

Mr. Manoj Agarwal

Company Secretary

Mr. Mohit Mahana

Company Secretary

Ms. Nupur Burman

Company Secretary

Relatives of Key Management Personnel
Names of the related parties

Nature of relationship

Mrs. Santosh Bhajanka

Wife of Mr. Sajjan Bhajanka

Mrs. Sonu Kajaria

Daughter of Mr. Sajjan Bhajanka

Mrs. Payal Agarwal

Daughter of Mr. Sajjan Bhajanka

Mrs. Shraddha Agarwal

Daughter of Mr. Sajjan Bhajanka

Mrs. Sumitra Devi Agarwal

Wife of Mr. Hari Prasad Agarwal

Mr. Rajesh Kumar Agarwal

Son of Mr. Hari Prasad Agarwal

Mrs. Divya Agarwal

Wife of Mr. Sanjay Agarwal

Mrs. Renu Chamaria

Wife of Mr. Rajendra Chamaria

Mr. Rahul Chamaria

Son of Mr. Rajendra Chamaria

Mr. Sachin Chamaria

Son of Mr. Rajendra Chamaria

*Ceased to be subsidiary pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement (Refer note no. 27)
(H in Lacs)
Sl. Type of Transactions

Associates

No.
1

2

3

Enterprise Owned/

Key Management

Influenced by KMP

Personnel

Relatives of KMP

2014-15

2013-14

2014-15

2013-14

2014-15

2013-14

2014-15

2013-14

CPIL

7.47

51.89

-

-

-

-

-

-

SCFL

16.36

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

CPIL

6.79

11.84

-

-

-

-

-

-

SCFL

505.59

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

CPIL

-

2,400.00

-

-

-

-

-

-

Mr. Prem Kumar Bhajanka

-

-

-

-

3300.00

-

-

-

Purchase Transactions

Sale Transactions

Loans and Advances Taken
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39. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (contd.)
Sl. Type of Transactions

(H in Lacs)

Associates

No.

Influenced by KMP

Personnel

Relatives of KMP

2013-14

2014-15

2013-14

2014-15

2013-14

2014-15

2013-14

-

2,400.00

-

-

-

-

-

-

200.00

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

200.00

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

CPIL

-

20.94

-

-

-

-

-

-

BMPL

-

-

-

11.00

-

-

-

-

SVPL

-

-

-

11.00

-

-

-

-

Mr. Prem Kumar Bhajanka

-

-

-

-

48.42

-

-

-

Loan Taken Repaid

5

Loan Given

CPIL
SCFL
Loan Given Repaid
SCFL
7

Key Management

2014-15
4

6

Enterprise Owned/

Interest Paid

8

Interest Received

9

Dividend Paid

SCFL

5.40

Mr. Sajjan Bhajanka

-

-

-

-

-

166.19

-

60.88

Mr. Rajendra Chamaria

-

-

-

-

-

79.09

-

61.41

Mr. Rahul Chamaria

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

15.50

Mr. Sachin Chamaria

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

15.00

Mrs. Renu Chamaria

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

8.17

Mr. Hari Prasad Agarwal

-

-

-

-

-

8.04

-

16.34

Mr. Sanjay Agarwal

-

-

-

-

-

78.50

-

55.27

BMPL

-

-

-

28.06

-

-

-

-

SVPL

-

-

-

0.67

-

-

-

-

Others

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

10 Remuneration Paid
Mr. Sajjan Bhajanka

-

-

-

-

48.00

48.00

-

-

Mr. Hari Prasad Agarwal

-

-

-

-

1.25

3.00

-

-

Mr. Sanjay Agarwal

-

-

-

-

48.00

48.00

-

-

Mr. Pankaj Kejriwal

-

-

-

-

42.00

42.00

-

-

Mr. Rajendra Chamaria

-

-

-

-

48.00

48.00

-

-

Mr. Prem Kumar Bhajanka

-

-

-

-

48.00

43.00

-

-

Mr. Rahul Chamaria

-

-

-

-

-

-

30.00

30.00

Mr. Sachin Chamaria

-

-

-

-

-

-

24.00

24.00

Mr. Sanjay Kumar Gupta

-

-

-

-

73.72

50.04

-

-

Mr. Dilip Kumar Agarwal

-

-

-

-

20.75

-

-

-

Mr. Debabrata Thakurta

-

-

-

-

8.69

-

-

-

Mr. Om Prakash Lohia

-

-

-

-

8.83

-

-

-

Mr. Ravi Prakash Mundra

-

-

-

-

4.32

-

-

-

Mr. Vishal Agarwal

-

-

-

-

4.03

-

-

-

Mr. Pramod Mundhra

-

-

-

-

4.93

-

-

-

Mr. Manoj Agarwal

-

-

-

-

36.85

22.50

-

-
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (contd.)
39. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (contd.)
(H in Lacs)
Sl. Type of Transactions

Associates

No.

Enterprise Owned/

Key Management

Influenced by KMP

Personnel

Relatives of KMP

2014-15

2013-14

2014-15

2013-14

2014-15

2013-14

2014-15

2013-14

Mr. Vivek Lahoti

-

-

-

-

12.88

-

-

-

Mr. Mohit Mahana

-

-

-

-

4.51

3.74

-

-

Ms. Nupur Burman

-

-

-

-

3.81

1.00

-

-

Mr. Sajjan Bhajanka

-

-

-

-

-

245.72

-

174.50

Mr. Hari Prasad Agarwal

-

-

-

-

-

24.36

-

49.51

Mr. Sanjay Agarwal

-

-

-

-

-

237.89

-

167.50

BMPL

-

-

77.44

-

-

-

-

SVPL

-

-

85.02

-

-

-

-

35.00

35.00

-

-

-

-

-

11 Share Allotment

12 Balance Outstanding:
A

Loans and Advances paid
SICL

B

C

BMPL

-

-

109.90

-

-

-

-

SVPL

-

-

109.90

-

-

-

-

3,373.50

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Mr. Sajjan Bhajanka

-

-

-

- 56,103.07 56,596.82

-

-

Mr. Rajendra Chamaria

-

-

-

- 37,692.13 38,136.74

-

-

Mr. Sanjay Agarwal

-

-

-

- 37,692.13 39,636.74

-

-

Mr. Hari Prasad Agarwal

-

-

-

-

1,500.00

-

-

Mr. Prem Kumar Bhajanka

-

-

-

- 15,345.96 13,443.43

-

-

Share Capital
SCFL

D

-

Loans and Advances received

Guarantees Obtained

-

40. In line with the Notification dated 29th December, 2011 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the subsidiaries Cement
Manufacturing Company Limited, Star Cement Meghalaya Limited and Meghalaya Power Limited have availed the option given in
paragraph 46A of the Accounting Standard 11 (AS-11) – ‘’The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates”. Accordingly they
have, with effect from 1st April, 2013, depreciated the foreign exchange (gain)/loss arising on revaluation on long term foreign
Currency monetary items in so far as they relate to the acquisition of depreciable capital assets over the balance useful life of such
assets. The depreciated portion of net foreign exchange (gain)/loss on such long term foreign currency monetary items for the year
ended 31st March, 2015 of the subsidiaries is H713.49 (PY H18.59) lacs. The unamortised portion carried forward as at 31st
March, 2015 is H4,170.02 (H3,756.60) lacs.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (contd.)
41. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION PURSUANT TO SCHEDULE III OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
Sl No

Name of the entity in the

Parent

Net Assets i.e. total assets minus total
liabilities

Share in profit or loss

As % of
consolidated net
assets

Amount

As % of
consolidated profit
or loss

Amount

5.21%

5,229.61

(0.90%)

(138.58)

Subsidiaries
Indian:
1.

Cement Manufacturing Company
Limited

21.97%

22,042.30

31.63%

4,864.13

2.

Megha Technical and Engineers
Pvt Limited

21.03%

21,096.35

12.16%

1,869.59

3.

Star Cement Meghalaya Limited

18.82%

18,875.09

33.30%

5,120.79

4.

Meghalaya Power Limited

0.76%

758.35

1.81%

277.77

5.

NE Hills Hydro Limited

-

-

32.21%

32,308.66

22.00%

3,383.15

100%

100,310.36

100%

15,376.84

Foreign:
Minority Interest in subsidiaries
Associates (Investment as per the
equity method)
Indian:
None
Foreign:
None
Joint Ventures
None
TOTAL

42. DONATIONS TO POLITICAL PARTIES
(H in Lacs)
Name of the Party
Bharatiya Janata party
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2014-15

2013-14

1.65

-
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (contd.)
43. The Company’s segment information as at and for the Year ended 31st March, 2015 are as below:
(H in Lacs)
Sl.

Particulars

No.

2014-15

2013-14

Continuing Operation

Discontinuing Operation

Cement
A

Power

Total

Ferro Alloys

146,391.02

575.39

146,966.41

39,746.83

9,190.51

48,937.34

Elimination

(39,746.83)

(9,190.51)

Total Revenue (Gross)

146,391.02
19,083.82

External Sales
Inter-segment Sales

B

Power Unit

Total

14,206.63

-

14,206.63

-

4,916.81

4,916.81

(48,937.34)

-

-

4,916.81

575.39

146,966.41

14,206.63

4,916.81

14,206.63

1,685.59

20,769.41

501.93

1,235.35

1,737.58

Revenue (Gross)

Result
Segment Results

442.88

(37.53)

21,212.29

1,700.05

Interest and Finance Cost (net)

8,738.47

396.91

Provision for Taxation

2,640.09

217.46

Deferred Tax Charge/Credit

(496.65)

285.83

(2,640.09)

98.94

Unallocated Income/(-) Expenses (Net
of unallocated Income/(-) Expenses
(including exceptional items)
Operating Profit

MAT Credit Entitlement
MAT Credit Entitlement for earlier year
Income Tax for earlier year
Net Profit (before minority interest)

-

-

16.52

-

11,993.69

898.80

Other Information
a

Total Assets
Segment Assets
Unallocated Corporate/Other Assets
Total

b

183,215.21

28,998.98

212214.19

-

-

6,832.57

183,215.21

28,998.98

219,046.76

6,325.07

2,887.45

12,473.12

99,823.82

17,911.09

117,734.91

962.19

347.80

1,309.99

962.19

347.80

4,168.63

6,325.07

2,887.45

9,212.52
3,260.60

Total Liabilities
Segment Liabilities
Unallocated Corporate/Other Liabilities
Total

C

Capital Expenditure

D

Depreciation/Amortisation

-

-

1,001.48

99,823.82

17,911.09

118,736.39

2,858.64

3,713.28

1,158.95

4,872.23

43.36

2.46

45.81

20,322.96

2,051.33

22,734.29

247.94

232.52

480.46

Notes:
(a) Business Segments: The business segments have been identified on the basis of the products of the Company. Accordingly, the
Company has identified following business segments:
Power

- Generation of Power

Cement

- Cement and Clinker

(b) Geographical Segments: The Company operates predominantly within the geographical limits of India and accordingly secondary
segments have not been considered.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (contd.)
44. Figures have been rounded off to the nearest H in Lacs. Previous year’s figures including those given in brackets have been
rearranged and regrouped where necessary to confirm to the current year’s classifications. Further, previous year figures include
figures of Ferro Alloy division which has been demerged w.e.f. 1st April, 2014 pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement (Refer
note no. 28) and hence are not comparable with the current year’s figure.

As per our report of even date
For Kailash B. Goel and Co.
Firm Registration No. 322460E
Chartered Accountants
CA. Arun Kumar Sharma
Partner
Membership No: 57329

Place: Kolkata
Date: 7th May, 2015

124

Persistence pays

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Dilip Kumar Agarwal
Chief Financial Officer

Debabrata Thakurta
Company Secretary

Sajjan Bhajanka
Chairman and Director
DIN: 00246043
Hari Prasad Agarwal
Director
DIN: 00266005
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STAR FERRO AND CEMENT LIMITED
CIN-L27310ML2011PLC008564
Regd. Office: Vill: Lumshnong, PO: Khaliehriat, Dist.: East Jaintia Hills, Meghalaya – 793210
Tel: 03655 – 278215/16/18, Fax: 03655-278217
Email: info@starferrocement.co.in, website: www.starferrocement.co.in

NOTICE TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
NOTICE is hereby given that the FIFTH ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETING of Star Ferro and Cement Limited will be held on
Friday, 25th September, 2015 at 10:00 AM at “Star Club”,
Vill: Lumshnong, P.O.: Khaliehriat, Dist.: East Jaintia Hills,
Meghalaya - 793210 to transact the following business:
ORDINARY BUSINESS:
1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial
Statements (including audited consolidated financial
statements) for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2015
and the Reports of Directors and Auditors thereon.

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section
139, 142 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder (including
any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the
time being in force), M/s Kailash B. Goel & Co., Chartered
Accountants (Firm Registration No.322460E), be and
are hereby re-appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the
Company, to hold office from the conclusion of this Annual
General Meeting till the conclusion of the next Annual
General Meeting of the Company at such remuneration as
shall be fixed by the Board of Directors of the Company.”

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Hari Prasad Agarwal
(DIN: 00266005), who retires by rotation and being eligible,
offers himself for re-appointment.
3. To re-appoint Statutory Auditors and fix their remuneration
and in this regard, to consider and if thought fit, to pass the
following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

By Order of the Board
For Star Ferro and Cement Limited
Dated: 22nd July, 2015
Place: Kolkata

Debabrata Thakurta
Company Secretary

NOTES:
1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE
MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT ONE OR MORE
PROXY (IES) TO ATTEND AND VOTE ON POLL ON HIS/
HER BEHALF AND SUCH PROXY NEED NOT BE A
MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. Pursuant to the provisions
of Section 105 of the Companies Act, 2013, a person can
act as a proxy on behalf of not more than fifty members and
holding in aggregate not more than ten percent of the total
Share Capital of the Company. Members holding more than
ten percent of the total Share Capital of the Company may
appoint a single person as proxy, who shall not act as a proxy
for any other Member. The instrument of Proxy, in order to
be effective, should be deposited at the Registered Office of
the Company, duly completed and signed, not later than 48
hours before the commencement of the meeting. A Proxy
Form is annexed to this Report. Proxies submitted on behalf
of limited companies, societies, etc., must be supported by
an appropriate resolution / authority, as applicable.

2. The Board of Directors of the Company at their meeting held
on 9th June, 2015, declared an interim dividend of Re.
1/- (Rupee one only) per equity Share of Re. 1/- (Rupee one
only) each fully paid up (i.e., @ 100%) for the Financial Year
2015-16. The Interim dividend has been paid/ warrants,
demand drafts etc., dispatched to the shareholders of the
Company before 6th July, 2015.
3. Members holding shares in the physical form are requested
to notify change in address, bank mandate and bank
particulars, if any, under their signatures to M/s Maheshwari
Datamatics Pvt. Ltd., 6 Mangoe Lane (Surendra Mohan
Ghosh Sarani), 2nd Floor, Kolkata – 700001, the Registrars
and Share Transfer Agents (RTA) of the Company, quoting
their Folio nos. Members holding shares in electronic form
may update such information with their respective depository
participants.
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4. Additional information pursuant to Clause 49 of the
Listing Agreement with the stock exchanges in respect of
the Directors seeking appointment / re-appointment at the
AGM are furnished as an Annexure and forms a part of the
Notice. The Directors have furnished the requisite consents
/ declarations for their appointment / re-appointment.
5. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of
the Company will remain closed from Tuesday, 22nd
September, 2015 to Friday, 25th September, 2015 (both
days inclusive).
6. Pursuant to Section 101 and Section 136 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with relevant Rules made
thereunder, Companies can serve Annual Reports and
other communications through electronic mode to those
Members who have registered their e-mail address either
with the Company or with the Depository Participant(s).
Members who have not registered their e-mail address with
the Company can now register the same by writing to the
Registrar of the Company, M/s Maheshwari Datamatics
Private Limited at the following address:Maheshwari Datamatics Private Limited
6, Mangoe Lane, 2nd Floor,
Kolkata - 700001
Members holding shares in demat form are requested
to register their e-mail address with their Depository
Participant(s) only. Members of the Company, who have
registered their e-mail address, are entitled to receive such
communication in physical form upon request.
7. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has
mandated the submission of Permanent Account Number
to the Company/ RTA for registration of transfer of shares,
for securities market transactions and off-market/ private
transactions involving transfer of shares in physical form.
In this connection, the Transferees of Company’s shares are
requested to submit a copy of their PAN card along with
the Transfer Deed. Members holding shares in electronic
form are requested to submit their PAN to the Depository
Participants with whom they are maintaining their demat
accounts. Members holding shares in physical form can
submit their PAN to the Company / Maheshwari Datamatics
Private Limited.
8. Members seeking information regarding financial accounts
of the Company are requested to write to the Company at
least 7 (seven) days before the date of meeting so as to
enable the management to keep the information ready.
9. All documents meant for inspection and referred to in the
Notice and accompanying Annual Report are open for
inspection at the Corporate Office of the Company during
office hours between 11:00 A.M to 1:00 P.M on all working
days till the date of the Annual General Meeting.
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10. The Notice of AGM, Annual Report and Attendance Slip are
being sent in electronic mode to Members whose e-mail
IDs are registered with the Company or the Depository
Participant(s) unless the Members have registered their
request for a hard copy of the same. Physical copy of the
Notice of AGM, Annual Report and Attendance Slip are being
sent to those Members who have not registered their e-mail
IDs with the Company or Depository Participant(s). Members
who have received the Notice of AGM, Annual Report and
Attendance Slip in electronic mode are requested to print the
Attendance Slip and submit a duly filled in Attendance Slip
at the registration counter to attend the AGM. Members are
requested to bring their admission slip along with copy of
the Annual Report at the Annual General Meeting.
11. Pursuant to Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013,
read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014, as amended and Clause
35B of the Listing Agreement, the Company is pleased to
provide the facility of remote e-voting (i.e. facility to cast
vote electronically from a place other than the venue of
Annual General Meeting) to all the Members for which the
Company has engaged the services of National Securities
Depository Limited (NSDL). The Members holding shares
either in physical form or in dematerialized form, desiring
to vote through electronic mode may refer to the detailed
procedure on e-voting given hereinafter.
12. The facility for voting through ballot paper shall be made
available at the Annual General Meeting and the Members
who have not cast their votes by remote e-voting as on
Cut-off date i.e. Friday, 18th September, 2015 be able to
exercise their right at the Annual General Meeting through
ballot paper. Members, who cast their votes by remote
e-voting prior to the meeting, may attend the meeting but
will not be entitled to cast their vote again.
13. The Members, whose names appear in the Register of
Members / list of Beneficial Owners as on Friday, 18th
September, 2015, are entitled to vote on the Resolutions set
forth in this Notice and a person who is not a Member as on
cut-off date should treat this notice for information purpose
only. The members may cast their votes on electronic voting
system from place other than the venue of the meeting
(remote e-voting). Members who have acquired shares
after the despatch of the Notice of Annual General Meeting
and before the cut-off date may approach the Company for
issuance of the User ID and Password for exercising their
right to vote by electronic means.
14. The e-voting period will commence at 9.00 a.m. on
Tuesday, 22nd September, 2015 and will end at 5.00 p.m.
on Thursday, 24th September, 2015. The Company has
appointed Mr. Niaz Ahmed, Practising Company Secretary,
to act as the Scrutinizer, for conducting the scrutiny of the
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votes cast. The Members desiring to vote through electronic
mode may refer to the detailed procedure on e-voting.

B. In case of Members who receive Notice by post:
1. Initial Password is provided, as follows, at the
bottom of the Attendance Slip.

15. PROCEDURE FOR REMOTE E-VOTING
The Company has entered into an arrangement with National
Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) for facilitating e-voting
for AGM. The instructions for remote e-voting are as under:
A.

In case of Members who receive the Notice in electronic
mode:
1. Open the PDF file ‘SFCL e-Voting.pdf’ attached
to the e-mail, using your Client ID / Folio No. as
password. The PDF file contains your User ID
and Password for e-voting. Please note that the
Password provided in PDF is an ‘Initial Password’.
2. Launch an internet browser and open https://www.
evoting.nsdl.com
3. Click on Shareholder - Login.
4. Insert ‘User ID’ and ‘Initial Password’ as noted in
step (i) above and click ‘Login’.
5. Password change menu will appear. Change the
Password with a new Password of your choice.
Please keep a note of the new Password. It is
strongly recommended not to share your Password
with any person and take utmost care to keep it
confidential.
6. Home page of e-voting will open. Click on e-Voting
- Active Voting Cycles.
7. Select the ‘EVEN’ (E-Voting Event Number) of Star
Ferro and Cement Limited.
8. Now you are ready for e-voting as ‘Cast Vote’ page
opens.
9. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate option
and click on ‘Submit’. Click on ‘Confirm’ when
prompted.
10. Upon confirmation, the message ‘Vote cast
successfully’ will be displayed.
11. Once you have voted on the resolution, you will not
be allowed to modify your vote.
12. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than
individuals, HUF, NRI, etc.) are required to send
scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant
Board Resolution/ Authority Letter, along with
attested specimen signature of the duly authorised
signatory (ies) who are authorised to vote, to the
Scrutinizer by an e-mail at csniazahmed@gmail.
com with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in

EVEN
(E-voting Event
Number)

USER ID

PASSWORD

-

-

-

2. Please follow all steps from Sl. No. 2 to Sl. No. 12
above, to cast vote.
C. In case of any queries, you may refer to the ‘Frequently
Asked Questions’ (FAQs) and ‘e-voting user manual’
available in the downloads section of NSDL’s e-voting
website www.evoting.nsdl.com
D. If you are already registered with NSDL for e-voting then
you can use your existing User ID and Password for
casting vote.
E.

The voting rights shall be as per the number of equity
share held by the Member(s) as on Friday, 18th
September, 2015. Members are eligible to cast vote
electronically only if they are holding shares as on that
date.

F.

The Companies (Management and Administration)
Rules, 2014 provides that the electronic voting period
remain open for atleast three days and shall close at
5.00 p.m. on the date preceding the date of the AGM.
Accordingly, the voting period shall commence at 9.00
a.m. on Tuesday, 22nd September, 2015 and will end
at 5.00 p.m. on Thursday, 24th September, 2015.

G. The results shall be declared within 48 hours from
the conclusion of the AGM. The results along with the
Scrutinizer’s Report shall also be placed on the website
of the Company and such results will also be forwarded
to the Stock Exchanges where the Company’s shares
are listed.
H. The Route map of the venue of Annual General Meeting
i.e. “Star Club”, Vill: Lumshnong, P.O.: Khaliehriat,
Dist.: East Jaintia Hills, Meghalaya - 793210 is
annexed at the end of this Notice.

By Order of the Board
For Star Ferro and Cement Limited
Dated: 22nd July, 2015
Place: Kolkata

Debabrata Thakurta
Company Secretary
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ANNEXURE TO ITEM 2 OF THE NOTICE
Information provided pursuant to Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with the Exchange(s) in respect of individuals proposed to be
Appointed/Re-appointed as Director(s) as on March 31, 2015
Name of the Director

Mr. Hari Prasad Agarwal

Date of Birth

26th May, 1948

Date of Appointment

10th March, 2011

No. of Shares Held

2435760 Equity Shares

No. of warrants Held

Nil

Qualification

Commerce Graduate

Experience in special functional Area

He has an experience of over 35 years in plywood, Ferro-silicon and cement
industries. He has played a key role in the progress of the company.

Relationship with the Company

Non-Executive Non Independent Director.

Remuneration last drawn

H1.25 lacs (upto 30th August, 2014)

Directorship held in other Public Companies

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
8.
9.
10.

Membership/ Chairmanship in Committees of
other Companies

Member - Audit Committee
Century Plyboards (I) Limited
Star Ferro and Cement Limited
Megha Technical & Engineers Pvt. Limited

Century Plyboards(I) Limited
Century Plantations Limited
Megha Technical & Engineers Private Limited
Century Plyboards (Meghalaya) Limited
Shyam Century Cement Industries Limited
Shyam Century Metallic Limited
Star Cement Bengal Limited
Century Sumeru Infrastructure Limited
Century Sumeru Development Limited
Century LED Limited

Member – Stakeholder Relationship Committee
Century Plyboards (I) Limited
Star Ferro and Cement Limited
No. of Board Meeting attended during the year

5 (five)

Route Map
Lokpriya Gopinath Bordoloi International Airport, Borjhar, Guwahati

Khanapara

Nongpoh

Shillong

Jowai

Khliehriat

Total Distance: 261 km

Lumshnong
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PROXY FORM - MGT - 11
[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

Name of the Member(s):
Registered Address:
Email Id:
Folio No. /DP ID and Client ID:
I /We, being the member(s) of the Company and holding _____________________________ shares of the Company, hereby appoint:
1. Name: _____________________________________________________, Address: ______________________________________
Email: ______________________________________________________, Signature: _____________________, or failing him/her
2. Name: _____________________________________________________, Address: ______________________________________
Email: ______________________________________________________, Signature: _____________________, or failing him/her
3. Name: _____________________________________________________, Address: ______________________________________
Email: ______________________________________________________, Signature: _____________________
as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Fifth Annual General Meeting of the company, to
be held on Friday, 25th day of September, 2015 at 10:00 A.M. at ”Star Club”, Vill: Lumshnong, P.O: Khaliehriat, Dist.: East Jaintia
Hills, Meghalaya - 793210 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:
SL.
No.

RESOLUTIONS

1

Adoption of Audited Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2015

2.

Re-appointment of Mr. Hari Prasad Agarwal as a Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation.

3.

Re-appointment of M/s Kailash B. Goel & Co. Chartered Accountants as Statutory Auditors of the
Company and fixing their remuneration

Optional*
For

Signed this _______________ day of __________________, 2015
Signature of the shareholder __________________________________
Signature of the proxy holder __________________________________

Against

Affix
Revenue
Stamp of
Re.1/-

Notes:
1. This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of the Company, not
less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting.
2. For the Resolutions, Explanatory Statements and Notes, please refer to the Notice of 5 th Annual General Meeting.
3. * It is optional to put ‘X’ in the appropriate column against the Resolutions indicated in the Box. If you leave the ‘For’ or ‘Against’
column blank against any or all resolution, your proxy will be entitled to vote in the manner as he / she thinks appropriate.
4. Please complete all details including details of member(s) in the above box before submission.

STAR FERRO AND CEMENT LIMITED
CIN-L27310ML2011PLC008564
Regd. Office: Vill: Lumshnong, PO: Khaliehriat, Dist.: East Jaintia Hills, Meghalaya – 793210
Tel: 03655 – 278215/16/18, Fax: 03655-278217
Email: info@starferrocement.co.in, website: www.starferrocement.co.in

ATTENDANCE SLIP
For ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING-25th September, 2015 at 10:00 A.M.

Folio No. /DP ID and Client ID:
Name:
Address:
No of shares held:

I certify that I am a registered shareholder/Proxy for the registered shareholder of the Company.
I hereby record my attendance at the Fifth Annual General of the Company at ”Star Club”, Vill: Lumshnong, P.O.: Khaliehriat, Dist.:
East Jaintia Hills, Meghalaya – 793210 on Friday, 25th September, 2015.

_________________________________
Member’s/Proxy’s name in block letters

________________________
Member’s/Proxy’s signature

Notes:
1. Registration will start at 8:00 A.M and close at 10:00 A.M. on the day of Annual General Meeting.
2. The members are required to produce their duly signed Attendance Slips and get their entry passes from the registration counter.
3. The members should produce their entry passes at the entrance of the AGM Hall for attending the AGM.
4. The Members are informed that in case of joint holders attending the meeting, only such joint holder whose name appears in the
chronological order in the Demat account /Folio will be entitled to vote.
5. This Attendance Slip is valid only in case shares are held on the date of the Annual General Meeting.
6. The Members who have received Annual Report and Attendance Slip in electronic mode are requested to print the Attendance Slip
and submit duly filled in Attendance Slip at the registration counter to attend the Annual General Meeting.
Electronic Voting (e-voting):
7. The Company is pleased to offer the option of e-voting facility to the Members. The Members shall have the option to vote
either through e-voting or in person at the Annual General Meeting. The voting period will commence at 9:00 A.M on Tuesday,
22nd September, 2015 and will end at 5:00 P.M on Thursday, 24th September, 2015. The Members desiring to exercise
e-voting option may refer to the detailed procedure onelectronic voting provided along with the intimation of their USER ID and
Password.
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Chartered Accountants
70, Ganesh Chandra Avenue,
1st Floor, Kolkata – 700013
Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Sanjay Kumar Gupta

Registered Office
VIll: Lumshnong, P.O.Khaliehriat
Distt: East Jaintia Hills
Meghalaya – 793210
Registrars & Share Transfer

Chief Financial Officer

Agents

Mr. Dilip Kumar Agarwal

Maheswari Datamatics Pvt. Ltd.

Company Secretary
Mr. Debabrata Thakurta

6, Mangoe Lane, 2nd Floor,
Kolkata - 700001

Corporate Office
‘Satyam Towers’, 1st Floor,
Unit No. 9B, 3, Alipore Road, Kolkata-700027
Phone : 033 22484169/70, Fax : 033 22484168
Email : investors@starferrocement.co.in, info@starferrocement.co.in
Website : www.starferrocement.co.in

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENT
In this Annual Report, we have disclosed forward-looking information to enable investors to comprehend our prospects and take informed investment decisions.
This report and other statements, written or oral, that we periodically make, contain forward-looking statements that set out anticipated results based on
management’s plans and assumptions. We have tried, wherever possible, to identify such statements by using words such as ‘anticipates’, ‘estimates’, ‘expects’,
‘projects’, ‘intends’, ‘plans’, ‘believes’ and words of similar substance in connection with any discussion relating to future performance of the Company
We cannot guarantee that these forward-looking statements will be realized, although we believe we have been prudent in our assumptions. The achievement
of results is subject to risks, uncertainties and even inaccurate assumptions. Should known or unknown risks or uncertainties materialize, or should underlying
assumptions prove inaccurate, actual results could vary materially from those anticipated, estimated or projected. Readers should bear this in mind.
We undertake no obligation to publicly update any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.

A

PRODUCT

info@trisyscom.com
print anderson +91 99030 58982

STAR FERRO AND CEMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2014-15
STAR FERRO AND CEMENT LIMITED
Registered Office:Vill: Lumshnong, P.O.: Khaliehriat,
Dist: East Jaintia Hills, Meghalaya - 793210
www.starferrocement.co.in
CIN: L27310ML2011PLC008564

